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Safe Harbor Statement and Part Item Business

Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Safe Harbor Cautionary Statement

This report and the documents incorporated by reference

contain forward-Looking statements as defined in the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that are

based on current expectations estimates and projections

Statements that are not historical facts including state

ments about the beliefs and expectations of Convergys

Corporation the Company or Convergys are forward-

Looking statements and will contain words such as

believes expects intends could should will

plans anticipates and other similar words These

statements discuss projections and expectations and

therefore actual results may differ materially You are

cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward

looking statements which speak only as of the date on

which they were made The Company has no current

intention to update any forward-looking statements

whether as result of new information future events or

otherwise

Important factors that may affect these forward-looking

statements include but are not limited to the behavior of

financial markets including fluctuations in interest or

exchange rates continued volatility and deterioration of

the capital markets the impact of regulation and regu

latory investigative and legal actions strategic actions

including acquisitions and dispositions future integration

of acquired businesses future financial performance of

major industries which we serve the loss of significant

client or significant business from client difficulties in

completing contract or implementing its provisions and

numerous other matters of national regional and global

scale including those of the political economic business

and competitive nature These uncertainties may cause our

actual future results to be materially different than those

expressed in our forward-looking statements The Risk

Factors set forth in Part Item IA of this report could

also cause actual results to differ materially from the

forward-looking statements

Part

Item Business

Overview

Convergys is global leader in relationship management

We provide solutions that drive more value from the

relationships our clients have with their customers

Convergys turns these everyday interactions into source

of profit and strategic advantage for our clients Our

combination of operational excellence and innovative

technologies enhances our clients relationships with their

customers

The Company maintains an internet website at

www.convergys.com Information about the Company is

available on the website free of charge including the

annual report filed on Form 10-K quarterly reports on

Form 10-0 current reports on Form 8-K and amendments

to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to

Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after we

electronically file such material with or furnish it to the

Securities and Exchange Commission The Companys

website and the information contained therein are not

considered as being incorporated into this Annual Report

You may read and copy any materials the Company files

with the SEC at the SECs public reference room at 100

Street NE Washington DC 20549 The public may obtain

information about the operation of the public reference

room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 The SEC also

maintains an internet site that contains reports proxy and

information statements and other information regarding

issuers that file electronically with the SEC The website of

the SEC is www.sec.gov

The Company has Code of Business Conduct that applies

to all employees as well as our Board of Directors

Financial Code of Ethics that applies to our principal

executive officer principal financial and accounting

officer and certain other management and senior employ

ees and Governance Principles for our Board of Directors
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The Code of Business Conduct Financial Code of Ethics

arid Governance Principles as well as the charters for the

Audit Committee Finance Committee Compensation and

Benefits Committee and Governance and Nominating

Committee of our Board of Directors are posted on our

website at www.convergys.com The Company witi post on

our website any amendments to or waivers of the Code of

Business Conduct and Financial Code of Ethics Copies of

these documents also will be provided free of charge upon

written request directed to Investor Relations Convergys

Corporation 201 East Fourth Street Cincinnati Ohio

45202

Business Segments

Prior to June 2010 we had three reportable segments

Customer Management Information Management and

Human Resources Management HR Management In

March 2010 we signed definitive agreement to sell the

HR Management line of business to NorthgateArinso The

sale substantially closed on June 2010 and was

completed by the end of 2010 As result of the sale of

the HR Management line of business the operating results

and assets and liabilities related to HR Management have

been reflected as discontinued operations for all periods

presented

As result our business operates in two segments

Customer Management which provides agent-assisted

services as well as self-service and technology solutions

and Information Management which provides business

support system BSS solutions These segments are

consistent with the Companys management of the busi

ness and reflect its internal financial reporting structure

and operating focus The Board of Directors continually

monitors the Companys business and as appropriate

evaluates various strategies to enhance shareholder value

including by means of strategic transactions involving one

or more of its businesses Any such transactions could

occur in the future and could be material although there

can be no assurance that such transactions will occur

The industry segment and geographic information

included in Item Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements is incorporated by reference in

partial response to this Item

Customer Management

Convergys Customer Management partners with clients to

deliver solutions that turn the customer experience into

strategic differentiator We combine skilled agents

analytics and technology to provide superior service

experience for our clients customers Our agent assisted

self-service and proactive care solutions are tailored to

markets including communications financial services

technology retail healthcare and government

Every day our center-based and work-at-home agents

handle approximately one million customer service inter

actions such as account service billing inquiries and

technical support We provide multilingual multichannel

customer care with global service delivery infrastructure

that operates 24 hours day 365 days year Our clients

benefit from our worldwide workforce located in the U.S

Canada Latin America Europe India and the Philippines

Our solution set includes

Customer Service

Customer Service Solutions include comprehensive care

tailored to meet our clients specific business needs and

designed to provide the end-user customer with an

optimal service experience Our customer care agents

typically handle inquiries on products account service

and billing as well as dispute resolution

Customer Retention

Customer Retention Solutions leverage analytics to

optimize the level of customer satisfaction build

customer loyalty and address customer attrition Our

programs are designed to help our clients retain their

customers and increase their lifetime value

Sales

Sales Solutions focus on securing new customers and

increasing revenue per contact using customized up-sell
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Item Business continued

and cross-sell strategies for consumers Our solutions

help increase offer rates and maximize sales conversions

rates In addition we offer Direct Response Solutions to

address the customer support needs of direct response

marketers

Technical Support

Technical Support Solutions include tier-one tier-two

and tier-three advanced services Either online or by

phone our services span from simple how-to inquiries

from new users to sophisticated trouble-shooting and

technical support with experience supporting hardware

software and IT infrastructure questions

Social Interaction

Social Interaction Solutions help clients leverage their

customers social media communications and take

customer engagement to new level With our frame

work clients can attract and retain customers by using

social media to complement traditional service channels

Collections Management

Collections Management supports all stages from

pre-treatment to post-charge-off We bring skilled

talent and analytics-based technology that focus on

accounts with the highest potential return to maximize

collections results

Back Office

Back Office Solutions include email chat and other

non-voice customer support services Examples include

correspondence processing account maintenance data

entry billing changes order provisioning and dispute

processing

Business-to-Business

Business-to-Business Solutions include inside sales and

account management marketing campaigns customer

service and self-service programs Focused on the needs

of the business-to-business market Convergys offers

way to expand the reach of our clients sales force by

working with current customers tapping new or under-

served markets or improving the effectiveness of

channel partnerships

Customer Experience Applied Analytics

Customer Experience Applied Analytics Solutions

combine analytic tools processes and expertise to

understand customers experiences and incorporate

operational changes to drive revenue reduce costs and

improve customer satisfaction Our practice focuses on

customer experience optimization satisfaction loyalty

research and integrated call center analytics

Intelligent Interactions Technology

Intelligent Interaction Solutions support the customer

interaction lifecycle from proactive service to self-

service to assisted service and include technologies

such as voice portals and speech automation real-time

decisioning web-based service channels identity

verification and enhanced analytics

Convergys technology portfolio is powered by

Intelligent Automation which uses our Dynamic Deci

sioning Solution platform to enable cost-effective

consistent customer interactions This solution captures

events evaluates policies and executes actions based

on these policies in real time

For flexibility we offer our clients wide range of

delivery options including on-demand hosted

on-premises or as managed service model

Information Management

Information Management provides convergent billing and

business support system BSS solutions and services that

help our clients configure and deploy mission-critical cost-

effective technologies to better understand sell to and

serve their customers These solutions which comprise

software partner products integration and business

consulting services draw on strong telecommunication

and cable heritage and operational expertise to enable

service providers to meet their business goals

The Information Management Smart Suite is organized

into three functional areas revenue management product

and order management and customer care management
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Revenue Management Solutions

Smart Solutions for revenue management enable the

creation of compelling service bundles to differentiate

offers in the marketplace Advanced real-time capabilities

drive revenue generation from all customer segments

regardless of payment type Our revenue management

solutions and software applications indude

Rating and Billing Manager

Rating and Billing Manager is highly scalable reliable

and fully convergent real-time charging rating and

billing management system Network and event

agnostic Rating and Billing Manager supports all

existing and next-generation services across multiple

vertical markets

Collections Manager

Collections Manager is an automated in-house collec

tions system that helps our clients collect outstanding

payments from their customers

Active Mediation

Active Mediation seamlessly bridges many protocols

and/or data formats to meet convergent mediation

business requirements

ICOMS

Convergys Integrated Communications Operations

Management System ICOMS provides end-to-end

billing
and subscriber management specifically for the

broadband convergent video high-speed data and

telephony markets

Product and Order Management Solutions

With Smart Solutions for product and order management

service providers are positioned to manage the increasing

complexity of growing and dynamic product and service

portfolio These solutions help clients quickly respond to

new market demands by launching new segment-specific

offers in alignment with their own pre-defined business

and service rules Convergys product and order manage

ment solutions and software applications include

Product Control Manager

Product Control Manager enables service providers to

effectively manage products across all network and

service domains shorten time-to-market for new

convergent offers and to reduce the costs associated

with managing complex product portfolio

Shopping and Ordering Solution

Convergys Shopping and Ordering Solution is designed

specifically to help service providers manage the

growing complexities of the shopping and order capture

process for convergent services

Service Fulfillment Manager

Service Fulfillment Manager is highly flexible solution

that orchestrates and manages order-handling activities

for all services

Service Activation Manager

Service Activation Manager provides fast reliable

services activation It is an adaptor platform that

activates any service on any network for any underlying

technology

Customer Care Management Solutions

Smart Solutions for customer care management enable

service providers to deliver superior customer experi

ence These solutions provide significant flexibility
for

service providers to offer products and services through

any channel the customer chooses and to strike the

optimal balance of CSR and self-service care to increase

customer satisfaction loyalty and profits Convergys

customer care management solutions and software

applications include

Con vergys Smart Communications Suite powered

by Microsoft

result of the strategic relationship announced in

February 2010 between Convergys and Microsoft the

Convergys Smart Communications Suite powered by

Microsoft is comprehensive business support system

BSS that combines the Convergys proven Smart Suite

applications with Microsofts Leading technology and

CRM
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Item Business continued

capabilities Built and optimized for the global

communications and utilities markets the solution

supports true convergence regardless of service type

payment method delivery network and/or sales

model The suite is delivered and supported directly by

Convergys and our global network of preferred channel

partners

As part of the Smart Communications Suite Convergys

and Microsoft are jointly developing new applications

including the Convergys Customer Relationship Manager

CRM Built on two proven solutions the Microsoft

Dynamics CRM 2011 and the Convergys next-generation

Shopping Ordering the Convergys CRM is

pre-integrated and pre-configured operational CRM that

supports Marketing Sales and Customer Service in

single CRM solution with 360-degree view of the

customer

Customer Service Manager

Customer Service Manager provides automated

end-to-end order orchestration and sophisticated

human factors engineering to meet and exceed

subscriber order and customer care needs

Inventory Manager

Inventory Manager provides enterprise-wide function

ality
to ensure comprehensive centralized insight into

widespread logical and physical inventory items

throughout the inventory lifecycle

Field Service Manager

Field Service Manager enables service providers to

predict service demand then plan schedule and

execute service delivery to maximize value across their

extended enterprise

Dynamic Decisioning and Customer Intelligence

Solution

Convergys unique Dynamic Decisioning and Customer

Intelligence Solution enables service providers to drive

more personalized customer interactions and empower

CSRs with real-time decision-making tools and policy

engine

Managed Billing Services

Convergys Managed Billing Services is cost-efficient way

of modernizing billing and customer care infrastructure to

drive revenues and enrich customer experience These

services enable service operators to minimize capital

expenditures make IT operational costs more predictable

streamline system administration and boost organiza

tional productivity and effectiveness

To match the different business requirements of our

clients Convergys offers two managed billing models for

these services

Hosted Managed Billing Services where

infrastructure is located at Convergys data

centers and software and services are

completely managed by Convergys employees

24 hours day seven days week

Managed Billing Services Client-hosted

Operations where our client owns the infra

structure and Convergys provides complete

operational support for all applications

Strategy

Our strategy is to enable our clients to gain more value

from their relationships with their customers We do this

by providing clients comprehensive relationship manage

ment solutions The value we create drives improved

business performance and sustainable competitive

advantage for our clients Key elements of our strategy

include

Deliver Thfferentiated Value Proposition to Clients As

global leader in relationship management Convergys

provides solutions that drive more value from the

relationships our clients have with their customers

Convergys turns these everyday customer interactions into

source of profit and strategic advantage for our clients

Our differentiated customer management and revenue

management solutions include comprehensive suite of

products and services Our customer management

solutions combine skilled agents staffed around the world

our deep expertise in analytics and customer management

processes and global infrastructure of technology i.e
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speech IVR web and e-mail to enable intelligent

handling of customer interactions We offer variety of

delivery models for our customer management solutions

including outsourced services on-shore off-shore or

home agent and hosted infrastructure on-premises or

off-premises Our revenue management solutions address

the critical revenue product and order management and

customer care needs of clients in the communications and

utilities industries We serve diverse and loyal client

base including many Fortune 50 and other large multina

tional enterprises in host of industries with concen

tration in the telecommunications financial services

technology retail healthcare and government verticals

Invest in Our Business to Expand our Addressable Markets

and Strengthen our Solutions Our strategy is to continue

to broaden our portfolio of capabilities in order to provide

our clients with comprehensive relationship management

solutions We continue to invest in the business because

we operate in attractive markets where we believe we can

effectively provide differentiated value We intend to

expand our capabilities technology partners workiorce

and operations globally to strengthen our ability to satisfy

the demands of our multinational clients

Expand Our Relationships with Existing Clients and

Aggressively Grow Our Client Base We focus on delivering

good value to our clients to maintain and grow our base

business and maximize our return on our sales marketing

and RD investments Our intent is to grow by cross-

selling and expanding our solutions footprint within our

clients organization Our client renewal rates are high

reflecting high degree of satisfaction and stability in our

client base We believe that the global market for

relationship management solutions is large and under-

served and we intend to continue to pursue new client

opportunities within this market

Sustain Our High-Performance Culture to Drive Business

Results We believe that people drive performance and we

are committed to hiring and retaining the best performers

worldwide and ensuring that they are committed to the

success of our clients Our competencies include our

proven strength in recruiting training equipping

deploying and effectively managing very large groups of

people with diverse skills on global basis

Clients

Both our Customer Management and Information Manage

ment segments derive significant revenues from ATT Inc

ATT our largest client Revenues from ATT were

2l.ô/o 2l.4/o and 23.l/o of our consolidated revenues for

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively The Customer

Management segment also derives significant revenues

from Comcast Corporation Comcast and the DIRECTV

Group Inc DIRECTV Revenues from Comcast were

IO.2/o 7.3% and 7.2/o of our consolidated revenues for

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively while revenues from

DIRECTV were 1O.1Io 8.9/u and 8.4/o for the same peri

ods

Customer Management

Our Customer Management segment principally focuses on

developing long-term strategic outsourcing relationships

with large companies in customer-intensive industries and

governmental agencies We focus on these types of clients

because of the complexity of services required the antici

pated growth of their market segments and their

increasing need for more cost-effective customer

management services In terms of Convergys revenues

our largest Customer Management clients during 2011

were ATT Comcast DIRECTV the United States Postal

Service and Citigroup

Information Management

Our Information Management segment serves clients

principally by providing and managing complex BSS

services that address all segments of the communications

industry In terms of Convergys revenues our largest

Information Management clients during 2011 were ATT

Time Warner Inc Cricket Communications Inc Vivo

Participacoes SA and Cincinnati Bell Inc

Operations

We operate 69 contact centers averaging approximately

70000 square feet per center We have approximately

43000 production workstations and provide service 24
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Item Business continued

hours day 365 days year Our contact centers are

located in various parts of the world including the United

States the Philippines India Canada the U.K Costa Rica

and Colombia New contact centers are established to

accommodate anticipated growth in business or in

response to specific customer need We continue to add

contact center capacity in the Philippines and Latin

America to accommodate client needs

Our contact centers employ broad range of technology

including digital switching intelligent call routing and

tracking proprietary workforce management systems case

management tools proprietary software systems

computer telephony integration interactive voice

response advanced speech recognition web-based tools

and relational database management systems This

technology enables us to improve our call web and e-mail

handling and personnel scheduling thereby increasing our

efficiency and enhancing the quality of the services we

deliver to our clients and their customers and employees

With this technology we are able to respond to changes

in client call volumes and move call volume traffic based

on agent availability Additionally we use this technology

to collect information concerning the contacts including

number response time duration and results of the

contact This information is reported to the client on

periodic basis for purposes of monitoring quality of service

and accuracy of the related billing

We operate two primary data centers one in Orlando

Florida and the other in Cincinnati Ohio comprising in

total approximately 170000 square feet of space Our

technologically advanced data centers provide 24 hours

day 365 days year availability with redundant power

and communication feeds and emergency power back-up

and are designed to withstand most natural disasters

The capacity of our data center and contact center oper

ations coupled with the scalability of our BSS and

customer management solutions enable us to meet initial

and ongoing needs of large-scale and rapidly growing

companies and government entities By employing the

scale and efficiencies of common application platforms

we are able to provide client-specific enhancements and

modifications without incurring many of the costs of full

custom application This allows us to be in position to

be value-added provider of billing customer and

employee support products and services

Technology Research and Development

We will continue to emphasize the design development

and deployment of scalable billing and customer

management solutions During 2011 2010 and 2009 we

spent $49.3 $56.2 and $74.2 respectively for research

and development to advance the functionality flexibility

and scalability of our products and services The majority

of this spending has been incurred in Information

Management and reflects our commitment to further

develop our solutions To drive down costs we continue

to leverage our off-shore capabilities and focus on

development activities that have the highest impact for

our clients For our Customer Management segment

success depends in part on our advanced technology

used in the delivery of services to clients As result we

continue to invest in the enhancement and development

of our contact center technology

Our intellectual property consists primarily of business

methods and software systems To protect our proprietary

rights we rely primarily on combination of U.S and

foreign copyright trade secret and trademark laws

confidentiality agreements with employees and third

parties and protective contractual provisions such as those

contained in licenses and other agreements with

consultants suppliers strategic partners and clients

We own 166 patents 141 of which relate to Customer

Management and 25 of which relate to Information

Management Patents protect our technology and business

methods that we use both to manage our internal systems

and processes effectively and give us competitive advan

tages in developing innovative technologies to provide

customer management and billing services to our clients

The first of these patents was issued in September 1993

while the most recent patent was granted in November

2011 These patents generally have life of 17 years
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Item continued and 1A

although the life for some patents issued before June

1995 can extend to approximately 20 years in certain

instances Additional applications for U.S and foreign

patents currently are pending

Our name and logo and the names of our primary software

products are protected by their historic use and by

trademarks and service marks that are registered or

pending in the U.S Patent and Trademark Office and

under the laws of more than 50 foreign countries

Employees

As of December 31 2011 we employed approximately

77000 people approximately 73000 of whom work for

Customer Management approximately 2500 of whom work

for Information Management with the remainder working

in various corporate functions

Competition

The industries in which we operate are extremely

competitive Our competitors include other customer

management companies such as APAC Customer Services

Inc IBM SITEL Corp Stream Global Services Inc Sykes

Enterprises Inc Teleperformance TeleTech Holdings Inc

and West Corporation and ii other BSS services compa

nies such as Amdocs Ltd Comverse Technology Inc

Oracle Corporation and CSG Systems International Inc In

addition niche providers or new entrants can enter the

market by developing new systems or services that could

impact our business

Interests in Cellular Partnerships

On July 2011 the Company completed the sale of its

33.8/o limited partnership interest in the Cincinnati SMSA

Limited Partnership and its 45.OO/o interest in the Cincin

nati SMSA Tower Holdings LLC collectively referred to as

the Cellular Partnerships to ATT ATT is the general

and limited partner of both Cellular Partnerships with

partnership interest prior to Convergys sale of its interests

of approximately 66% and 53/o respectively The Cincin

nati SMSA Limited Partnership is provider of wireless

communications in central and southwestern Ohio and

northern Kentucky and the Cincinnati SMSA Tower Hold-

ings LLC is an operator of cellular tower space The

Company received approximately $320.0 in cash proceeds

upon closing The Companys interests in the Cellular

Partnerships did not qualify as discontinued operations

therefore the gain has been reported within income from

continuing operations and no reclassification of prior

results is required The gain on sale of its interests in the

Cellular Partnerships was $265.0 or $171.8 net of tax

Refer to Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for more details related to the sale of the

Companys interests in the Cellular Partnerships

Item 1A Risk Factors

General economic and market conditions may adversely

affect our business results of operation and financial

condition

Our results of operations are affected directly by the level

of business activity of our clients which in turn is

affected by the level of economic activity in the industries

and markets that they serve Future economic slowdowns

in some markets particularly in the United States may

cause reductions in spending by our clients which may

result in reductions in the growth of new business as well

as reductions in existing business There can be no

assurance that weakening economic conditions

throughout the world will not adversely impact our results

of operations and financial condition

If our clients are not successful or the trend towards

outsourcing does not continue the amount of business that

our clients outsource and the prices that they are willing to

pay for such seivices may diminish and could adversely

affect our business

Our revenues depend on the success of our clients If our

clients or their specific programs are not successful the

amount of business that they outsource may be dimin

ished Although many of our contracts contain minimum

revenue commitments to provide services to our clients

there can be no assurance that the level of revenues

generated by such contracts will meet expectations
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Item 1k Risk Factors continued

reduction in the amount of business we receive from our

clients could result in stranded capacity and additional

costs In addition we may face pricing pressure from

clients which could negatively affect our operating

results

Growth of our revenues depends in large part on the

trend toward outsourcing particularly as it relates to our

Customer Management operations Outsourcing involves

companies contracting with third party such as

Convergys to provide customer management services

rather than performing such services in-house There can

be no assurance that this trend will continue as orga

nizations may elect to perform such services in-house

significant change in this trend could have materially

adverse effect on our financial condition and results of

operations

large portion of our revenue is generated from limited

number of clients and the loss of significant work from one

or more of our clients could adversely affect our business

Our three largest clients as discussed under the section

above titled Client Concentration collectively repre

sented 41.9% of our revenues for 2011 While we typically

have multiple work orders and/or contracts with our

largest customers which would not all terminate at the

same time the loss of one or more of the larger work

orders or contracts with one of our largest clients could

adversely affect our business results of operations and

financial condition if the lost revenues were not replaced

with profitable revenues from that client or other clients

Our business is substantially dependent on the condition of

the global communications industry

Approximately 65/o of our revenues in 2011 was received

from customers operating in the global communications

industry The global communications industry in the past

has experienced significant fluctuations in growth rates

and capital investment and it is impossible to predict its

future performance Our revenues and earnings could be

adversely affected by general weakness or slowdown in

the communications industry

We process transmit and store personally identifiable

information and unauthorized access to or the unintended

release of this information could result in claim for

damage or loss of business and create unfavorable publicity

We process transmit and store personally identifiable

information both in our role as service provider and as

an employer This information may include social security

numbers financial and health information as well as

other personal information As result we are subject to

certain contractual terms as well as federal state and

foreign laws and regulations designed to protect person

ally identifiable information While we take measures to

protect the security and privacy of this information and to

prevent unauthorized access it is possible that our secu

rity controls over personal data and other practices we

follow may not prevent the improper access to or

disclosure of personally identifiable information If any

person including any of our employees negligently

disregards or intentionally breaches our established

controls with respect to such data or otherwise misman

ages or misappropriates that data we could be subject to

monetary damages fines and/or criminal prosecution

Unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidential client

or customer data whether through system failure

employee negligence fraud or misappropriation could

damage our reputation and cause us to lose clients

Similarly unauthorized access to or through our

information systems or those we develop for clients

whether by our employees or third parties could result in

negative publicity legal liability and damage to our

reputation business results of operations and financial

condition

Interruption of our data centers and contact centers could

have materially adverse effect on our business

In the event that we experience temporary or permanent

interruption at one or more of our data or contact centers

through natural disaster casualty operating malfunction

cyber attack sabotage or other causes we may be unable

to provide the data services we are contractually obligated

to deliver This could result in us being required to pay

10 Convergys Corporation 2011 Annual Report



contractual damages to some clients or to allow some

clients to terminate or renegotiate their contracts

Notwithstanding disaster recovery and business continuity

plans and precautions instituted to protect our clients and

us from events that could interrupt delivery of services

including property and business interruption insurance

that we maintain there is no guarantee that such inter

ruptions would not result in prolonged interruption in

our ability to provide support services to our clients or

that such precautions would adequately compensate us for

any losses we may incur as resuft of such interruptions

Natural events war terrorist attacks other civil

disturbances and epidemics could disrupt our operations or

lead to economic weakness in the countries in which we

operate resulting in decrease of our revenues earnings

and cash flow

Natural events such as floods and earthquakes war

terrorist attacks and epidemics of contagious illness could

disrupt our operations in the U.S and abroad and could

lead to economic weakness in the countries in which they

occur We have substantial operations in countries such as

the Philippines that have been subject to severe natural

events such as earthquakes and floods in the past Such

disruptions could cause service interruptions or reduce the

quality level of the services that we provide resulting in

reduction of our revenues earnings and cash flow and the

payment of contractual penalties to our customers These

events may also cause our clients to reconsider their use

of our services

Our ability to deliver our services is at risk if the technology

and network equipment that we rely upon is not maintained

or upgraded in timely manner

Technology is critical foundation in our service delivery

We utilize and deploy internally developed and third party

software solutions across various hardware environments

We operate an extensive internal voice and data network

that links our global sites together in multi-hub model

that enables the rerouting of traffic Also we rely on

multiple public communication channels for connectivity

to our clients Our clients are highly dependent upon the

high availability and uncompromised security of our

systems These systems are subject to the risk of an

extended interruption or outage due to many factors such

as system failures acts of nature and intentional

unauthorized attacks from third parties Accordingly

maintenance of and investment in these foundational

components are critical to our success If the reliability of

our technology or network operations falls below required

service levels or systemic fault affects the organization

broadly we may be obligated to pay performance penal

ties to our customers and our business from existing and

potential clients may be jeopardized and cause our

revenue and cash flow to decrease

Our earnings are affected by changes in foreign currency

Our Customer Management business serves an increasing

number of its U.S.-based clients using contact center

capacity in the Philippines India Latin America and

Canada More than half of our approximately 73000

contact center employees are located outside the United

States Although the contracts with these clients are

typically priced in U.S dollars substantial portion of the

costs incurred by Customer Management to render services

under these contracts is denominated in Philippine pesos

Indian rupees Canadian dollars or Colombian pesos which

represents foreign exchange exposure to the Company

We enter into forward exchange contracts and options to

limit potential foreign currency exposure As the U.S

dollar weakens the operating expenses of these contact

centers translated into U.S dollars increase It is

intended that the increase in operating expenses will be

partially offset by gains realized through the settlement of

the hedged instruments As the derivative instruments

that limit our potential foreign currency exposures are

entered into over period of several years the overall

impact to earnings will be determined by both the timing

of the derivative instruments and the movement of the

U.S dollar In addition to the impact on our operating

expenses
that support dollar-denominated Customer

Management contracts changes in foreign currency
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Item 1A Risk Factors continued

impact the results of our international business units that

are located outside of North America While we monitor

the creditworthiness of the counterparties to our foreign

currency hedges the counterparties to our hedge trans

actions are financial institutions or affiliates of financial

institutions and we are subject to risks that these

counterparties become insolvent and fail to perform their

financial obligations under these hedge transactions Our

hedging exposure to counterparty credit risk is not

secured by any collateral

The cash we hold may be subject to counterparty credit risk

and we may not be able to repatriate to the U.S cash held

in foreign accounts without paying taxes

While we continuously monitor the creditworthiness of the

institutions holding our cash the recent global economic

and credit crisis has weakened the creditworthiness of

many financial institutions If one or more of the

institutions holding our cash were to experience cash flow

problems or were to become subject to insolvency

proceedings we may not be able to recover some or all of

our deposited cash As of December 31 2011 approx

imately 500/o of our cash balances of $421.8 million was

held in accounts outside of the United States some of

which would be subject to additional taxes if repatriated

to the United States

We may not be able to predict our future tax liabilities If

we become subject to increased levels of taxation or tax

contingencies are resolved adversely our results of oper

ations and financial condition could be adversely affected

Due to the international nature of our operations we are

subject to the complex and varying tax laws and rules of

several foreign jurisdictions We may not be able to

predict the amount of future tax liabilities to which we

may become subject due to some of these complexities if

our positions are challenged by local tax authorities Any

increase in the amount of taxation incurred as result of

challenges to our tax filing positions or due to legislative

or regulatory changes could result in material adverse

effect on our business results of operations and financial

condition We are subject to tax audits including issues

related to transfer pricing in the United States and other

jurisdictions We have material tax-related contingent

liabilities that are difficult to predict or quantify While

we believe that our current tax provisions are reasonable

and appropriate we cannot be assured that these items

will be settled for the amounts accrued or that additional

exposures will not be identified in the future or that

additional tax reserves will not be provided for any such

exposures

Our results of operations could be adversely affected by

litigation and other commitments and contingencies

The Company faces risks arising from various unasserted

and asserted litigation matters including but not limited

to commercial securities law tax and patent infringe

ment claims Unfavorable outcomes in pending litigation

or in future litigation could negatively affect us

In the ordinary course of business we may make certain

commitments including representations warranties and

indemnities reLating to current and past operations and

divested businesses and issue guarantees of third party

obligations The amounts of such commitments can only

be estimated and the actual amounts may differ materi

ally
from our estimates

If we were required to make payments as result of any of

these matters and they exceed the amounts accrued this

could adversely affect our business results of operations

and financial condition

We are susceptible to business and political risks from

international operations that could result in reduced

revenues or earnings

We operate global business and have facilities located

throughout North and South America Europe the Middle

East and the Asian Pacific region In addition as North

American companies require additional off-shore customer

management outsourcing capacity we expect to continue

expansion through start-up operations and acquisitions in

foreign countries Expansion of our existing international
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operations and entry into additional countries will require

management attention and financial resources There are

certain risks inherent in conducting business internation

ally including exposure to currency fluctuations longer

payment cycles greater difficulties in accounts receivable

collection difficulties in complying with variety of

foreign laws changes in legal or reguatory requirements

difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations

inflation political instability compliance with the Foreign

Corrupt Practices Act and other anti-corruption legislation

and potentially adverse tax consequences To the extent

that we are adversely affected by these risks our business

could be adversely affected and our revenues and/or

earnings could be reduced

Our business is subject to many regulatory requirements

and current or future regulation could significantly increase

our cost of doing business

Our business is subject to many laws and regulatory

requirements in the United States and the foreign coun

tries in which we operate covering such matters as labor

relations health care requirements trade restrictions

tariffs taxation sanctions data privacy consumer

protection internal and disclosure control obligations

governmental affairs and immigration In the U.S as well

as several of the other countries in which we operate

some of our services must comply with various laws and

regulations regarding the method and timing of placing

outbound telephone calls and the recording or monitoring

of telephone calls Many of these regulations including

those related to data privacy are frequently changing and

sometimes conflict among the various jurisdictions and

countries in which we provide services Violations of these

laws and regulations some of which can be conflicting

could result in liability for damages fines criminal

prosecution unfavorable publicity and restrictions on our

ability to operate Our failure to adhere to or successfully

implement processes in response to changing regulatory

requirements in this area could result in legal liability or

impairment to our reputation in the marketplace which

could have material adverse effect on our business

results of operations and financial condition

Because substantial portion of our operating costs

consist of labor costs changes in governmental regu

lations particularly in the foreign jurisdictions in which

we operate relating to wages healthcare and healthcare

reform and other benefits or employment taxes could have

material adverse effect on our business results of

operations or financial condition

In addition there has been political discussion and

debate related to worldwide competitive sourcing abor

related legislation and information-flow restrictions

particularly from the United States to off-shore locations

Federal and state legislation has been proposed that if

enacted could restrict or discourage U.S companies from

outsourcing services outside of the U.S Future legislation

if enacted could have an adverse effect on our business

results of operations and financial condition

Our failure to successfully acquire and integrate businesses

could cause our business to suffer

We consider acquisitions particularly international acquis

itions to be part of our growth strategy therefore our

expansion and growth will be dependent in part on our

ability to successfully make acquisitions We may not be

able to identify and acquire appropriate acquisition

candidates In addition there is risk that we may not be

able to successfully integrate acquired businesses and that

acquired businesses might significantly under-perform

relative to our expectations If an acquisition is not

successful our revenues and profitability and reputation

could be adversely affected

Our business performance and growth plans may be

negatively affected we are unable to effectively manage

changes in the application and use of technology

The utilization of technology in our industry has and will

continue to increase rapidly Our future success depends

in part upon our ability to develop and implement

technology solutions that anticipate and keep pace with

continuing changes in technology industry standards and

client preferences We may not be successful in
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Item 1A Risk Factors continued

anticipating or responding to these developments on

timely and cost-effective basis and our ideas may not be

accepted in the marketplace Additionally the effort to

gain technological expertise and develop new tech

nologies in our business requires us to incur significant

expenses If we cannot offer new technologies as quickly

as our competitors or if our competitors develop more

cost-effective technologies it could have material

adverse effect on our ability to obtain and complete

customer engagements Also if customer preferences for

technology disproportionately outpace other interaction

preferences it could have material adverse impact on

our revenue profile and growth plans

Defects or errors within our software could adversely affect

our business

Design defects or software errors may delay software

introductions or reduce the satisfaction level of clients

and may have materially adverse effect on our business

and results of operations Our software is highly complex

and may from time to time contain design defects or

software errors that may be difficult to detect and/or

correct Since both our clients and we use our software to

perform critical business functions design defects

software errors or other potential problems within or

outside of our control may arise from the use of our

software It may also result in financial or other damages

to our clients for which we may be held responsible

Although our license agreements with our clients may

often contain provisions designed to limit our exposure to

potential claims and liabilities arising from client prob

lems these provisions may not effectively protect us

against such claims in all cases and in all jurisdictions

Claims and liabilities arising from client problems could

result in monetary damages to us and could cause damage

to our reputation adversely affecting our business results

of operations and financial condition

If we do not effectively manage our capacity our results of

operations could be adversely affected

Our ability to profit from the global trend toward

outsourcing depends largely on how effectively we manage

our Customer Management contact center capacity In

order to create the additional capacity necessary to

accommodate new or expanded outsourcing projects we

may need to open new contact centers The opening or

expansion of contact center may result at least in the

short term in idle capacity until we fully implement the

new or expanded program Expanded use of home agents

is helping to mitigate this risk We periodically assess the

expected long-term capacity utilization of our contact

centers As result we may if deemed necessary

consolidate close or partially close under-performing

contact centers to maintain or improve targeted

utilization and margins There can be no guarantee that

we will be able to achieve or maintain optimal utilization

of our contact center capacity

We also may experience short-term and/or longer-term

fluctuations in client demand for services performed in

one or more of our contact centers Short term downward

fluctuations may result in less than optimal site utilization

for period of time Longer-term downward fluctuations

may result in site closures As result we may not

achieve or maintain targeted site utilization levels or site

utilization levels may decrease over certain periods and

our profitability may suffer as result

The scope size and complexity of implementations in our

Information Management business could cause delays and

cost overruns in those projects which could adversely affect

our business results of operations and financial condition

Our large Information Management contracts may be

complex as they can involve multiple elements including

software development and implementation data migra

tion training and support and maintenance services The

implementation of certain contracts can take in excess of

year to complete Due to the complexity of the

implementations and changes in customer requirements
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implementation cost overruns and delays are possible

Cost overruns can result in additional expense during the

implementation period and over the life of the contract

which would likely
affect the profitability of the contract

and potentially result in charges In addition delays in

completing the implementations can cause us to recognize

revenue and profit from the contracts later than we

anticipated when the initial contract was signed

large portion of our accounts receivable is payable by

limited number of clients and the inability of any of these

clients to pay its accounts receivable could adversely affect

our business

Because large portion of our revenue is generated from

limited number of clients we often carry significant

accounts receivable balances from our clients While we

closely monitor these balances if significant client were

financially unable or unwilling for any reason to pay our

accounts receivable our income and cash flow would

decrease We have several important clients that are in

industries including automotive that have been severely

impacted by the current global economic slowdown In

addition our income could be materially impacted by

number of small clients declaring bankruptcy within

short period of time

Our accounting for our long-term contracts requires using

estimates and projections that may change over time Such

changes may have significant or adverse effect on our

reported results of operations and Consolidated Balance

Sheet

Projecting contract profitability on our long-term

outsourcing contracts requires us to make assumptions

and estimates of future contract results All estimates are

inherently uncertain and subject to change In an effort to

maintain appropriate estimates we review each of our

long-term outsourcing contracts the related contract

reserves and intangible assets on regular basis If we

determine that we need to change our estimates for

contract we will change the estimates in the period in

which the determination is made These assumptions and

estimates involve the exercise of judgment and discretion

which may also evolve over time in light of operational

experience regulatory direction developments in

accounting principles and other factors Further initially

foreseen effects could change over time as result of

changes in assumptions estimates or developments in the

business or the application of accounting principles

related to long-term outsourcing contracts Any such

changes may have significant or adverse effect on our

reported results of operations and Consolidated Balance

Sheet

We may incur material restructuring charges in the future

In the past we have recorded restructuring charges

related to involuntary employee terminations various

facility abandonments and various other restructuring

activities We continually evaluate ways to reduce our

operating expenses through new restructuring oppor

tunities including more effective utilization of our assets

workforce and operating facilities In addition changing

industry and market conditions may dictate strategic

decisions to restructure some business units and

discontinue others As result there is risk which is

increased during economic downturns and with expanded

global operations that we may incur material

restructuring charges in the future

We may incur additional non-cash goodwill impairment

charges in the future

As described in Note of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements we test goodwill for impairment

annually as of October and at other times if events have

occurred or circumstances exist that indicates the carrying

value of goodwill may no longer be recoverable In the

fourth quarter of 2010 the Company recorded non-cash

goodwill impairment charge of $166.5 There can be no

assurances that we will not incur charges in the future

particularly in the event of prolonged economic slow

down
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Item IA Risk Factors continued

Our controls and procedures may not prevent or detect all

errors or acts of fraud

Any disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls

and procedures no matter how well conceived and oper

ated can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance

that the objectives of the control system are met In

addition the design of controls must consider the bene

fits of controls relative to their costs Controls cannot

assure that no judgments in decision-making will be faulty

or that breakdowns will not occur because of simple error

or mistake Additionally controls can be circumvented by

the individual acts of some persons by collusion of two or

more people or by an unauthorized override of the

controls While controls are designed with the intent of

providing reasonable assurance of the effectiveness of the

controls such design is also based in part upon certain

assumptions about the likelihood of future events and

such assumptions while reasonable may not take into

account all potential future conditions Accordingly

because of the inherent limitations in cost effective

control system misstatements due to error or fraud may

occur and
may not be prevented or detected and we could

lose investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness

of our financial reports and other disclosures which could

have an adverse effect on our stock price

The outsourcing and consulting markets in which we operate

include large number of seriice providers and are highly

competitive

Many of our competitors are expanding the services they

offer in an attempt to gain additional business In addi

tion new competitors alliances among competitors or

mergers of competitors could emerge and gain significant

market share and some of our competitors may have or

may develop lower cost structure adopt more aggressive

pricing policies or provide services that gain greater

market acceptance than the services that we offer or

develop Large and well-capitalized competitors may be

able to better respond to the need for technological

changes faster price their services more aggressively

compete for skilled professionals finance acquisitions

fund internal growth and compete for market share Our

customers routinely negotiate for better pricing and in

order to respond to increased competition and pricing

pressure we may be required to lower our pricing struc

ture which would have an adverse effect on our revenues

and profit margin

Many of our client contracts require long selling cycle that

can require significant resource commitments

We have long selling cycle for our services for new

clients which requires us to expend substantial time and

resources educating them as to the value of our services

and assessing the feasibility of integrating our systems

and processes with theirs and therefore requires

significant investment of capital resources and time by

both our clients and us Our selling cycle is subject to

many risks and delays over which we have little or no

control including our clients decision to choose alter

natives to our services such as other providers or

in-house offshore resources and the timing of our clients

budget cycles and approval processes

Client consolidations could result in loss of clients and

adversely affect our business

We serve clients in industries that have experienced

significant level of consolidation We cannot assure that

additional consolidations will not occur in which our

clients acquire additional businesses or are acquired

themselves Such consolidations may result in the termi

nation of an existing client contract which could have an

adverse effect on our business results of operations and

financial condition

Our success is subject to the terms of our client contracts

Most of our client contracts do not have minimum volume

requirements and the profitability of each client contract

or work order may fluctuate sometimes significantly

throughout various stages of the program Certain

contracts have performance-related bonus and/or penalty

provisions which provide that the client may be required

to pay us bonus or we may be required to issue the
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Item 1A continued lB

client credit based upon our meeting or failing to

meet agreed-upon service levels and performance metrics

Our objective is to sign multi-year contracts with our

clients however our contracts generally allow our client

to terminate the contract for convenience or to reduce the

amount of our services We cannot be assured that our

clients will not terminate their contracts before their

scheduled expiration date that the volume of services for

these programs will not be reduced or that we will be able

to avoid penalties or earn performance bonuses In addi

tion we cannot be assured that each client contract will

be profitable for us or that we will be able to terminate

unprofitable contracts without incurring significant

liabilities

If we are unable to hire or retain qualified personnel in

certain areas of our business our ability to execute our

business plans in those areas could be impaired and

revenues could decrease

We employ approximately 77000 employees worldwide At

times we have experienced difficulties in hiring personnel

with the desired levels of training or experience

Additionally in regard to the labor-intensive business of

Customer Management quality service depends on our

ability to retain employees and control personnel turn

over Any increase in the employee turnover rate could

increase recruiting and training costs and could decrease

operating effectiveness and productivity We may not be

able to continue to hire train and retain sufficient

number of qualified personnel to adequately staff new

client projects

The volatility of our stock price may result in loss of invest

ment

The trading price of our common shares has been and may

continue to be subject to substantial fluctuations over

short and long periods of time We believe that market

prices of outsourced customer contact management

services stocks in general have experienced volatility

which could affect the market price of our common stock

regardless of our financial results or performance We

further believe that various factors such as general

economic conditions changes or volatility in the financial

markets changing market conditions in the outsourced

customer contact management services industry quarterly

variations in our financial results the announcement of

acquisitions or divestitures strategic partnerships or new

product offerings and changes in financial estimates and

recommendations by securities analysts could cause the

market price of our common shares to fluctuate

substantially in the future

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

Our principal executive offices are located at 201 East

Fourth Street Cincinnati Ohio 45202 and the telephone

number at that address is 513 723-7000 We own our

corporate headquarters facility
in Cincinnati Ohio which

is used by the two segments office facilities in Jackson

ville Florida and Dallas Texas which are used predom

inantly by Customer Management and two call centers in

Pueblo Colorado and Ogden Utah which are used by

Customer Management

We lease space for offices data centers and contact

centers Domestic facilities are located in Arizona

California Colorado Florida Georgia Idaho Kansas

Kentucky Louisiana Missouri Nebraska New Mexico

North Carolina Ohio Oklahoma Tennessee Texas Utah

Virginia and Wisconsin International facilities are located

in Australia Brazil Canada China Colombia Costa Rica

Egypt England France Germany India Indonesia Israel

Netherlands the Philippines Scotland Singapore South

Africa Spain Sri Lanka Taiwan Thailand the United Arab

Emirates and Vietnam Upon the expiration or termination

of any such leases we believe we could obtain comparable

office space

We also lease some of the computer hardware computer

software and office equipment necessary to conduct our
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Item continued and

business In addition we own computer communications

equipment software and leasehold improvements We

depreciate these assets using the straight-line method

over the estimated useful lives of the assets Leasehold

improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their

estimated useful life or the term of the associated lease

We believe that our facilities and equipment are adequate

and have sufficient productive capacity to meet our

current needs

Item LegaL Proceedings

The information required by Item is included in Note 11

of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this

Form 10-K

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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Item 4A Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following information responds in part to the provi

sions of Part III Item 10

As of February 22 2012 our Executive Officers were

Name Age Title

Jeffrey Fox 49 President and Chief Executive

Officer

Earl Shanks 55 Chief Financial Officer

Julia Houston 41 Senior Vice President General

Counsel and Corporate

Secretary

Andrea Ayers 48 President and Chief Operating

Officer Customer Management

James Goetz 54 Chief Information Officer and

General Manager Global

Technology Solutions

Taylor Greenwald 44 Chief Accounting Officer Vice

President and Controller

Robert Lento 50 President Information

Management

Member of the Board of Directors

Officers are appointed annually but are removable at the

discretion of the Board of Directors

JEFFREY FOX President and Chief Executive Officer

since February 2010 Principal and former Chief Executive

Officer The Circumference Group LLC an investing and

advisory company focused on technology and the tele

communications business 20092010 Chief Operating

Officer AlItel Corporation U.S telecommunications

carrier 20072008 Group President Shared Service

Alitel Corporation 20032007

EARL SHANKS Chief Financial Officer since November

2003

JULIA HOUSTON Senior Vice President General

Counsel and Corporate Secretary since February 2011

Senior Vice President General Counsel Chief Compliance

Officer and Corporate Secretary Mirant Corporation

wholesale electricity generator 2009 2011 Senior Vice

President and Deputy General Counsel Mirant Corporation

20082009 Vice President Assistant General Counsel and

Corporate Secretary Mirant Corporation 20062008

ANDREA AYERS President and Chief Operating Officer

Customer Management since November 2010 President

Customer Management since April 2008 President Rela

tionship Technology Management 20072008 President

Government and New Markets 20052007

JAMES GOETZ Chief Information Officer and General

Manager of Global Technology Solutions since August

2008 Chief Information Officer ServiceMaster Company

multi-service company serving both residential and

commercial customers 20002007

TAYLOR GREENWALD Chief Accounting Officer since

February 2011 Vice President Controller since 2010 Vice

President of Finance Human Resources Management

20082010 Director of Finance 20062007 Director of

Investor Relations 20022005

ROBERT LENTO President Information Management

since August 2007 President Communications Technol

ogy Automotive Group 20032007
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PART II

Item Market for the Registrants Common Equity ReLated

Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Convergys Corporations common shares no par value are

listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol

CVG As of January 31 2012 there were 9347 holders

of record of the 115892561 common shares of

Convergys excluding amounts held in Treasury

185426779 outstanding common shares of Convergys of

which 69534218 were held in Treasury

The high low and closing prices of our common shares for

each quarter in 2011 and 2010 are listed below

Quarter 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

2011

High $15.00 $14.63 $14.09 $13.02

Low 13.17 12.27 9.01 8.49

CLose 14.36 13.64 9.38 12.77

2010

High 13.09 13.78 11.31 13.50

Low 10.57 9.76 9.50 10.53

Close 12.26 9.81 10.45 13.17

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common

shares Our Board of Directors re-evaluates this policy

periodically We repurchased 7.7 million of our common

shares for $96.8 million during 2011 as summarized in

the following table

Average

Shares price per

repurchased share

January 2011

February 2011 42809 13.94

March 2011 1343495 13.82

April 2011 368109 13.90

May 2011 338000 13.80

June 2011 775570 12.54

July 2011

August 2011

September 2011

October 2011

November 2011 4219400 11.94

December 2011 635976 12.20

Total 7723359 $12.53

At December 31 2011 the Company has the authority to

repurchase up to an incremental $162.7 million of

outstanding common shares The timing and terms of any

future transactions depend on number of considerations

including market conditions and our liquidity
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Item Market for the Registrants Common Equity ReLated

StockhoLder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities continued

Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph compares for the period from December 31 2006 through December 31 2011 the

percentage change of the cumulative total shareholder return on the Companys common shares with the cumulative total

return of the SP 500 Stock Index and the Custom Composite Index based on an initial investment of $100 on

December 31 2006 with dividends reinvested

$100

$0

12/06

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Among Convergys Corp SP 500
and Custom Composite Index

12/11

$j invested on 12/31/06 in stock or index including reinvestment of dividends

Fiscal year ending December 31

Dec-06 Dec-07 Dec-08 Dec-09 Dec-10 Dec-li

Convergys Corp $100.00 69.22 26.96 45.21 55.38 53.70

SP 500 $100.00 105.49 66.46 84.05 96.71 98.75

Custom Composite Index $100.00 85.45 46.91 70.22 66.24 60.60

The Custom Composite Index consists of Amdocs Limited Comverse Technology Inc CSG Systems International Inc Sykes

Enterprises mc Teleperformance and Teletech Holdings Inc

Copyright 2012 SP division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc All rights reserved
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Item SeLected Financial Data

Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Results of Operations

Revenues $2262.0 $2203.4 $2421.0 $2526.3 $2589.1

Costs and expenses 2093.7 2298.0 2319.8 2385.3 2329.9

Operating income loss 168.3 94.6 101.2 141.0 259.2

Earnings and gain from Celtutar Partnerships net 285.2 47.2 41.0 35.7 14.3

Other income expense net 9.8 8.9 17.2 16.2 4.2

Interest expense 16.1 19.5 28.9 22.5 16.8

Income toss before income taxes 447.2 58.0 96.1 170.4 260.9

Income tax expense 118.9 16.7 11.6 23.9 78.5

Income toss from continuing operations 328.3 74.7 84.5 146.5 182.4

Income toss from discontinued operations 6.5 21.5 161.8 239.4 12.9

Net income loss 334.8 53.2 77.3 92.9 169.5

Basic Earnings Loss per share

Continuing Operations 2.73 0.61 0.69 1.19 1.36

Discontinued Operations 0.06 0.18 1.32 1.94 0.10

Net basic earnings toss per share 2.79 0.43 0.63 0.75 1.26

Dituted Earnings Loss per share

Continuing Operations 2.67 0.61 0.68 1.16 1.32

Discontinued Operations 0.05 0.18 1.30 1.90 0.09

Net diluted earnings toss per share 2.72 0.43 0.62 0.74 1.23

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 120.2 123.1 122.8 123.5 134.1

Diluted 122.9 123.1 124.9 125.8 137.7

Financial Position

Total assets $2325.9 $2125.3 $2605.8 $2841.4 $2564.3

Totat debt and capitat tease obtigations 127.2 210.3 469.6 663.3 259.9

Sharehotders equity 1411.5 1184.1 1206.4 1150.1 1521.7

Other Data

Net cash ftows from operating activities

Operating activities of continuing operations 196.6 217.2 384.0 206.4 230.7

Operating activities of discontinued operations 23.0 79.3 25.1 12.0

196.6 194.2 304.7 231.5 218.7
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Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Net cash fLows provided by used in investing activities

Investing activities of continuing operations 222.1 69.3 74.5 $396.0 66.5

Investing activities of discontinued operations 70.0 3.5 8.3 17.1

222.1 0.7 78.0 $404.3 83.6

Net cash flows used in provided by financing activities

Financing activities of continuing operations $183.0 $340.5 $132.3 289.8 $250.7

Financing activities of discontinued operations 2.7 2.7

$183.0 $340.5 $135.0 292.5 $250.7

Free cash flow 31 108.3 127.9 229.8 139.4 117.4

EBITDA 559.8 68.9 246.2 313.9 390.6

Costs and expenses inclsde restructuring charges of $36.7 $43.3 $23.9 and $3.4 in 2010 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively and asset impairment charges of $181.1

$3.1 and $2.7 in 2010 2009 and 2007 respectively

Costs and
expenses

also include $9.1 $32.1 $26.5 and $23.9 in 2010 2009 2008 und 2007 respectively of certain costs previously allocated to the HR Management

segment that do not qualify as discontinued operations and are reported as costs from continuing operations The Company took actions to reduce these costs and

earned transition service revenue resulting from services being provided to the buyer subsequent to completion of the sale of HR Management to offset theve costs

Free cash flow is not defined under accounting principles generally accepted in United States u.s GAAP and is calculated as cash flows from operations less capital

expenditures net of proceeds from disposal The Company uses free cash flow to assess the financial performance of the Company Convergys Management believes

that free cash flow is useful to inveotom because it relates the operating cash flow of the Company to the capital that is spent to continue and improve business oper

ations such as investment in the Companys existing businesses Further free cash flow facilitates Managements ability to strengthen the Companys balance sheet to

repay
the Companys debt obligationu and to repurchase the Companys common shares Limitations associated with the use of free cash flow include that it does not

represent the residual cash flow available for discretionary expenditures us it does not incorporate certain cash payments including payments made on capital lease

obligations or cash payments for business acquisitions Free cash flow includes $10 paid during the second quarter of 2010 in connection with the refinancing of the

Orlando synthetic lease Management compensates for these limitations by using both the non-IIAAP measure free cash flow and the GAAP measure cash from

operating activities in its evaluation of performance There are no material purposes for which we use this non-GAAP measure beyond the
purposes

described above For

more detail and reconciliation of cash flows from operations to free cash flows see the Financial Condition Liquidity and Capital Resources section in Part Item

of this report

EBITDA is not defined under U.5 GAAP and ix calculated as income from continuing operationo plus tax expense interest expense deprecration and amortization The

Company uses EBITDA to monitor and evaluate the performance of the businexo and believes the presentation of this measure will enhance the investors ability to

analyze trends in the business and evaluate the Companys underlying performance relative to other companies in the industry The Company also utilizes EBITDA in the

calculations for certain employee incentive compensation plans EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as substitute for income from continuing operations

net of tax or other income statement data prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP and our presentation of EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures

used by other companies Management uses the non-GAAP measure EBITDA and the U5 GAAP measure incomn from continuing operations net of tax in evaluation

of its underlying performance There are no material purposes for which we use the non-GAAP measure beyond the purposes described above The non-GAAP measure

should be conoidered supplemental in nature and should not be considered in isolation or be construed as being more important than comparable IIAAP measures For

more detail and reconciliation of income from continuing operations net of tax to EBITDA see the Finantiul Condition Liquidity and Capital Resources section in

Part Item of this report

Discontinued operations includes the historical finantial rnoults of the HR Management line of business excluding certain costs referred to in note above that did

not meet the criteria for ouch presentation
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Item Managements Discussion and AnaLysis

of Financial Condition and ResuLts of Operations

Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts

Overview

Convergys Corporation the Company or Convergys is

global leader in relationship management We provide

solutions that drive value from the relationships our

clients have with their customers We turn these everyday

interactions into source of profit and strategic advan

tage for our clients For over 25 years our unique

combination of domain expertise operational excellence

and innovative technologies has delivered process

improvement and actionable business insight to clients to

enhance their relationship with customers

Prior to June 2010 we had three reportable segments

Customer Management Information Management and

Human Resources Management HR Management In

March 2010 we signed definitive agreement to sell the

HR Management line of business to NorthgateArinso for

approximately $100 with $85 in cash at closing and $15

in cash over three years The sale substantially closed on

June 2010 for which we received approximately $80 in

cash as well as zero coupon note in the principal amount

of $15 The sales of certain foreign operations of the HR

Management business completed during the third and

fourth quarters of 2010 resulted in receipt of an addi

tional $5 in cash Final settlement of working capital

adjustments resulted in cash payments to NorthgateArinso

of approximately $7 during the fourth quarter of 2010 In

connection with the sale of the HR Management line of

business we reorganized our reportable segments into two

segments Customer Management which provides agent-

assisted services self-service and intelligent technology

care solutions and Information Management which

provides business support system BSS solutions See

Note 16 for information about these segments

As result of the sale of the HR Management line of

business the operating results and assets and liabilities

related to HR Management have been reflected as

discontinued operations for all periods presented Certain

costs previously allocated to the HR Management segment

that do not qualify for discontinued operations accounting

treatment are now reported as costs from continuing

operations within Corporate and Other These costs

previously allocated to HR Management that are now

included in Corporate and Other within selling general

and administrative costs were $9.1 and $32.1 for the years

ending December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Beginning June 2010 we began earning transition

services revenues for services provided to the buyer under

agreements lasting from three to eighteen months

Through the end of 2011 we earned $38.4 in revenue

under these transition services agreements subsequent to

the close of the sale These revenues are reflected in

Corporate and Other and largely offset the related costs

described above incurred subsequent to June 2010

While the length of the transition services agreements

vary depending upon the type of service provided we

have taken and continue to take actions to reduce these

costs and our expectation is that we will eliminate the

underlying costs as the transition services are completed

The total gain on the sale of HR Management amounted to

$35.2 pretax and $5.6 after-tax at December 31

2010 The sale of HR Management was taxable trans

action that resulted in $29.6 being recorded for the

combined federal state and foreign income tax obligation

in 2010 Subsequently in 2011 $6.5 reduction to the

tax on the gain on this transaction was recorded and has

been reflected in Discontinued Operations The high

effective tax rate on the transaction was largely due to

substantially lower tax basis in goodwill as compared to

book value

Customer Management

Our Customer Management segment which accounted for

approximately 85/o of our consolidated revenues in 2011

partners with clients to deliver customer care solutions

that enhance the value of their customer relationships As

an end-to-end single-source provider of self-service

agent-assisted and proactive care solutions we combine

consulting innovative technology and agent-assisted

services to optimize the customer experience and

strengthen customer relationships
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Agent-related revenues which account for approximately

900/0 of Customer Management revenues for 2011 are

typically recognized as services are performed based on

staffing hours or the number of contacts handled by

service agents using contractual rates Customer Manage

ment remaining revenues are derived from the sale of

premise-based and hosted automated self-care and

technology solutions License professional and consulting

and maintenance and software support services revenues

recognized from sale of these advanced speech recog

nition solutions are recognized pursuant to authoritative

guidance for software revenue recognition

As more fully
described below Customer Management

revenue increased 4% from the prior year to $1918.8

Customer Management operating income and operating

margin were $149.9 and 7.8/o respectively in 2011

compared to an operating loss of $78.5 in 2010 The

operating loss in the prior year was driven by an asset

impairment charge of $181.1 of which $166.5 relates to

goodwill in the Customer Interaction Technology reporting

unit formerly referred to as the Relationship Technology

Management reporting unit and $14.6 relates to property

plant and equipment Results also indude restructuring

charges of $1.0 in 2011 and $22.6 in 2010 primarily to

adjust headcount to future revenue expectations and

simplify operations

Information Management

Our Information Management segment serves clients

principally by providing and managing complex business

support system BSS solutions

In 2011 Information Management accounted for l50/o of

our consolidated revenues License and related support

and maintenance fees which accounted for 4O/o of

Information Management revenues for 2011 are earned

under perpetual and term license arrangements

Professional and consulting services for installation

implementation customization migration training and

managed services accounted for 4501o and data processing

services accounted for l5/o of Information Management

revenues in 2011 As more fully
described below under the

heading Information Management during 2011

Information Management revenue was $328.8 3/n

decline compared to last year largely due to lower

volume of license sales in 2011 partially offset by revenue

from new clients Information Management operating

income and operating margin for 2011 were $37.2 and

11.3/n respectively compared with $33.2 and 9.8/o

respectively in the prior year period Operating income

includes net restructuring benefit of $1.2 in 2011 and

restructuring charges of $8.0 in 2010
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Item Managements Discussion and AnaLysis

of FinanciaL Condition and ResuLts of Operations continued

Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts

Results of Operations

Consolidated Results

2011 vs 2010

Consolidated revenues for 2011 were $2262.0 compared

to $2203.4 in 2010 reflecting revenue increase in the

Customer Management segment We earned $14.4 in

revenue in 2011 under transition services agreements

subsequent to the sate of HR Management compared to

$24.0 in the prior year Operating income for 2011 was

$168.3 compared to operating loss of $94.6 in the prior

year As described more fully
under the Customer

Management section the operating results for 2010

include the impact of $181.1 asset impairment charges

consisting of $166.5 goodwill impairment and $14.6

property plant and equipment impairment Operating

results for 2010 also include restructuring charges of

$36.7 $6.4 of net post-employment benefit plan charges

$7.6 of severance and other transition costs associated

with the change in the CEO of the Company in February

2010 and $9.1 of HR Management related costs that did

not qualify for reporting as discontinued operations

Operating results for 2011 include $5 of insurance recov

eries in excess of costs incurred partially offset by the

negative impact of client bankruptcy The transition

services revenue above offsets the continuing HR

Management related costs We have substantially elimi

nated the underlying costs as the transition services were

completed

As percentage of revenues the cost of providing services

and products sold was 62.8/o compared to 60.9/o in the

prior year reflecting our investment in new programs

expected to deliver future revenue Selling general and

administrative expenses of $527.4 decreased 8/o from the

prior year As percentage of revenues selling general

and administrative expenses were 23.3/o in 2011

compared to 26.l% in 2010 as result of cost reduction

actions previously taken HR Management related costs

not qualifying as discontinued operations in 2010

pension settlement charges in 2010 transition costs

associated with the change in our CEO in 2010 and net

insurance recoveries in 2011 The net pension and other

post-employment benefit charges in 2010 were $6.4

consisting of settlement charge of $6.8 and Supple-

0/0 Change 0/0 Change

2011 2010 11 vs 10 2009 10 vs 09

Revenues $2262.0 $2203.4 $2421.0

Costs and Expenses

Cost of providing

services and products

sold 1420.5 1340.9 1461.6

Selling general
and

administrative

expenses
527.4 575.7 616.4

Research and

development costs 49.3 56.2 12 74.2 24

Depreciation 86.9 97.3 11 110.3 12

Amortization 9.6 10.1 10.9

Restructuring charges 36.7 NM 43.3 15
Asset impairment 181.1 NM 3.1 NM

Total costs and

expenses 2093.7 2298.0 2319.8

Operating income

loss 168.3 94.6 NM 101.2 NM

Earnings and gain from

Cellular Partnerships

net 285.2 47.2 NM 41.0 15

Other income

expense net 9.8 8.9 10 17.2 NM

Interest expense 16.1 19.5 17 28.9 33

Income loss before

income taxes 447.2 58.0 NM 96.1 NM

Income tax expense 118.9 16.7 NM 11.6 NM

Income loss from

continuing operations

net of tax 328.3 74.7 NM 84.5 NM

Income loss from

discontinued

operations net of tax

benefit expense of

$6.5 $39.0 and

$51.9 6.5 21.5 70 161.8 NM

Net Income Loss 334.8 53.2 NM 77.3 31

DiLuted Earnings

Loss Per Common

Share

Continuing

Operations 2.67 0.61 NM 0.68 NM

Discontinued

Operations
0.05 0.18 72 130 NM

Net Diluted Earnings

Loss Per Common
Share 2.72 0.43 NM 0.62 31

Exclusive of depreciation and amortization with the exception of amor

tization of deferred charges
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mental Executive Retirement Plan SERP curtailment

benefit of $0.4 The l2Io decrease in research and

development costs compared to the prior year primarily

reflects reductions in headcount Compared to the prior

year the $10.4 decrease in depreciation expense reflects

lower depreciable asset base

As discussed in more detail under the heading

Restructuring Charges during 2011 we initiated an

incremental restructuring plan resulting in $2.8

severance charge largely to reduce headcount and align

resources to future business needs This charge was offset

by $2.8 reduction to previously established
facility-

related reserves based upon early termination and settle

ment of lease for previously abandoned facility
and

review of estimated future costs for other facilities In

addition we recorded restructuring charge of $36.7

during 2010 mostly related to the realignment of

resources including headcount and facilities to expected

revenues and the sale of the HR Management business

During 2011 we recognized pre-tax gain of $265.0

$171.8 net of tax on the sale of our investment in the

Cellular Partnerships comprised of our 33.8/o interest in

Cincinnati SMSA Limited Partnership and our 45.0/o

interest in the Cincinnati SMSA Tower Holdings LLC to

ATT the general partner and limited partner in both

partnerships Upon the close of the sale on July 2011

we received cash proceeds of $320 We recorded income

from our investment in the Cellular Partnerships of $20.2

in 2011 prior to the sale compared to $47.2 for the full

year in 2010

Other income of $9.8 was primarily due to pre-tax gain

of $7.0 on the sale of the Finance and Accounting

outsourcing line of business and foreign exchange trans

action gains during 2011 compared to losses in prior year

The foreign exchange gains and losses arise from trans

actions denominated in currency other than the func

tional currency As discussed in further detail in the

section titled Market Risk we periodically enter into

forward exchange contracts to protect the Company

against these foreign currency exposures The gains and

losses from these forward exchange contracts are reported

within other income expense net Other income of $8.9

in 2010 includes the benefit of $14.9 reduction to

non-operating accrual Interest expense improved to

$16.1 from $19.5 in the prior year reflecting lower level

of debt outstanding during the course of the year Our

effective tax rate on net income from continuing oper

ations was 26.6/o in 2011 which includes tax expense of

$93.2 from the sale of our interests in the Cellular

Partnership and $25.5 of net tax benefits from interna

tional transactions and certain other discrete items The

tax holiday in India expired on March 31 2011 The

impact of this expiration was mitigated by expansion in

other jurisdictions with lower tax rates See Note 14 of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further

discussion related to effective tax rates

As result of the factors above the 2011 net income from

continuing operations and diluted earnings per share from

continuing operations were $328.3 and $2.67

respectively compared with net loss from continuing

operations and diluted loss per share from continuing

operations of $74.7 and $0.61 respectively in the prior

year

The results of discontinued operations for 2011 include

$6.5 tax benefit related to the HR Management business

sold in the prior year The results of discontinued oper

ations for 2010 include the operating results of the HR

Management business that was sold The $21.5 income

from discontinued operations net of tax recognized

during 2010 reflects income net of tax of $15.9 from

operating activities of the business prior to completion of

the sale of all entities as well as gain of $5.6 net of

$29.6 tax on the sale of the HR Management business As

result of the foregoing income from discontinued

operations net of tax and income from discontinued

operations per diluted share for 2011 were $6.5 and

$0.05 respectively compared to income from

discontinued operations net of tax and income from

discontinued operations per diluted share of $21.5 and

$0.18 respectively in 2010
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Item Managements Discussion and

of Financial Condition and ResuLts of

Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts

Total 2011 net income and earnings per diluted share were

$334.8 and $2.72 respectively compared with net loss

and loss per diluted share of $53.2 and $0.43

respectively in the prior year

2010 vs 2009

Consolidated revenues for 2010 were $2203.4 down 90/0

compared to $2421.0 in 2009 reflecting revenue

decreases from both Customer Management and

Information Management Operating loss for 2010 was

$94.6 compared to operating income of $101.2 in the

prior year The operating results for 2010 include the

impact of $181.1 asset impairment charges in Customer

Management consisting of $166.5 related to goodwill

impairment and $14.6 in property plant and equipment

impairment Operating results for 2009 include the impact

of $3.1 asset impairment in Information Management

Operating results for 2010 and 2009 also include

restructuring charges of $36.7 and $43.3 respectively HR

Management costs of $9.1 and $32.1 respectively that

did not quality for reporting as discontinued operations

$6.4 of net post-employment benefit plan charges and

$7.6 of CEO transition related costs in 2010

As percentage of revenues the cost of providing services

and products sold was 6O.9/ compared to 60.4/u in the

prior year decrease in the cost of providing services and

products sold as percentage of revenues at Customer

Management was offset by an increase at Information

Management Selling general and administrative expenses

of $575.7 decreased 7/o from the prior year primarily due

to the impact of restructuring actions previously taken

partially offset by pension settlement charges transition

costs associated with the change in our CEO and

incrementa investment by our Customer Management and

Information Management segments in sales and marketing

efforts As percentage of revenue selling general and

administrative costs increased from 25.5/o in 2009 to

26.l/o in 2010 as result of lower revenue The 24/s

decrease in research and development costs primarily

reflects more focused strategic spending on enhancement

of our business support system offerings and the shift of

AnaLysis

Operations continued

this investment to lower cost geographies Compared to

2009 the $13.0 decrease in depreciation expense reflects

the impact of lower capital expenditures in preceding

periods As noted under the Restructuring Charges

heading we recorded restructuring charge of $36.7

during 2010 to realign resources including headcount and

facilities to expected revenues further simplify oper

ations and due to the separation of the HR Management

business restructuring charge of $43.3 was recorded

during 2009 to align resources to future business needs

and to shift the geographic mix of certain resources

In 2010 we recorded equity income in the Cellular Partner

ships of $47.2 compared to $41.0 recorded in 2009 The

improvement in other income expense in 2010 primarily

relates to $14.9 benefit from reduction in

non-operating accruals and lower foreign exchange

transaction losses Interest expense decreased to $19.5

from $28.9 in the prior year reflecting lower level of

debt outstanding during the course of the year For 2010

we recognized income tax expense of $16.7 on net loss

from continuing operations of $58.0 The net expense was

largely driven by impairment of assets with significantly

lower tax basis than book basis resulting in taxable

income for the year

As result of the factors above the 2010 net loss from

continuing operations and diluted loss per share from

continuing operations were $74.7 and $0.61 respectively

compared with net income from continuing operations and

diluted earnings per share from continuing operations of

$84.5 and $0.68 in the prior year

The results from discontinued operations include the

operating results of the HR Management business that

were discontinued as result of the sale of the business

Discontinued operations include revenues of $107.2 and

$406.2 in 2010 and 2009 respectively The $21.5 income

from discontinued operations net of tax recognized

during 2010 reflects income net of tax of $15.9 from

operating activities of the business prior to completion of

the sale as well as $5.6 gain net of $29.6 tax on the

sale of the HR Management business The loss in 2009
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included implementation-related impairment and contract

settlement charges of $366.1 partially offset by accel

erated recognition of $122.3 of previously received and

deferred implementation revenue related to two large HR

Management contracts As result of the foregoing the

income from discontinued operations net of tax and the

earnings from discontinued operations per diluted share

for 2010 were $21.5 and $0.18 respectively compared to

loss from discontinued operations net of tax and the loss

from discontinued operations per diluted share of $161.8

and $1.30 in 2009

Total 2010 net loss and loss per diluted share were $53.2

and $0.43 respectively compared with net loss and loss

per diluted share of $77.3 and $0.62 respectively in the

prior year

Non-GAAP Measures for 2011 2010 and 2009

In order to assess the underlying operational performance

of the continuing operations of the business we provide

non-GAAP measures in the table below that exclude the

following the gain on the sale of our interests in the

Cellular Partnerships of $265.0 in 2011 the gain on the

sale of the Finance and Accounting outsourcing line of

business of $7.0 in 2011 reported within other income

expense net certain costs previously allocated to the

HR Management business that are now included in

continuing operations as discussed above and in more

detail in Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements these costs were $9.1 in 2010 and $32.1 in

2009 reduction of non-operating accruals by $14.9

during 2010 which is reported within other income

expense net restructuring charges of $36.7 in 2010

and $43.3 in 2009 severance and other transition costs

associated with the change in the CEO of the Company in

February 2010 which resulted in negative impact to

2010 results from continuing operations of $7.6 net

pension and other post employment benefit charges of

$6.4 consisting of pension settlement charge of $6.8

and SERP curtailment benefit of $0.4 in 2010 asset

impairment charges of $181.1 in 2010 and $3.1 in 2009

for comparability to current period results income from

our investment in the Cellular Partnerships of $22.2 and

$19.5 for the second half of 2010 and 2009 respectively

and separately for comparison to 2012 forecast $20.2

$25.0 and $21.5 of earnings from the first half of 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively and 10 net tax benefits

from international transactions including certain discrete

items of $25.5 in 2011

We use operating income income from continuing oper

ations net of tax and earnings per share data excluding

the above items to assess the underlying operational

performance of the continuing operations of the business

for the year and to have basis to compare underlying

results to prior and future periods Adjustments for these

items are relevant in evaluating the overall performance of

the business Limitations associated with the use of these

non-GAAP measures include that these measures do not

include all of the amounts associated with our results as

determined in accordance with GAAP Management

compensates for these limitations by using the non-GAAP

measures operating income income from continuing

operations net of tax and diluted earnings per share

excluding these items and the GAAP measures operating

income income from continuing operations net of tax

and diluted earnings per share in its evaluation of

performance There are no material purposes for which we

use these non-GAAP measures beyond those described

above

Net charges on per share basis include an adjustment to

Diluted EPS utilizing diluted shares outstanding of 125.5

for December 31 2010 Given that the Company recorded

loss from continuing operations under U.S GAAP shares

outstanding utilized to calculate Diluted EPS from

continuing operations are equivalent to basic shares

outstanding Shares outstanding utilized to calculate

Adjusted Diluted EPS from continuing operations reflect

the number of diluted shares the Company would have

reported if reporting net income from continuing oper

ations under U.S GAAP
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations continued

Amounts in MiLlions
Except Per Share Amounts

Reconciliation of GAAP EPS from Continuing

Operations to non-GAAP EPS from Continuing

Operations

0/0 Change 0/0 Change

2011 2010 11 vs 10 2009 10 vs 09

Operating income loss
as reported under U.S

GAAP $168.3 94.6 NM $101.2 NM

Restructuring

charges 36.7 NM 43.3 15
Net pension and OPEB

charges 6.4 NM NM

CEO transition costs 7.6 NM NM

Asset Impairment 181.1 NM 3.1 NM

HR Management costs

not qualifying as

discontinued

operations 9.1 NM 32.1 72

Total Charges 240.9 NM 78.5 NM

Adjusted Operating

Income non-GAAP

measure $168.3 $146.3 15 $179.7 19

0/0 Change o/o Change

2011 2010 11 vs 10 2009 10 vs 09

Income loss from

continuing operations

net of tax as reported

under U.S GAAP 328.3 74.7 NM 84.5 NM

Gain on Sale of

Interests in Cellular

Partnerships net of

tax 171.8 NM NM

Income from

continuing operations

net of tax excluding

the gain on sale of

interests in Cellular

Partnerships

non-GAAP measure 156.5 74.7 NM 84.5 NM

Total charges of

$0.0 $240.9 and

$78.5 for 2011 2010

and 2009 from

above net of tax 209.2 NM 51.6 NM

Earnings from

Cellular Partnerships

of $22.2 and $19.5

for 2H of 2010 and

2009 net of tax 14.4 NM 12.6 14

Adjustment of tax to

normalized rate 25.5 NM NM

Gain on sale of FA
line of business of

$7.0 for 2011 net of

tax 4.3 NM NM

Non-operating

reserve reduction of

$14.9 net of tax 9.3 NM NM

Adjusted income from

continuing operations

net of tax non-GAAP

measure 126.7 $110.8 14 $123.5 10

Earnings from

Cellular Partnerships

of $20.2 $25.0 and

$21.5 for 1H of

2011 2010 and

2009 net of tax 13.1$ 16.3 20 14.0 16

Adjusted income from

continuing operations

excluding income from

Cellular Partnerships

net of tax non-GAAP

measure 113.6 94.5 20 $109.5 14
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0/0 Change Change

2011 2010 11 vs 10 2009 10 vs 09

Diluted earnings toss

per
common share from

continuing operations as

reported under U.S

GAAP 2.67 $0.61 NM 0.68 NM

Impact of Gain on Sale

of interests in Cellular

Partnerships net of

tax 1.40 NM NM

Diluted earnings per

common share from

continuing operations

excluding the sale of

interests in Cellular

Partnerships non-GAAP

measure 1.27 0.61 NM 0.68 NM

Impact of net charges

included in continuing

operations net of

tax 0.24 1.49 NM 0.31 NM

Adjusted diluted earnings

per common share from

continuing operations

non-GAAP measure 1.03 0.88 17 0.99 11

Net impact of earnings

from interests in

Cellular Partnerships

for 1H of 2011 2010

and 2009 $0.11$0.13 15 $0.11 18

Adjusted diluted earnings

per common share from

continuing operations

excluding earnings from

Cellular Partnerships

non-GAAP measure 0.92 0.75 23 0.88 15

Customer Management

/o Change o/ Change

2011 2010 11 vs 10 2009 10 vs 09

Revenues

Communications $1147.6 $1053.8 $1176.0 10

Technology 170.0 147.5 15 153.9

Financial services 208.0 241.5 14 288.1 16

Other 393.2 396.5 368.7

Total

revenues 1918.8 1839.3 1986.7

Costs and

Expenses

Cost of providing

services and

products sold 1232.9 1142.1 1240.7

Selling general and

administrative

expenses
453.3 480.6 507.8

Research and

development

costs 14.0 18.0 22 22.2 19

Depreciation 60.3 65.7 66.9

Amortization 7.4 7.7 7.3

Restructuring

charges 1.0 22.6 96 7.9 NM

Asset

Impairments 181.1 100 NM

Total costs and

expenses 1768.9 1917.8 1852.8

Operating Income

Loss 149.9 78.5 NM 133.9 NM

Operating Margin 7.8% NM 6.7/a

2011 vs 2010

Revenues

Customer Management revenues for 2011 were $1918.8

4/a increase from 2010 Revenues from communications

clients increased 90/0 from 2010 reflecting higher volumes

with several clients Revenues from technology clients

increased 15/o from 2010 due to new projects with

existing and new clients Revenues from financial services

clients decreased 14/o from 2010 primarily reflecting

volume reductions and program completions including

client migrations from legacy technology offerings Other

revenues which are comprised of clients outside of

Customer Managements three largest industries decreased
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis

of FinanciaL Condition and ResuLts of Operations continued

Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts

1/a from 2010 This is primarily attributable to the

completion of short-term program for the U.S Census

Bureau in 2010 offset by revenue earned from new proj

ects with existing and new clients

Costs and Expenses

Customer Management total costs and expenses of

$1768.9 decreased 8/a from 2010 costs of $1917.8 Costs

in 2010 include $181.1 of non-cash impairment charges in

the Customer Interaction Technology CII reporting unit

formerly referred to as the Relationship Technology

Management reporting unit consisting of $166.5 for the

impairment of goodwill and $14.6 for the impairment of

certain property plant and equipment classified as

Held-for-Sale at December 31 2010

Customer Management costs of providing services and

products sold increased 8/a to $1232.9 from 2010 As

percentage of revenues cost of providing services and

products sold was 64.3/o compared to 62.1/o in the prior

year primarily reflecting our investment in new programs

expected to deliver future revenue Selling general and

administrative expenses of $453.3 in 2011 decreased 6/o

as compared to $480.6 in the prior year reflecting cost

reduction actions previously taken and approximately $5

of net insurance recoveries partially offset by incremental

investment in sales and marketing efforts As percentage

of revenue selling general and administrative expenses

were 23.6/o compared to 26.l/o in the prior year Research

and development costs of $14.0 decreased $4.0 compared

to 2010 due to reductions in headcount Depreciation

expense of $60.3 decreased $5.4 from the prior year due

to lower depreciable asset base

As discussed in more detail under the Restructuring

Charges heading as result of operational changes we

recorded restructuring charge of $1.0 for Customer

Management during 2011 to reduce headcount and align

resources to expected revenues and charge of $22.6

during 2010 mostly related to the alignment of resources

including headcount and facilities to expected revenues

Operating Income

As result of the foregoing Customer Management 2011

operating income and margin were $149.9 and 7.8/a

respectively compared with operating loss of $78.5 in the

prior year

2010 vs 2009

Revenues

Customer Management revenues for 2010 were $1839.3

7/o decrease from 2009 The decrease in revenues was

largely driven by our clients own volume declines

offshore volume shifts lower sales of technology solutions

and some client program completions in 2010 These

revenue declines were partially offset by revenue increases

with several other clients Revenues from communications

clients decreased 10/o from 2009 primarily reflecting

reduction in spending by few communications clients

largely due to the decline in their volumes as well as

off-shore volume shifts and lower sales of technology

solutions Revenues from financial services clients

decreased 16/o from 2009 primarily due to client program

completions and volume reductions Revenues from

technology clients decreased 4/o primarily due to volume

reductions Other revenues which are comprised of clients

outside of Customer Managements three largest

industries increased 8% from 2009 This increase is

primarily attributed to short-term program for the U.S

Census Bureau that was completed by the end of the third

quarter of 2010 as well as other new clients partially

offset by decrease in volume from several clients as

result of continued volume softness

Costs and Expenses

Customer Management total costs and expenses were

$1917.8 4% increase from the prior year Costs include

$181.1 of non-cash impairment charges in the CIT

reporting unit consisting of $166.5 for the impairment of

goodwill and $14.6 for the impairment of certain property

plant and equipment

Customer Management cost of providing services and

products decreased 8/o to $1142.1 from the prior year As

32 Convergys Corporation 2011 Annual Report



percentage of revenues cost of providing services and

products sold was 62.l/o for 2010 down from 62.5/o in

the prior year due to off-shoring and effective agent-

assisted workforce management Selling general and

administrative expense of $480.6 decreased S/o compared

to $507.8 in the prior year reflecting general and admin

istrative cost reduction actions taken as result of antici

pated lower revenue partially offset by an incremental

investment in sales and marketing efforts As percentage

of revenues selling general and administrative expenses

were 26.1/a for 2010 compared to 25.6/o in the prior year

due to lower revenues As noted under the heading

Restructuring Charges we recorded restructuring

charge of $22.6 during 2010 mostly related to the align

ment of resources including headcount and facilities to

expected revenues and charge of $7.9 in 2009 to reduce

headcount and align resources to future needs

Operating Income

As result of the foregoing Customer Management 2010

operating loss was $78.5 compared with operating

income and operating margin of $133.9 and 6.7/o

respectively in the prior year

Non-GAAP measures for 2011 2010 and 2009

In order to assess the underlying operational performance

of the continuing operations of the business we provide

non-GAAP measures in the table below that exclude

restructuring charges of $1.0 $22.6 and $7.9 in 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively and asset impairment

charges of $181.1 including $166.5 of goodwill and $14.6

of property plant and equipment incurred during 2010

We use Customer Management operating income excluding

restructuring and asset impairment charges to assess the

underlying operational performance of the continuing

operations of the business for the year and to have basis

to compare underlying operating results to prior and

future periods Adjustments for these charges are relevant

in evaluating the overall performance of the business

Limitations associated with the use of this non-GAAP

measure include that this measure does not include all of

the amounts associated with our results as determined in

accordance with GAAP Management compensates for

these limitations by using the non-GAAP measure

operating income excLuding the charge and the GAAP

measure operating income in its evaluation of perform

ance There are no material purposes for which we use this

non-GAAP measure beyond those described above

Reconciliation of Customer Management GAAP

Operating Income to

Income

non-GAAP Operating

2011 2010 2009

Operating income loss as

reported
under U.S GAAP $149.9 $78.5 $133.9

Restructuring charges 1.0 22.6 7.9

Asset Impairment 181.1

Adjusted operating income

non-GAAP measure $150.9 $125.2 $141.8

Adjusted operating margin

non-GAAP measure 7.9 6.8/o 7.1/o

Information Management

Change O/ Change

2011 2010 11 vs 10 2009 10 vs 09

Revenues

Data processing 48.1 63.9 25 $113.9 44

Professional and

consulting 148.2 131.5 13 159.0 17

License and other 132.5 144.7 161.4 10

Total revenues 328.8 340.1 434.3 22

Costs and Expenses

Cost of providing

services and products

sold 176.8 178.5 220.8 19

Selling general
and

administrative

expenses 64.6 65.5 79.9 18

Research and

development costs 35.3 38.1 52.0 27

Depreciation 13.9 14.3 22.6 37

Amortization 2.2 2.5 12 3.6 31

Restructuring charges 1.2 8.0 NM 30.4 74

Asset impairments NM 3.1 NM

Total costs and

expenses 291.6 306.9 412.4 26

Operating Income 37.2 33.2 12 21.9 52

Operating Margin 11.3% 9.8/o 5.0/o
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations continued

Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts

2011 vs 2010

Revenues

Information Management revenues of $328.8 in 2011

decreased 3/u from the prior year Data processing

revenues of $48.1 decreased 25/s from the prior year This

primarily reflects project completion for one client with

subsequent revenue from that client classified as

professional and consulting revenue partially offset by

revenue from new customer that went live during 2011

Professional and consulting revenues of $148.2 increased

13/u from 2010 primarily due to services performed

subsequent to the completion of the transition of an

existing client to new platform and increased client

volumes partially offset by project completions License

and other revenue decreased 8% from the prior year

primarily due to lower volume of non-recurring license

sales

Costs and Expenses

Information Management costs and expenses were $291.6

5/s decrease from the prior year Compared to the prior

year Information Managements cost of providing services

and products sold decreased 1/u to $176.8 As

percentage of revenues cost of providing services and

products sold was 53.8/o in 2011 compared to 52.5% in

2010 primarily reflecting the shift in revenue mix from

higher margin data processing revenue to lower margin

professional and consulting revenue Selling general and

administrative expenses of $64.6 in 2011 decreased 1/u

compared to $65.5 in the prior year due to cost reduction

actions previously taken partially offset by incremental

investment in sales efforts As percentage of revenues

selling general and administrative expenses were l9.6/u

in 2011 compared to 19.3/u in the prior year Research

and development costs of $35.3 decreased $2.8 from 2010

primarily as result of headcount reductions as we

continue to focus on development activities that have the

highest impact for our clients and as we continue to

leverage our off-shore capabilities Depreciation expense

of $13.9 decreased $0.4 from the prior year due to lower

depreciable asset base

As discussed in more detail under the Restructuring

Charges heading as result of operational changes we

recorded severance related charge of $1.6 during 2011

primarily to reduce headcount and align resources to

future business needs This severance charge was offset by

$2.8 net benefit from an adjustment of previously

abandoned facility during 2011 and review of estimated

future costs for other facilities As result of the

severance charge and net facility benefit we recorded

net $1.2 restructuring benefit for 2011 We also recorded

restructuring charge of $8.0 in 2010 to reduce head-

count and align resources to future business needs

Operating Income

As result of the foregoing Information Management

operating income and operating margin in 2011 were

$37.2 and 11.3/u respectively compared with $33.2 and

9.8/s respectively in the prior year

2010 vs 2009

Revenues

Information Management revenues of $340.1 in 2010 were

down 22/a compared to the prior year due primarily to

client migrations as well as project completions Data

processing revenues of $63.9 decreased 44/u from the

prior year reflecting North American client migrations

which are substantially completed as well as project

completions Compared to the prior year professional and

consulting revenues of $131.5 decreased 17/o reflecting

reduction in services resulting from client migrations

partially offset by revenue from new clients License and

other revenues of $144.7 decreased lO/o from the prior

year due to non-recurring license sales as well as project

completions

Costs and Expenses

Information Management total costs and expenses were

$306.9 26/o decline from the prior year Compared to

the prior year Information Management cost of providing

services and products sold decreased l9/u to $178.5 As

percentage of revenues cost of providing services and

products sold was 52.5/u for 2010 compared to 50.8/o in

the prior year Selling general and administrative
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expenses of $65.5 for 2010 decreased compared to $79.9

in the prior year due to cost reduction efforts across all

general and administrative areas partially offset by

incremental investment in sales and marketing efforts As

percentage of revenues selling general and admin

istrative expenses were 19.3% for 2010 compared to

l8.1/o in the prior year due to lower revenues The $13.9

decline in research and development is the result of

continued focused strategic spending on enhancement of

our business support system offerings To drive down

costs we are being more selective in our approach to

research and development spending focusing our efforts

on only what we consider the highest impact areas for our

clients We are also better leveraging our off-shore

resources Compared to 2009 the $9.4 decrease in

depreciation and amortization expense reflects lower

depreciable asset base for 2010

As discussed in more detail under the Restructuring

Charges heading we recorded restructuring charges of

$8.0 in 2010 largely to reduce headcount and align

resources to business needs We also recorded

restructuring charges of $30.4 in 2009 related to both

consolidating facilities and reductions in headcount

Operating Income

As result of the foregoing Information Management

2010 operating income and operating margin were $33.2

and 9.8% respectively compared with $21.9 and 5.0/a

respectively in the prior year

Non-GAAP measures for 2011 2010 and 2009

In order to assess the underlying operational performance

of the continuing operations of the business we provide

non-GAAP measures in the table below that exclude

restructuring benefit of $1.2 in 2011 and restructuring

charges of $8.0 and $30.4 in 2010 and 2009 respectively

and asset impairment charges of $3.1 incurred during

2009

We use Information Management operating income

excluding restructuring and asset impairment charges to

assess the underlying operational performance of the

continuing operations of the business for the year and to

have basis to compare underlying operating results to

prior and future periods Adjustments for these charges

are relevant in evaluating the overall performance of the

business Limitations associated with the use of this

non-GAAP measure include that this measure does not

include all of the amounts associated with our resuLts as

determined in accordance with GAAP Management

compensates for these limitations by using the non-GAAP

measure operating income excluding the charges and the

GAAP measure operating income in its evaluation of

performance There are no material purposes for which we

use this non-GAAP measure beyond those described above

Reconciliation of Information Management

GAAP Operating Income to non-GAAP

Operating Income

2011 2010 2009

Operating income as reported

under U.S GAAP $37.2 $33.2 $21.9

Restructuring charges 1.2 8.0 30.4

Asset Impairment 3.1

Adjusted operating income

non-GAAP measure $36.0 $41.2 $55.4

Restructuring Charges

As discussed in Note of

Financial Statements we

restructuring charges

2011 Restructuring

During 2011 we initiated

resulted in severance costs

headcount and align resources to future business needs

This charge was offset by $2.8 reduction to previously

established facility-related reserves as described below

The $2.8 of severance-related charges were comprised of

$1.6 at Information Management $1.0 at Customer

Management and $0.2 at Corporate Severance actions

impacted approximately 100 professional employees

worldwide and charges will largely be paid in cash

Adjusted operating margin

non-GAAP measure 10.9% 12.1/a 12.8/a

the Notes to Consolidated

recorded the following

operational changes that

of $2.8 largely to reduce

Convergys Corporation 2011 Annual Report 35



Item Managements Discussion and AnaLysis

of Financial Condition and ResuLts of Operations continued

Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts

pursuant to our existing severance policy and employment

agreements These actions were substantially completed

by the end of 2011

Restructuring Liability activity for the 2011 severance

plan the balance of which is included within payables

deferred revenue and other current liabilities on the

Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the

following

2011

Balance at January

Severance charge 2.8

Severance payments 2.6

Balance as of December 31 $0.2

The severance actions when completed are expected to

result in cost reductions in excess of $10 on an annualized

basis The impact of this benefit will be spread across our

operating expenses particularly within the selling general

and administrative expense and cost of providing services

and products sold captions of our Consolidated Statements

of Operations and Comprehensive Income Loss When

completed the severance actions are also expected to

result in cash savings in excess of $10 on an annualized

basis We do not believe that the impact on our overall

liquidity is material

2010 Restructuring

During 2010 we initiated restructuring plan to simplify

operations across the business and shift capacity to reflect

future expected revenue growth The total charge recorded

in 2010 was $36.7 $23.2 after tax including $22.4 of

severance-related charges and $14.3 of facility-related

charges The $22.4 of severance-related charges were

comprised of $13.3 at Customer Management and $3.0 at

Information Management largely to reduce headcount and

align resources to business needs and $6.1 at Corporate to

further simplify operations and to reflect the impact of

the sale of the HR Management line of business The

severance charge of $22.4 was largely paid in cash

pursuant to our existing severance policy and employment

agreements These actions affected approximately 1000

professional employees and approximately 1400

non-salaried employees worldwide and were substantially

completed by December 31 2011 The facility-related

charge of $14.3 relates to lease rent accruals and penal

ties for properties that have closed as the result of

consolidating facilities and shifting capacity The charge

is equal to the future costs associated with the facility

net of proceeds from any probable future sublease

agreements We used estimates based on consultation

with our real estate advisors to determine the proceeds

from any future sublease agreements We will continue to

evaluate these estimates in recording the facilities

abandonment charge Consequently there may be addi

tional reversals or charges related to this facility closure

in the future Therefore the Company reviews the facility-

related reserves on facility
basis rather than

restructuring charge basis At December 31 2011 the

facility-related restructuring reserve for all reserved facili

ties had an outstanding balance of $9.6 which wiLl be

paid over several years until the lease term expires

Restructuring liability activity for the 2010 severance plan

the balance of which is included within payables deferred

revenue and other current Liabilities on the Companys

Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following

2011 2010

Balance at January 12.4

Severance charge 22.4

Severance payments 11.4 10.0

Balance at December 31 1.0 12.4

The restructuring actions resulted in cost reductions in

excess of $50 on an annualized basis The impact of this

benefit will be spread across our operating expenses

particularly within the selling general and administrative

expense and cost of providing services and products sold

captions of our Consolidated Statements of Operations and

Comprehensive Income Loss The severance actions are

expected to result in cash savings in excess of $40 on an

annualized basis We do not believe that the impact on

our overall liquidity is material
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2009 Restructuring

During 2009 we initiated restructuring plans of $43.3 to

reduce headcount and align resources to future business

needs The total charge recorded in 2009 included $27.0

of severance-related charges and $16.3 of facility-related

charges Severance charges were comprised of $15.3 at

Information Management related to shifting the

geographic mix of certain resources and further stream

lining of operations $6.7 at Customer Management

resulting from reduction in one international program

and efforts to streamline operations and $5.0 at Corporate

to reduce headcount All severance charges were largely

paid in cash pursuant to our existing severance policy and

employment agreements The severance actions were

completed by March 31 2011 The facility-related charge

relates to lease rent accruals for properties that have

closed as the result of consolidating facilities consistent

with the methodology discussed in connection with the

2010 restructuring The facility-related reserve related to

this charge is encompassed within the total outstanding

facility balance of $9.6 referred to above which will be

paid over several years until the leases expire

The restructuring actions taken resulted in cost reductions

in excess of $50 in 2010 The impact of this benefit was

spread across our operating expenses particularly within

the selling general and administrative expense and cost

of providing services and products sold captions of our

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive

Income Loss These actions also had positive cash flow

impact in the range of $20-$25 in 2010 We do not

believe that the impact on our overall liquidity is material

Facilities Restructuring

The Companys facilities restructuring reserves are equal to

estimated future costs associated with the facilities net

of proceeds from any probable future sublease agree

ments The Company uses estimates based on

consultation with the Companys real estate advisors to

determine the proceeds from any future sublease agree

ments The Company continues to evaluate these esti

mates in recording the facilities abandonment charge

Based upon early termination and settlement of lease for

previously abandoned facility during 2011 and review of

estimated future costs for other facilities the Company

recorded net benefit of $2.8 to reduce the remaining

reserves Restructuring liability for the facilities plans the

balance of which is included within payables deferred

revenue and other current liabilities on the Companys

Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following

2011 2010 2009

Balance at January $20.7 $16.0

Facility charge 14.3 16.3

Facility payments 8.3 9.6 0.3

Facility adjustments 2.8

Balance at December 31 9.6 $20.7 $16.0

Client Concentration

During 2011 our three largest clients accounted for

41.9/a of our revenues compared to 37.6/o in the prior

year We serve ATT our largest client accounting for

2l.6/o of our revenues in 2011 under Customer Manage

ment and Information Management contracts We serve

Comcast and DIRECTV our second and third largest clients

accounting for lO.2/o and lO.lIo respectively of our

revenues in 2011 under Customer Management contracts

Volumes under certain of our long-term contracts are

subject to variation based on among other things

general economic conditions client outsourcing trends

and seasonal patterns in our clients businesses

Business Outlook

Convergys expects continuing revenue growth and earn

ings improvement for the full year 2012 compared with

2011 adjusted results including

Customer Management revenue to exceed $1960

increasing from $1919 last year

Information Management revenue of $330 to $340

increasing from $329 last year

EBITDA of $270 to $280 improving from adjusted

EBITDA of $268 last year

Effective tax rate to approximate 25/o
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and ResuLts of Operations continued

Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts

2011

01 02 03 04 YTO

Net Income from Continuing

Operations under U.S GAAP $34.9 31.7 213.7 48.0 328.3

Income from Cellular

Partnerships net of tax of

$10.2 and $10.0 net of

tax

Gain on sale of interests in

Cellular Partnerships of

$265.0 net of tax

Gain on sale of FA
business of $7.0 net of

tax

Impact of normalization of

effective tax rate for

discrete and other items

Adjusted Net Income from

Continuing Operations

non-GAAP measure 23.9 25.2 30.6 33.8 113.5

Earnings Per Share from

Continuing Operations under

U.S GAAP 0.28 0.26 1.75 0.40 2.67

Net impact of items above

per adjusted diluted

share 0.09 0.05 1.50 0.12 1.75

Adjusted Earnings Per Share

from Continuing Operations

non-GAAP measure 0.19 0.20 0.25 0.28 0.92

Net Income from Continuing

Operations under U.S GAAP 34.9 31.7 213.7 48.0 328.3

Depreciation and

Amortization 23.5 23.6 24.0 25.4 96.5

Interest expense 4.6 4.3 3.6 3.6 16.1

Income tax expense 15.3 12.3 92.4 1.1 118.9

EBITDA 78.3 71.9 333.7 75.9 559.8

Income from Cellular

Partnerships 10.2 10.0 20.2

Gain on sale of interests in

Cellular Partnerships 265.0 265.0

Gain on sale of FA
business 7.0 7.0

Adjusted EBITDA 61.1 61.9 68.7 75.9 267.6

CONVERGYS CORPORATION

Reconciliation of GAAP results from

Continuing Operations to

Non-GAAP metrics for Comparison to 2012

Guidance

In Millions Except Per Share Aniounts

Diluted shares outstanding to approximate 120 and

EPS of $0.95 to $1.00 improving from adjusted EPS of

$0.92 last year

The Company expects first-half 2012 results similar to

adjusted results in the same period last year and also

expects second-half 2012 results to exceed first-half 2012

results

reconciliation of 2011 GAAP to 2011 non-GAAP and

adjusted EBITDA excluding equity earnings from the

Cellular Partnerships and the impacts of its sale Finance

and Accounting business sale impacts and certain other

tax items is as follows

6.6 6.5 13.1

171.8 171.8

4.3 4.3

11.3 14.2 25.5
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Financial Condition Liquidity and Capital

Resources

Liquidity and Cash Flows

We use existing cash and the net cash generated from

ongoing operations to fund those operations invest in the

business and make required debt payments We also

believe available borrowings under existing credit facili

ties wilt provide additional ability to invest in the busi

ness

Cash flows from operating activities generally provide us

with significant source of funding for our investing and

financing activities Cash flows for 2011 2010 and 2009

were as follows

2011 2010 2009

Net cash flows from

operating activities

Operating activities of

continuing operations 196.6 217.2 384.0

Operating activities of

discontinued operations 23.0 79.3

196.6 194.2 304.7

Net cash flows provided by

used in investing

activities

Investing activities of

continuing operations
222.1 69.3 74.5

Investing activities of

discontinued operations
70.0 3.5

222.1 0.7 78.0

Net cash flows used in

financing activities

Financing activities of

continuing operations $183.0 5340.5 $132.3

Financing
activities of

discontinued operations 2.7

5183.0 $340.5 $135.O

Cash flows from operating activities totaled $196.6 in

2011 compared to $194.2 in 2010 and $304.7 in 2009

Cash flows provided by continuing operations for 2011

was $196.6 compared to $217.2 and $384.0 in 2010 and

2009 respectively Excluding the impact of discontinued

operations the decrease in 2011 was primarily the result

of the receipt of tax refunds of approximately $48 in

2010 increased net implementation spending in 2011 and

the timing of net working capital The decrease from 2009

to 2010 largely was due to the timing of working capital

requirements including accounts receivable as well as to

the decline in operating income partially offset by receipt

of tax refunds of approximately $48 Cash flows used in

discontinued operations for 2010 and 2009 were $23.0and

$79.3 respectively The improvement was primarily due to

decline in the net implementation spending in 2010

compared to 2009 partially offset by cash payments of

$28.2 for certain obligations of the HR Management busi

ness in connection with and at the time of the substantial

completion of the sale of the business Days sales

outstanding at December 31 2011 was 60 days compared to

60 and 59 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

This performance measure is computed as follows receiv

ables net of allowances divided by average daily revenue

We received $222.1 from investing activities during 2011

which included cash proceeds of $320.0 from the sale of

the Cellular Partnership interests $3.1 from the sale of

assets and $10.0 from the sale of the Finance and

Accounting outsourcing line of business partially offset

by $88.3 of capital expenditures and $22.7 of purchases of

investment securities Cash flow provided by investing

activities was $0.7 in 2010 which included $70.0 from

discontinued operations related to the sale of the HR

Management line of business and capital expenditures of

$66.0 In 2009 we used $78.0 for investing activities

including $3.5 related to discontinued operations

Cash flows used for financing activities were $183.0

during 2011 $340.5 during 2010 and $135.0 in 2009

During 2011 we repurchased 7.7 of our common shares

for $96.8 and repaid $86.0 on our outstanding borrow

ings During 2010 we repaid the entire $400.0

outstanding balance on our Five-Year Competitive Advance

and Revolving Credit Facility and borrowed $85.0 on our

accounts receivable securitization facility net of repay

ments We also repurchased our common shares for $24.9

during 2010 During 2009 we repaid approximately $130

of our 4.875/o Senior Notes
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As of December 31 2011 our credit ratings and outlook

are as follows

Long-Term Debt Outlook

Moodys Bal Stable

Standard and Poors BB Stable

Our credit ratings and outlook could impact our ability to

raise capital in the future as well as increase borrowing

costs

We use free cash flow and adjusted free cash flow to

assess the financial performance of the Company We

define free cash flow as cash flows from operating activ

ities less capital expenditures net of proceeds related to

disposals We further define adjusted free cash flow as

free cash flow excluding the operating cash impact of the

sale of the HR Management business and the CEO tran

sition reconciliation of the GAAP measure net cash

provided by operating activities to the non-GAAP meas

ures free cash flow and adjusted free cash flow is as

follows

Computation of Free Cash

Flows 2011 2010 2009

Net cash flow from

operations $196.6 $194.2 $304.7

Capital expenditures net of

proceeds from disposal of

assets 88.3 66.3 74.9

Free Cash Flows non-GAAP

measure $108.3 $127.9 $229.8

Payments made to settle

obligations of HR

Management in connection

with and upon substantial

completion of the sale of

the business 28.2

Payments made related to

CEO transition 8.0

Adjusted free cash flow

non-GAAP measure $108.3 $164.1 $229.8

Free cash flows as defined as above were $108.3 $127.9

and $229.8 for 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Free

cash flow for 2010 includes cash payments of $28.2 made

to settle obligations of the HR Management business in

connection with and at the time of the substantial

completion of the sale of that business and $8.0 of cash

payments made related to the CEO transition Excluding

these payments adjusted free cash flow for 2011 2010

and 2009 was $108.3 $164.1 and $229.8 respectively

The decrease in adjusted free cash flow of $55.8 from

2010 was due to lower cash generated from operating

activities during 2011 as explained above The decrease

from 2009 to 2010 was due to lower cash generated from

activities during 2010 as result of the timing of working

capital requirements including accounts receivable as

well as lower operating income partially offset by the

positive impact of the receipt of tax refunds of approx

imately $48 in 2010 and lower capital expenditures

Adjusted free cash flow for 2010 also includes $10.0 paid

in connection with the refinancing of the Orlando

synthetic lease

We believe that free cash flow is useful to investors

because it relates the operating cash flow of the Company

to the capital that is spent to continue and improve

business operations such as investment in the Companys

existing businesses Further free cash flow facilitates

managements ability to strengthen the Companys balance

sheet to repay the Companys debt obligations and to

repurchase the Companys common shares Limitations

associated with the use of free cash flow include that it

does not represent the residual cash flow available for

discretionary expenditures as it does not incorporate

certain cash payments including payments made on

capital lease obligations or cash payments for business

acquisitions Management compensates for these limi

tations by utilizing both the non-GAAP measures free

cash flow and adjusted free cash flow and the GAAP

measure net cash flows from operating activities in its

evaluation of performance There are no material purposes

for which we use these non-GAAP measures beyond the

purposes described above

We define adjusted EBITDA as earnings from continuing

operations before interest taxes depreciation and amor

tization excluding the gain on sale of our interests in the
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Cellular Partnership earnings from our investments in the

Cellular Partnerships in the second half of 2010 and 2009

for comparability to 2011 gain on sale of the Finance and

Accounting outsourcing line of business asset impairment

charges the HR Management related impacts

restructuring charges CEO transition costs non-operating

reserve reduction and pension settlement costs EBITDA

excluding only the gain on the sale of the Celular

Partnerships was $294.8 $68.9 and $246.2 for 2011 2010

and 2009 respectively Excluding all these items adjusted

EBITDA was $287.8 $272.7 and $305.2 for 2011 2010

and 2009 respectively For comparison to 2012 forecast

we also provide adjusted EBITDA excluding earnings from

the Cellular Partnerships for the first half of 2011 2010

and 2009 Excluding first half earnings adjusted EBITDA

was $267.6 $247.7 and $283.7 for 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively

reconciliation of the GAAP measure earnings from

continuing operations to the non-GAAP measures EBITDA

and adjusted EBITDA is as follows

2011 2010 2009

Income Loss from

Continuing Operations net

of tax 328.3 $74.7 84.5

Depreciation and

Amortization 96.5 107.4 121.2

Interest expense 16.1 19.5 28.9

Income tax expense 118.9 16.7 11.6

EBITDA non-GAAP

measure 559.8 68.9 246.2

Gain on sate of interests

in Cellular Partnerships 265.0

EBITDA excluding gain on sale

of interests in Cellular

Partnerships
294.8 68.9 246.2

Asset impairment

charges 181.1 3.1

Earnings from Cellular

Partnerships in 2H 2010

and 2009 22.2 19.5

Gain on sate of Finance

and Accounting

outsourcing line of

business 7.0

Restructuring charges 36.7 43.3

HR Management related

costs not qualifying as

Discontinued

Operations 9.1 32.1

CEO transition costs 7.6

Pension plan settlement

charges 6.4

Non-operating reserve

reduction 14.9

Adjusted EBITDA non-GAAP

measure 287.8 $272.7 $305.2

Earnings from Cellular

Partnerships in 1H 2011
2010 and 2009 20.2 25.0 21.5

Adjusted EBITDA excluding

Cellular Partnership earnings

non-GAAP measure 267.6 $247.7 $283.7

Management uses EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to monitor

and evaluate the performance of the business and believes

the presentation of these measures will enhance investors

ability to analyze trends in the business and evaluate the
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Companys underlying performance relative to other

companies in the industry The Company also uses EBITDA

and Adjusted EBITDA in the calculations for certain

employee incentive compensation plans Adjusted EBITDA

should not be considered in isolation or as substitute for

income from continuing operations net of tax or other

income statement data prepared in accordance with GAAP

and our presentation of adjusted EBITDA may not be

comparable to similarly-titled measures used by other

companies Management uses both the non-GAAP meas

ure adjusted EBITDA and the GAAP measure income from

continuing operations net of tax in its evaluation of

underlying performance There are no material purposes

for which we use this non-GAAP measure beyond the

purposes described above This non-GAAP measure should

be considered supplemental in nature and should not be

construed as being more important that comparable GAAP

measures

Capital Resources Off-Balance Sheet

Arrangements and Contractual Commitments

At December 31 2011 total capitalization was $1538.7

consisting of $127.2 of short-term and long-term debt and

capital lease obligations and $1411.5 of equity At

December 31 2010 total capitalization was $1394.4

consisting of $210.3 of short-term and long-term debt and

capital lease obligations and $1184.1 of equity The total

debt-to-capital ratio at December 31 2011 was 8.3/o

which compares to 15.1I at December 31 2010 The

decrease in this ratio is due to lower level of borrowings

and higher level of equity in 2011 compared to 2010

On March 11 2011 we entered into $300 Four-Year

Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility

Agreement the New Credit Facility This New Credit

Facility replaces our $400 Five-Year Competitive Advance

and Revolving Credit
Facility Agreement the Prior Credit

Facility dated as of October 20 2006 and as amended

subsequently among Convergys and group of financial

institutions In connection with our entry into the New

Credit Facility we terminated the Prior Credit Facility

There were no balances outstanding under the Prior

Revolving Facility at December 31 2010

We have two borrowing options available under the New

Credit Facility competitive advance option which is

provided on an uncommitted competitive advance basis

through an auction mechanism and ii revolving credit

option which is provided on committed basis Under

each option amounts borrowed and repaid may be

re-borrowed subject to availability Borrowings under the

New Credit Facility bear interest at one of the rates

described in the New Credit Facility The New Credit

Facility includes certain restrictive covenants including

maintenance of interest coverage and debt-to-EBITDA

ratios as defined in the New Credit Facility The Compa

nys interest coverage ratio defined as the ratio of EBITDA

to consolidated interest expense cannot be less than 4.00

to 1.00 as determined on rolling four quarter basis Our

debt-to-EBITDA ratio cannot be greater than 3.00 to 1.00

until December 31 2012 and 2.75 to 1.00 after

December 31 2012 The New Credit Facility also contains

customary representations and warranties In the event of

default the lenders may terminate the commitments

and declare the amounts outstanding and all accrued

interest immediately due and payable The maturity date

of the New Credit Facility is March 11 2015 except that

upon the satisfaction of certain conditions we may

extend the maturity date by one year twice during the

term We will pay an annual facility fee regardless of

utilization At December 31 2011 the
facility was

undrawn We were in compliance with all covenants at

December 31 2011

In December 2004 we issued $250.0 in 4.875/o Unsecured

Senior Notes 4.875/o Senior Notes due December 15

2009 During the first nine months of 2009 we retired

approximately $58.2 of the outstanding debt In the

fourth quarter of 2009 we announced an exchange offer

under the terms of which the Company offered to

exchange one-thousand twenty dollars in principal amount

of its new 5.75/a Junior Subordinated Convertible

Debentures due September 2029 2029 Convertible

Debentures for each one-thousand dollars in principal

amount of its 4.875/o Senior Notes We issued total of

$125.0 aggregate principal amount of the 2029
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Convertible Debentures in exchange for $122.5 of the

4.875Io Senior Notes This exchange transaction resulted

in loss on extinguishment of debt of $2.3 that is

reflected within other income expense net in the

accompanying Statements of Operations and Compre

hensive Income Loss for the year ended December 31

2009 Following the settlement of the exchange approx

imately $70.1 aggregate principal amount of the 4.875/o

Senior Notes remained outstanding that was fully paid in

December 2009 The entire balance of the 2029

Convertible Debentures was outstanding as of

December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

As discussed in Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements we leased an office complex in Orlando

Florida under an agreement that expired in June 2010

the Orlando lease Pursuant to the terms of the lease

on October 2009 we were required to provide notice to

the Lessor of our intention to either purchase the property

for $65.0 or arrange to have the office complex sold to

third party the terms of the lease provided the Lessor

with residual value guarantee from us of up to $55.0

Although continuing to pursue refinancing of the

Orlando lease on October 2009 we effectively elected

the purchase option under the required notification

provision of the lease agreement

On June 30 2010 we refinanced this lease agreement As

part of the refinancing we paid approximately $10.0 to

reduce the principal under the prior facility related to the

residual value guarantee provision referenced above such

amount having been previously accrued The new facility

provides for new lease period of five years Upon

termination or expiration of the new lease facility we are

required to either purchase the property for $55.0 or

arrange to have the office complex sold to third party

the terms of the lease provide the Lessor with residual

value guarantee from us of up to $47.0 Total scheduled

lease payments during the term are currently estimated to

be approximately $10.0 At December 31 2011 and 2010

we accounted for the Orlando lease as capital lease

During 2009 we entered into $125.0 asset securitization

facility
collateralized by accounts receivable of certain of

the Companys subsidiaries of which $50.0 was scheduled

to expire in June 2010 and $75.0 expires in June 2012

The $50.0 that was scheduled to expire in June 2010 was

extended through June 2011 During June 2011 the

Company renegotiated the terms of the agreement

increasing the purchase limit to $150.0 and extending the

terms to June 2014 The asset securitization program is

conducted through Convergys Funding Inc wholly-

owned subsidiary The asset securitization facility does

not qualify for sale treatment under the authoritative

guidance for the accounting for transfers and servicing of

financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities Accord

ingly the accounts receivable and related debt obligation

will remain on the Companys Consolidated Balance

Sheets At December 31 2011 the facility was undrawn

At December 31 2010 we had borrowings of $85.0 under

this facility

During 2011 we repurchased 7.7 of our common shares

for $96.8 pursuant to outstanding authorizations The

timing and terms of any future transactions depend on

number of considerations including market conditions and

our liquidity In October 2011 the Company announced

that its Board of Directors authorized the Company to

repurchase up to an incremental $200 of outstanding

common shares from time to time as market and business

conditions warrant At December 31 2011 the Company

has authority to repurchase an additional $162.7 pursuant

to this authorization
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The following summarizes our contractual obligations at

December 31 2011 and the effect such obligations are

expected to have on

periods

liquidity and cash flows in future

Lens

Than 1-3 After

contractual Obligations Total Year Yearn Yearn

Debt and capital lease

obLigations $194.7 6.2 63.5 $125.0

Debt interest 136.3 9.5 27.7 99.1

Operating Leases 81.5 26.8 36.7 18.0

Pennion

contributionn 76.2 11.2 45.0 20.0

unrecognized tax

benefits

Total $488.7 $53.7 $172.9 $262.1

See Nnte of the Nntes to Consolidated Finaecal Statements fur further

information

This includes interest expense on both variable and hued rate debt and

capital ease obligations Variable interest rates hane been assumed to

remain constant at current levels through the end of the term This includes

only the cash payable compound of interest expense in our 2t29 Connertible

Debentures

See Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated financal Statements for further

information

In order to meet ERISA funding requirements the Company expects to

contribute $11.2 to fund its cash balance pension plan in 2012 Estimates for

2013 and beyond assume 7.5 return on assets and effective interest rate

of 6f Actual cash payments may vary
bused

upon
actual performance

Unrecognized tax henefitx of $112.3 are excluded from this table an the

uncertainty reluted to the amount and period of any cash sefflemeot

prevents the Company from making reasonably reliable estimate

At December 31 2011 we had outstanding letters of

credit of approximately $32 bond obligations of approx

imately $2 related to performance and payment guaran

tees and $35 related to our former HR Management line

of business Upon completion of the sale of the HR

Management business we continue to be responsible for

these bond obligations Although NorthgateArinso is

obligated to indemnify the Company for any and all losses

costs liabilities and expenses incurred related to these

performance bonds the Company maintains liability of

approximately $1 We believe that any guarantee obliga

tion that may arise related to performance and payment

guarantees of continuing operations will not be material

We also have purchase commitments with tele

communications providers of approximately $17 for 2012

Market Risk

We are exposed to variety of market risks including the

effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and

interest rates Market risk is the potential loss arising from

adverse changes in market rates and prices Our risk

management strategy includes the use of derivative

instruments to reduce the effects on our operating results

and cash flows from fluctuations caused by volatility in

currency exchange and interest rates In using derivative

financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in

exchange rates and interest rates we expose ourselves to

counterparty credit risk We manage exposure to counter-

party credit risk by entering into derivative financial

instruments with investment grade-rated institutions that

can be expected to perform fully
under the terms of the

agreements and by diversifying the number of financial

institutions with which we enter into such agreements

Interest Rate Risk

At December 31 2011 we had $59.9 in outstanding

variable rate borrowings and $67.3 in outstanding fixed

rate borrowings The carrying amount of our variable

borrowings reflects fair value due to their short-term and

variable interest rate features Our variable interest rate

debt had an effective interest rate of 3.0/u during the year

ended December 31 2011 Based upon our exposure to

variable rate borrowings one percentage point change

in the weighted average interest rate would change our

annual interest expense by approximately $1

We sometimes use interest rate swaps to hedge our

interest rate exposure These instruments are hedges of

the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related

to recognized asset or liability These contracts are

entered into to protect against the risk that the eventual

cash flows resulting from such transactions will be

adversely affected by changes in interest rates There were

no outstanding interest rate swaps covering interest rate

exposure at December 31 2011

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We serve many of our U.S.-based clients using contact

center capacity in the Philippines India Canada and
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Colombia Although the contracts with these clients are

typically priced in U.S dollars substantial portion of the

costs incurred to render services under these contracts are

denominated in Philippine pesos PHP Indian rupees

INR Canadian dollars CAD or Colombian pesos COP
which represents foreign exchange exposure Beginning

in 2011 we entered into contract with client priced in

Australian dollars AUD As of December 31 2011 we

have hedged portion of our exposure related to the

anticipated cash flow requirements denominated in these

foreign currencies by entering into forward contracts with

several financial institutions to acquire total of PHP

19399.7 at fixed price of $424.4 at various dates

through December 2014 INR 7588.7 at fixed price of

$152.9 at various dates through December 2014 CAD 12.0

at fixed price of $11.4 at various dates through

December 2012 and COP 31200.0 at fixed price of $15.9

at various dates through December 2013 and to sell

total of AUD 14.6 at fixed price of $15.2 at various dates

through December 2012 The fair value of these derivative

instruments as of December 31 2011 is presented in Note

13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements The

potential loss in fair value at December 31 2011 for such

contracts resulting from hypothetical 100/0 adverse

change in all foreign currency exchange rates is approx

imately $59 This loss would be substantially mitigated by

corresponding gains on the underlying exposures

Other foreign currency exposures arise from transactions

denominated in currency other than the functional

currency We periodically enter into forward exchange

contracts that are not designated as hedges The purpose

of these derivative instruments is to protect the Company

against foreign currency exposure pertaining to receiv

ables payables and intercompany transactions that are

denominated in currencies different from the functional

currencies of the Company or the respective subsidiaries

As of December 31 2011 the fair value of these

derivatives was immaterial to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our Financial Statements in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States Our significant accounting policies are disclosed in

Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements The

preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States requires us to make estimates and assumptions that

affect reported amounts and related disclosures On an

ongoing basis we evaluate our estimates and judgments

in these areas based on historical experience and other

relevant factors Our estimates as of the date of the

Financial Statements reflect our best judgment giving

consideration to all currently available facts and circum

stances As such these estimates may require adjustment

in the future as additional facts become known or as

circumstances change

We have identified below the accounting policies and

estimates that we believe are most critical in compiling

our statements of financial condition and operating

results We have reviewed these critical accounting poli

cies and estimates and related disclosures with the Audit

Committee of our Board of Directors

Goodwill

The Company has recorded on its Consolidated Balance

Sheets Goodwill of $818.5 and $820.5 at

December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 respectively

The December 31 2010 balance is after $166.5 goodwill

impairment charge related to the Customer Interaction

Technology CIT reporting unit formerly referred to as

the Relationship Technology Management RTM reporting

unit which is within the Customer Management segment

The CIT reporting unit is comprised primarily of Inter-

voice which was acquired in September 2008 The

impairment charge for the Companys CIT reporting unit

was the result of change in the strategic plan for the

unit which was finalized in the fourth quarter of 2010

reflecting the output of the Companys annual strategic

business planning process As result of declining

revenue during the preceding 12 months lower future
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revenue projections and transaction valuation multiples

lower than those supported at the time of the Intervoice

acquisition the fair value of the reporting unit was

determined to be less than carrying value

Goodwill is allocated to the reporting units at the date the

goodwill is
initially

recorded Once goodwill has been

allocated to the reporting units it generally no longer

retains its identification with particular acquisition but

instead becomes identified with reporting unit as

whole As result all of the fair value of each reporting

unit is available to support the value of goodwill allocated

to the unit As of December 31 2011 the Company

operated in two core business segments as discussed in

Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Goodwill impairment testing is performed at the reporting

unit level one level below the business segment As

disclosed in Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements we test goodwill for impairment annually as

of October and at other times if events have occurred or

circumstances exist that indicate the carrying value of

goodwill may no longer be recoverable such as

significant adverse change in the business climate

decision to sell or dispose of all or significant portion of

reporting unit or significant decline in the Companys

stock price

For 2011 and 2010 the Company tested goodwilL for the

following reporting units Customer Management Live

Agents Customer Management CIT CIT and

Information Management

Under U.S GAAP the impairment test for goodwill

invoLves two-step process The first step compares the

fair value of reporting unit with its carrying amount

including the goodwill allocated to each reporting unit

Step If the fair value of the reporting unit is in excess

of the carrying value the related goodwill is considered

not to be impaired and no further analysis is necessary If

the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the fair

value there is an indication of potential impairment and

second step of testing is performed to measure the

amount of the impairment if any for that reporting unit

AnaLysis

Operations continued

When required the second step compares the implied fair

value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying

amount of the reporting unit goodwill The implied fair

value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the

amount of goodwill recognized in business combination

which is the excess of the fair value of the reporting unit

determined in step one over the fair value of the net

assets and identifiable intangibles as if the reporting unit

were being acquired Any excess of the carrying value of

the reporting unit goodwill over the implied fair value of

the reporting unit goodwill will be recorded as an impair

ment loss An impairment charge recognized cannot

exceed the amount of goodwill allocated to reporting

unit and cannot be reversed subsequently even if the fair

value of the reporting unit recovers

Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using

combination of the market approach and the income

approach Under the market approach fair value is based

on actual stock prices or transaction prices of comparable

companies The market approach requires significant

judgment regarding the selection of comparable compa

nies Under the income approach fair value is dependent

on the present value of net cash flows to be derived from

the ownership The income approach requires significant

judgment including estimates about future cash flows and

discount rates The forecasted cash flows are based upon

the Companys long-term strategic business plan and

terminal value is used to estimate the operating segments

cash flows beyond this plan The discount rate represents

the weighted-average cost of capital which is an estimate

of the overall after-tax rate of return required by equity

and debt market participants of business enterprise

Both the market and income approaches require the use of

significant judgments including judgments about appro

priate discount rates perpetual growth rates and the

timing of expected future cash flows Discount rate

assumptions are based upon an assessment of the risk

inherent in the future cash flows and were concluded to

be l2/o for the Customer ManagementLive Agent and

Information Management reporting units and l3/o for the

CIT reporting unit for 2011 Sensitivity analyses were
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The Company compared and assessed the total fair values
performed around discount rates and growth rates

including terminal growth rates in order to assess the

reasonableness of the assumptions and the resulting

estimated fair values combination of methodologies is

used and weighted appropriately for reporting units with

significant adverse changes in business climate

Based on the 2010 results of Step for the CIT reporting

unit there was an indication of impairment as the

carrying value exceeded the fair value of the reporting

unit Accordingly the second step of testing was

performed for CIT Based on the results of the second

step the Company recorded $166.5 goodwill impairment

charge $160.8 net of tax in the fourth quarter of 2010

included in the asset impairment caption in the accom

panying Consolidated Statements of Operations The

remaining goodwill balance allocated to the CIT reporting

unit at December 31 2010 was $45.8

WhiLe no impairment was noted in Step of the CIT

reporting unit impairment test at October 2011

goodwill present in the reporting unit may be sensitive to

further revenue declines due to soft economic activity and

increased competition Based on the current year results

of Step for the CIT reporting unit there was no

indication of impairment as the fair value exceeded the

carrying value of the reporting unit by 6/a The amount of

goodwill allocated to the CIT reporting unit at the

October 2011 testing date was $46.0

The results of Stepi for Customer Management-Live Agents

and Information Management reporting units indicated

there was no goodwill impairment in 2011 or 2010 Each

of these reporting units fair value was in excess of the

carrying value by approximately 20/a or more 100 basis

point increase in the discount rate and decrease in the

expected future cash flows would not change the results

of Step We believe we make every reasonable effort to

ensure that we accurately estimate the fair value of the

reporting units However future changes in the assump

tions used to make these estimates including future sales

and margin trends market conditions and cash flow could

result in an impairment loss

of the reporting units to its market capitalization at the

annual assessment date to determine if the fair values are

reasonable compared to external market indicators The

fair value of the Companys reporting units reasonably

approximates total market capitalization adjusted for

reasonable implied control premium Subsequent to the

Companys annual impairment test for each of its reporting

units no indications of impairment were identified

Other Intangible Assets

At December 31 2011 we had carrying value of $52.7 of

other intangible assets net of amortization consisting of

$22.6 in software which is classified in property plant

and equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets $1.7

in trademarks related to the Intervoice acquisition and

$28.4 in customer relationships As amortizable intangibLe

assets the Company evaluates the intangible assets for

recoverability on an annual basis or if events or circum

stances indicate possible inability to recover their

carrying amounts by comparing estimates of undis

counted future cash flows to the carrying values of the

related assets Based on the results of testing no impair

ment charges were recognized in 2011 The goodwill

impairment charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2010

was an impairment indicator however testing resulted in

no impairment to the other intangible assets in 2010

Property Plant and Equipment

The cost of property plant and equipment is depreciated

by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives

of the assets The Company reviews property plant and

equipment asset groups for impairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount

of an asset may not be recoverable The Company monitors

these changes and events on at least quarterly

basis Examples of events or changes in circumstances

could include but are not limited to prolonged

economic downturn current period operating or cash flow

losses combined with history of losses or forecast of

continuing losses associated with the use of an asset

group or current expectation that an asset group will be
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations continued

Amounts in Millions
Except Per Share Amounts

sold or disposed of before the end of its previously

estimated useful life Recoverability is based upon projec

tions of anticipated future undiscounted cash flows

associated with the use and eventual disposal of the

property plant and equipment asset groups as well as

specific appraisals in certain instances Reviews occur at

the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are

largely independent of cash flows associated with other

property plant and equipment asset groups If the future

undiscounted cash flows result in value that is less than

the carrying value then the long-lived asset is considered

impaired and loss is recognized based on the amount by

which the carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair

value Various factors that the Company uses in

determining the impact of these assessments include the

expected useful lives of Long-lived assets and our ability

to realize any undiscounted cash flows in excess of the

carrying amounts of such asset groups and are affected

primarily by changes in the expected use of the assets

changes in technology or development of alternative

assets changes in economic conditions changes in

operating performance and changes in expected future

cash flows Because judgment is involved in determining

the fair value of property plant and equipment asset

groups there is risk that the carrying value of these assets

may require adjustment in future periods

During the fourth quarter of 2010 we committed to plan

to sell certain facilities included in the CIT reporting unit

Accordingly the property met the criteria to be classified

as Held-for-Sale and was required to be measured at the

Lower of its carrying value or fair value Less costs to sell

We determined the fair value was less than its carrying

amount therefore we recognized an impairment loss of

$14.6 $9.3 after tax included in the asset impairment

caption in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of

Operations

During 2011 the Company sold one of the two facilities at

its carrying value and therefore no gain or loss was

recognized on the sale At December 31 2011 the

Company had not identified buyer for the second

facility The property no longer meets the Held-for-Sale

criteria The
facility was reclassified to property and

equipment net on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes includes income taxes

paid currently payable or receivable and those deferred

Under U.S GAAP the Company recognizes deferred tax

assets and liabilities based on the differences between the

financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of

assets and liabilities The deferred tax assets and

liabilities are determined based on the enacted tax rates

expected to apply in the periods in which the deferred tax

assets or liabilities are expected to be settled or realized

The Company regularly reviews its deferred tax assets for

recoverability and establishes valuation allowance if it is

more likely than not that some portion or all of deferred

tax asset will not be realized The determination as to

whether deferred tax asset will be realized is made on

jurisdictional basis and is based on the evaluation of

positive and negative evidence This evidence includes

historical pre-tax and taxable income projected future

taxable income the expected timing of the reversal of

existing temporary differences and the implementation of

tax planning strategies Projected future taxable income is

based on expected results and assumptions as to the

jurisdiction in which the income will be earned The

expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary

differences is based on current tax law and the Companys

tax methods of accounting

The Company also reviews its tax activities and evaluates

uncertain tax positions using two-step approach The

first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by

determining whether the weight of available evidence

indicates that it is more likely
than not that the position

will be sustained on audit including resolution of related

appeals or litigation processes if any The second step is

to measure the tax benefit which is the largest amount

that is more than 500/u likely of being realized upon

ultimate settlement The Companys policy is to recognize

interest and penalties accrued on unrecognized tax bene
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fits as part of income tax expense Significant judgment is

required in determining our liability
for uncertain tax

positions The application of tax laws and regulations is

subject to legal and factual interpretation judgment and

uncertainty Tax laws and regulations themselves are

subject to change as result of changes in fiscal policy

changes in legislation the evolution of regulations and

court rulings Therefore the actual liability for U.S or

foreign taxes may be significantly different from our

estimates which could result in the need to record addi

tional tax liabilities or potentially reverse previously

recorded tax liabilities We believe that we make

reasonable effort to ensure accuracy in our judgments and

estimates

Restructuring Charges

We recognize liabilities for cost associated with an exit

or disposal activity measured initially at fair value only

when the iability is incurred During the last three years

we recorded restructuring charges related to reductions in

headcount and facility closures As of December 31 2011

we had restructuring accrual of $10.8 $9.6 of which

relates to facility
closure costs that will be paid over

severaL years until the leases expire The accrual is equal

to the future costs associated with the abandoned facili

ties net of the proceeds from any probable future

sublease agreements We have used estimates based on

consultation with real estate advisors to estimate the

proceeds from any future sublease agreements We will

continue to evaluate our estimates in recording the facili

ties abandonment charge As result there may be

additional charges or reversals in the future

Revenue Recognition

Our revenue recognition policies are discussed in detail in

Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

portion of our revenues is derived from transactions that

require significant level of judgment This includes

Multiple Element Outsourcing ArrangementsWe deliver

multiple services under our client arrangements and we

must assess these multiple-element arrangements to

determine whether they can be separated into more

than one unit of accounting The authoritative guidance

for revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables

establishes the following criteria all of which must be

met in order for deliverable to qualify as separate

unit of accounting

The delivered items have value to the client on

stand-alone basis

There is objective and reliable evidence of the fair

value of the undelivered items

If the arrangement includes general right of

return relative to the delivered items delivery or

performance of the undelivered items is considered

probable and substantially in the control of the

Company

If these criteria are met each of the contractual serv

ices included in the contract is treated as separate

unit of accounting and revenue is recognized as we

deliver each of the contractual services If these criteria

are not met all of the services included are accounted

for as single unit of accounting Revenue is then

recognized either using proportional performance

method such as recognizing revenue based on transac

tional services delivered or on straight-line basis once

we begin to deliver the final service

License ArrangementsThe accounting for our license

and support and maintenance arrangements can be

complex and requires significant amount of judgment

Some of the factors that we must assess include the

separate elements of the arrangement vendor-specific

objective evidence of fair value for the various

undelivered elements of the arrangement whether the

software fees are fixed or determinable whether the

fees are considered collectible and whether services

included in the arrangement represent significant

production customization or modification of the

software

Percentage of CompletionWe recognize some software

license and related professional and consulting
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis

of FinanciaL Condition and Results of Operations continued

Aniounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts

revenues using the percentage-of-completion method of

accounting by relating contract costs incurred to date

to total estimated contract costs at completion This

method of accounting relies on estimates of total

expected contract revenues and costs This method is

used because reasonably dependable estimates of the

revenues and costs applicable to various stages of

contract can be made Because the financial reporting

of these contracts depends on estimates which are

assessed continually during the term of the contracts

recognized revenues are subject to revisions as the

contracts progress to completion Revisions in estimates

are reflected in the period in which the facts that give

rise to revision become known Accordingly favorable

changes in estimates result in additional revenue

recognition and unfavorable changes in estimates

result in the reversal of previously recognized revenues

When estimates indicate loss under contract

provision for such loss is recorded as component of

cost of providing services and products sold As work

progresses under loss contract revenues continue to

be recognized and portion of the contract loss

incurred in each period is charged to the contract loss

reserve

The assessments of these areas require us to make

significant number of judgments The judgments made in

these areas could have significant effect on revenues

recognized in any period by changing the amount and/or

the timing of the revenue recognized We believe that we

make reasonable effort to ensure accuracy in our

judgment and estimates

Other

We have made certain other estimates that while not

involving the same degree of judgment are important to

understanding our financial statements These estimates

are in the areas of measuring our obligations related to

our defined benefit plans and self-insurance accruals

New Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASU 2009-13 Multiple-

Deliverable Revenue Arrangements amendments to FASB

ASC Topic 605 Revenue Recognition ASU 2009-13

and ASU 2009-14 Certain Arrangements That Include

Software Elements amendments to FASB ASC Topic 985

Software ASU 2009-14 ASU 2009-13 requires entities

to allocate revenue in an arrangement using estimated

selling prices of the delivered goods and services based on

selling price hierarchy The amendments eliminate the

residual method of revenue allocation and require revenue

to be allocated using the relative selling price

method ASU 2009-14 removes tangible products from the

scope of software revenue guidance and provides guidance

on determining whether software deliverables in an

arrangement that includes tangible product are covered

by the scope of the software revenue guidance ASU

2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 should be applied on

prospective basis for revenue arrangements entered into

or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after

June 15 2010 with early adoption permitted The

Company adopted ASU 2009-13 and 2009-14 effective

January 2011 Adoption of these Standards did not

have material impact to the Companys consolidated

results of operations and financial position

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-05

Presentation of Comprehensive Income ASU 2011-05

requiring entities to present net income and other

comprehensive income in either single continuous

statement or in two separate but consecutive statements

of net income and other comprehensive income The

option to present items of other comprehensive income in

the statement of changes in equity is eliminated

Reclassification adjustments between net income and

other comprehensive income must be shown on the face

of the statements the previous option to disclose

reclassification adjustments in the footnotes has been

eliminated The effective date for ASU 2011-05 was at the

start of the reporting entitys fiscal year beginning after

December 15 2011 and required retrospective application

However in December 2011 the FASB issued ASU

2011-12 Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments

to the Presentation of Reclassification of Items Out of

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting
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Item continued 7A and

Standards Update No 2011-05 ASU 2011-12 All other

requirements of ASU 2011-05 were not affected by ASU

2011-12 including the requirement to report other

comprehensive income either in single continuous

financial statement or in two separate but consecutive

financial statements The Company will provide the

disclosures required by these Standards in the first quarter

of 2012

Item 7A Quantitative and

Qualitative Disclosures about Market

Risk

The information required by Item 7A is included in Item

of this Form 10-K

Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data

Beginning on page 52 are the Consolidated Financial

Statements with applicable notes and the related Report

of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm the

supplementary financial information specified by Item 302

of Regulation S-K and Financial Statement Schedule II

Valuation and Qualifying Accruals
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Convergys Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets of Convergys Corporation as of December 31 2011

and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of

operations and comprehensive income loss shareholders

equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31 2011 Our audits also included

the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at

Item 15a These financial statements and schedule are

the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our

audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above

present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of Convergys Corporation at

December 31 2011 and 2010 and the consolidated results

of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended December 31 2011 in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles Also in our opinion the related financial

statement schedule when considered in relation to the

basic financial statements taken as whole presents

fairly in all material respects the information set forth

therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Convergys Corporations internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based on

criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orga

nizations of the Treadway Commission and our report

dated February 22 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Ernst Young LLP

Cincinnati Ohio

February 22 2012
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ConsoLidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income Loss

Exclusive of depreciation and amortization with the exception of amortization of deferred charges

The accompanying notes areas integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1420.5

527.4

49.3

86.9

9.6

2093.7

168.3

285.2

9.8

16.1

447.2

118.9

328.3

6.5

334.8

Year Ended December 31

1340.9

575.7

56.2

97.3

10.1

36.7

181.1

2298.0

94.6

47.2

8.9

19.5

58.0

16.7

74.7

21.5

53.2

1461.6

616.4

74.2

110.3

10.9

43.3

3.1

2319.8

101.2

41.0

17.2

28.9

96.1

11.6

84.5

161.8

77.3

Amounts In Millions Except Per Share Amounts 2011 2010 2009

Revenues $2262.0 $2203.4 $2421.0

Operating Costs and Expenses

Cost of providing services and products sold1

Selling general and administrative expenses

Research and development costs

Depreciation

Amortization

Restructuring charges

Total costs and expenses

Operating Income Loss

Earnings and gain from Cellular Partnerships net

Other income expense net

Interest expense

Income loss before income taxes

Income tax expense

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax

Net Income Loss

Other Comprehensive Income Loss net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustments 3.9 11.7 25.4

Change related to pension liability net of tax benefit expense of $6.7

$2.9 and $2.4 7.3 3.5 2.2

Unrealized loss gain on hedging activities net of tax benefit expense

of $13.0 $20.0 and $27.9 20.2 33.5 51.8

Total Comprehensive Income Loss 303.4 11.5 2.1

Basic Earnings Loss per share

Continuing Operations 2.73 0.61 0.69

Discontinued Operations 0.06 0.18 1.32

Net basic earnings loss per share 2.79 0.43 0.63

Diluted Earnings Loss per share

Continuing Operations 2.67 0.61 0.68

Discontinued Operations 0.05 0.18 1.30

Net diluted earnings loss per share 2.72 0.43 0.62

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 120.2 123.1 122.8

Diluted 122.9 123.1 124.9
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

At December 31

Amounts In Millions 2011 2010

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 421.8 186.1

Receivables net of allowances of $10.2 and $11.0 383.0 371.6

Deferred income tax asset 45.7 40.9

Prepaid expenses 35.4 38.3

Other current assets 65.2 56.8

Current assets held-for-sale 11.8

Total current assets 951.1 705.5

Property and equipment net 365.4 347.6

Goodwill 818.5 820.5

Other intangibles net 30.1 40.1

Investments in Cellular Partnerships 64.3

Deferred income tax assets 35.7 38.1

Other assets 125.1 109.2

Total Assets 2325.9 2125.3

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Current Liabilities

Debt and
capital

lease obligations maturing within one year 6.2 91.0

Payables deferred revenue and other current liabilities 376.0 380.2

Total current liabilities 382.2 471.2

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 121.0 119.3

Deferred income tax liabilities 104.8 76.4

Accrued pension liabilities 121.1 129.6

Other long-term liabilities 185.3 144.7

Total liabilities 914.4 941.2

Shareholders Equity

Preferred shareswithout par value 5.0 authorized none outstanding

Common shareswithout par value 500.0 authorized 185.0 and 184.2 issued 115.4 and 122.1

outstanding as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 respectively 1111.8 1094.5

Treasury stock69.6 shares in 2011 and 62.1 in 2010 1149.1 1060.2

Retained earnings 1495.5 1165.1

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 46.7 15.3

Total shareholders equity 1411.5 1184.1

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 2325.9 2125.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the ConsoLidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash FLows

Year Ended December 31

Amounts in MitUons 2011 2010 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income toss 334.8 53.2 77.3

Income loss from discontinued operations 6.5 21.5 161.8

Income toss from continuing operations 328.3 74.7 84.5

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 96.5 107.4 121.2

Gain on sale of interests in the Cellular Partnerships 265.0

Gain on sale of business 7.0
Asset impairment 181.1 3.1

Deferred income tax expense benefit 48.2 4.0 30.4

Earnings from Cellular Partnerships net 20.2 47.2 41.0

Distributions from Cellular Partnerships 30.7 35.7 40.0

Stock compensation expense 17.4 14.4 16.6

Changes in assets and liabilities

Change in receivables 19.0 11.0 111.5

Change in other current assets 6.2 49.8 23.3

Change in deferred charges net 33.6 25.5 15.0

Change in other assets and liabilities 44.0 1.8 50.4

Change in payables and other current liabilities 25.3 24.2 2.9

Other net 4.6 4.8 2.7

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 196.6 217.2 384.0

Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations 23.0 79.3

Net cash provided by operating activities 196.6 194.2 304.7

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures 88.3 66.0 71.4

Proceeds from sale of interests in the Cellular Partnerships 320.0

Proceeds from disposition of assets 3.1

Proceeds from disposition of business 10.0

Purchase of investment securities 22.7

Acquisitions net of cash acquired 3.3 3.1

Net cash provided by used in investing activities of continuing operations 222.1 69.3 74.5

Net cash provided by used in investing activities of discontinued operations 70.0 3.5

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 222.1 0.7 78.0

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVES

Repayments of credit facilities and other debt net 86.0 315.6 132.3

Repurchase of common shares 96.8 24.9

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 3.0

Other net 3.2

Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations 183.0 340.5 132.3

Net cash used in financing activities of discontinued operations 2.7

Net cash used in financing activities 183.0 340.5 135.0

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 235.7 145.6 91.7

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 186.1 331.7 240.0

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 421.8 186.1 331.7

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid for interest 16.7 18.2 31.1

Income taxes paid net of refunds 20.6 16.9 13.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ConsoLidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

Number AccumuLated

of Other

Common Common Treasury Retained Comprehensive

Amounts in Millions
Shares Shares Stock Earnings Loss Total

Batance at December 31 2008 182.8 1034.2 1050.0 1302.3 $136.4 1150.1

Issuance of common shares 0.5

Treasury shares issued for share-based plans net 8.0 3.7 4.3

Tax related to share-based arrangements net of excess tax

benefits 5.2 5.2

Equity component of 2029 Convertible Debentures net of

deferred tax liability
36.0 36.0

Net loss 77.3 77.3

Other comprehensive income 79.4 79.4

Amortization of stock-based compensation 19.1 19.1

BaLance at December 31 2009 183.3 1084.1 1042.0 1221.3 57.0 1206.4

Issuance of common shares 0.9

Treasury shares issued for share-based plans net 6.7 3.0 3.7

Tax related to share-based arrangements net of excess tax

benefits 4.9 4.9

Repurchase of common shares 24.9 24.9

Net loss 53.2 53.2

Other comprehensive income 41.7 41.7

Amortization of stock-based compensation 15.3 15.3

BaLance at December 31 2010 184.2 1094.5 1060.2 1165.1 15.3 1184.1

Issuance of common shares 0.8

Treasury shares issued for share-based plans net 7.9 4.4 3.5

Tax related to share-based arrangements net of excess tax

benefits 1.9 1.9

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 3.0 3.0

Repurchase of common shares 96.8 96.8

Net income 334.8 334.8

Other comprehensive income 31.4 31.4

Amortization of stock-based compensation 16.2 16.2

BaLance at December 31 2011 185.0 $1111.8 $1149.1 $1495.5 46.7 $1411.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to ConsoLidated Financial Statements

Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts

Background and Basis of Presentation

Convergys Corporation the Company or Convergys is

global leader in relationship management The Company

provides solutions that drive more value from the

relationships its clients have with their customers and

employees Convergys turns these everyday interactions

into source of profit and strategic advantage for the

Companys clients The Companys unique combination of

domain expertise operational excellence and innovative

technologies has delivered process improvement and

actionable business insight to clients to enhance their

relationships with customers

Prior to June 2010 the Company had three reportable

segments Customer Management Information Manage

ment and Human Resources Management HR

Management In connection with the sale of the HR

Management line of business on June 2010 see Note

the Company reorganized its reportable segments into

two segments Customer Management which provides

agent-assisted services self-service and intelligent

technology care solutions and Information Management

which provides business support system BSS solutions

See Note 16 for information about these segments

Accounting Policies

ConsoLidation The accompanying Consolidated Finan

cial Statements have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States U.S GAAP and U.S Securities and Exchange

Commission regulations The Consolidated Financial

Statements include the accounts of the Companys

majority-owned subsidiaries All significant intercompany

accounts and transactions are eliminated upon

consolidation Investments in 20/o to 50/o owned affili

ates where the Company has significant influence are

accounted for under the equity method

RecLassification Certain balances in prior years have

been reclassified to conform to current year presentation

Use of Estimates The preparation of the Consolidated

Financial Statements in conformity with U.S GAAP

requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the amounts reported These estimates include

project completion dates time and cost required to

complete projects for purposes of revenue recognition and

future revenue expense and cash flow estimates for

purposes of impairment analysis and loss contract evalua

tion Actual results could differ from those estimates The

Companys results are affected by economic political

legislative regulatory and legal actions Economic

conditions such as recessionary trends inflation interest

and monetary exchange rates and government fiscal

policies can have significant effect on operations While

the Company maintains reserves for anticipated liabilities

and carries various levels of insurance the Company could

be affected by civil criminal regulatory or administrative

actions claims or proceedings

Foreign Currency Assets and liabilities of foreign

operations are translated to U.S dollars at year-end

exchange rates Revenues and expenses are translated at

average exchange rates for the year Translation adjust

ments are accumulated and reflected as adjustments to

comprehensive income loss component of Share

holders Equity and included in net earnings only upon

sale or liquidation of the underlying foreign subsidiary

Gains or losses resulting from foreign exchange trans

actions are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of

Operations and Comprehensive Income Loss within other

income expense net

Revenue Recognition Revenues from Customer

Management which accounted for 85/o of the Companys

2011 consolidated revenues mostly consist of fees

generated from outsourced services provided to the

Companys clients Information Management which

accounted for lS/o of 2011 consolidated revenues

generates its revenues from three primary sources data

processing professional and consulting services and

license and other services

The Companys revenues are recognized in conformity with

Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB ASC Topic

605-10 Revenue Recognition ASC 605-10 ASC Topic

605-25 Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliver-
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Notes to ConsoLidated FinanciaL Statements continued

Amounts in Millions
Except

Share and Per Share Amounts

ables ASC 605-25 and ASC Topic 985-605 Software

Revenue Recognition ASC 985-605 Revenues are

recognized only when there is evidence of an arrangement

and the Company determines that the fee is fixed and

determinable and collection of the fee included in the

arrangement is considered probable When determining

whether the fee is considered fixed and determinable and

collection is probable the Company considers number of

factors including the creditworthiness of the client and

the contractual payment terms If client is not consid

ered creditworthy all revenue under arrangements with

that client is recognized upon receipt of cash If payment

terms extend beyond what is considered customary or

standard in the related industry and geographic location

the related fees are considered extended and deferred

until they become due and payable

Approximately 9O/o of Customer Management revenues are

derived from agent-related services The Company typically

recognizes these revenues as services are performed based

on staffing hours or the number of contacts handled by

service agents using contractual rates In limited

number of engagements where the client pays fixed fee

the Company recognizes revenues based on the specific

facts and circumstances of the engagement using the

proportional performance method or upon final

completion of the engagement Customer Managements

remaining revenues are derived from sale of premise-based

and hosted automated self-care and technology solutions

License professional and consulting and maintenance and

software support services revenues recognized from sale of

these advanced speech recognition solutions are recog

nized pursuant to ASC 985 more fully described below

with Information Management revenues

Professional and consulting revenues accounted for 45/o

of the 2011 Information Management revenues These

revenues consist of fees generated for installation

implementation customization training and managed

services related either to the clients use of Information

Managements software in Information Managements data

centers or in their own processing environments The

professional and consulting revenues are recognized

monthly based on time and materials incurred at

contractually agreed upon rates or in some instances

based upon fixed fee Professional and consulting

services provided in connection with license arrangements

percentage-of-completion method The Company calcu

lates the percentage of work completed by comparing

contract costs incurred to date to total estimated contract

costs at completion Payment for these services sometimes

is dependent on milestones e.g commencement of work

completion of design plan completion of configuration

completion of customization These milestone payments

normally do not influence the Companys revenue recog

nition as the scheduled payments coincide with the period

of time the Company completes the work When the

professional and consulting services provided in

connection with license arrangements are not considered

essential or when professional and consulting services are

provided in connection with outsourcing arrangements

the revenues are recognized as the related services are

delivered

License and other revenues which accounted for 4OIo of

the 2011 Information Management revenues consist of

revenues generated from the sale of licenses to use

Information Managements proprietary software and

related software support and maintenance fees License

arrangements are contracted as either perpetual or term

licenses depending on the software product When

Information Management provides professional and

consulting services that are considered essential to the

softwares functionality the license element is recognized

together with the professional and consulting element

using the percentage-of-completion method In circum

are evaluated to

essential to the

When significant

software and the

required to meet

are considered

professional and

together with

determine whether those services are

clients functionality of the software

customization or modification of the

development of complex interfaces are

the clients functionality those services

essential Accordingly the related

consulting revenue is recognized

the license fee using the
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stances where the Company is providing professional and

consulting services that are considered essential to the

softwares functionality and the Company is unable to

determine the pattern in which Information Managements

professional and consulting services will be utilized the

license revenue is recognized on straight-line basis over

the implementation period When Information Management

is not required to provide services that are considered

essential to the softwares functionality the license element

is recognized upon delivery of the software assuming all

other revenue recognition criteria have been met

In connection with its license arrangements Information

Management typically is engaged to provide support and

maintenance services Revenues for support and main

tenance services are recognized ratably over the term of

the agreement For these arrangements Information

Management allocates the contract value to the elements

based on fair value of the individual elements Fair value

is determined using vendor specific objective evidence

VSOE which represents the normal pricing for these

elements when sold separately For very limited number

of its arrangements the Company has not had sufficient

VSOE of fair value of its undelivered elements principally

related to support and maintenance As result revenue

for the entire arrangement including license fees and

related professional and consulting fees has been

deferred and recognized over the term of the support and

maintenance period There may be cases in which there is

VSOE of fair value of the undelivered item but no such

evidence for the delivered items In these cases the

residual method is used to allocate the arrangement

consideration Under the residual method the amount of

consideration allocated to the delivered items equals the

total arrangement consideration less the aggregate VSOE

of fair value of the undelivered elements

Data processing which accounted for 15Io of the 2011

Information Management revenues consists of monthly

fees for processing client transactions in Information

Managements data centers and in some cases the

clients data centers using Information Managements

proprietary software Data processing revenues are recog

nized based on the number of invoices subscribers or

events that are processed by Information Management

using contractual rates In connection with any new data

processing outsourcing arrangements Information

Management often must perform significant set-up activ

ities or implementations including the installation and

customization of its proprietary software in its centers

Under these arrangements client does not take

possession of the software nor has the right to take

possession of the software without incurring significant

penalty As the client does not derive benefit from the

implementation itself but rather from the underlying

services that are delivered once the systems and processes

are launched the implementation services do not meet

the separation criteria as defined primarily under ASC 605

Therefore any proceeds collected for the implementation

are deferred and recognized over the contract period

beginning from the commencement of services

The Company considers the criteria established primarily

by ASC Topic 605-45 Principal Agent Considerations

ASC 605-45 in determining whether revenue should be

recognized on gross versus net basis Factors consid

ered in determining if gross or net basis recognition is

appropriate include whether the Company is primarily

responsible to the client for the services has discretion

on vendor selection or bears credit risk The Company

provides certain services to clients using third party

vendors Typically the costs incurred with third party

vendors related to these services are passed through to

the clients In consideration of the above mentioned

criteria total payments the Company receives from clients

related to these services are recorded as revenue and

payments the Company makes to third party vendors are

recorded as cost of providing services and products sold

The Company sometimes earns supplemental revenues in

each of the two segments depending on the satisfaction

of certain service levels or achievement of certain

performance measurement targets The supplemental

revenues are recognized only after required measurement

targets are met
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The Company recognizes revenues from transition services

provided to the buyer of the HR Management business as

such services are performed

Stock Compensation The Company accounts for stock-

based payment transactions in which the Company

receives employee services in exchange for equity instru

ments of the Company Stock-based compensation cost for

restricted stock awards and restricted stock units and

performance restricted stock units is measured based on

the closing fair market value of the Companys common

stock on the date of grant Stock-based compensation cost

for stock options is estimated at the grant date based on

each options fair-value as calculated by the Black-Scholes

option-pricing model Stock-based compensation cost for

restricted stock units with market condition is estimated

using Monte Carlo simulation model The Company

recognizes stock-based compensation cost as expense for

awards other than its performance-based restricted stock

units ratably on straight-line basis over the requisite

service period The Company recognizes stock-based

compensation cost associated with its performance based

restricted stock units over the requisite service period if it

is probable that the performance conditions will be

satisfied Compensation costs for awards with market

condition are recognized regardless of whether the market

condition is achieved The Company will recognize

benefit from stock-based compensation in equity if an

incremental tax benefit is realized by following the

ordering provisions of the tax law Tax benefits related to

stock compensation expense are reported as financing

cash flow and tax expenses are reported as operating cash

flow Further the Company applies an estimate forfeiture

rate to unvested awards when computing the stock

compensation-related expenses

Income Taxes The provision for income taxes includes

taxes paid currently payable or receivable and those

deferred Under U.S GAAP the Company recognizes

deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences

between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and

liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in

which the differences are expected to be settled or realized

The Company regularly reviews its deferred tax assets for

recoverability and establishes valuation allowance if it is

more likely
than not that some portion or all of deferred

tax asset will not be realized The determination as to

whether deferred tax asset will be realized is made on

jurisdictional basis and is based on the evaluation of

positive and negative evidence This evidence includes

historical pre-tax and taxable income projected future

taxable income the expected timing of the reversal of

existing temporary differences and the implementation of

tax planning strategies Projected future taxable income is

based on expected results and assumptions as to the

jurisdiction in which the income will be earned The

expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary

differences is based on current tax aw and the Companys

tax methods of accounting

The Company also reviews its tax activities and evaluates

uncertain tax positions using two-step approach The

first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by

determining if the weight of available evidence indicates

that it is more likely
than not that the position will be

sustained on audit including resolution of related appeals

or litigation processes if any The second step is to

measure the tax benefit which is the largest amount that

is more than 50%
likely

of being realized upon ultimate

settlement The Companys policy is to recognize interest

and penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits as

part of income tax expense

Other Comprehensive Income Loss Components of

other comprehensive income loss include currency

translation adjustments changes related to pension

liabilities net of tax and unrealized gains losses on

hedging activities net of tax Foreign currency translation

adjustments generally are not adjusted for income taxes

as they relate to indefinite investments in non-U.S

operations Accumulated other comprehensive income

loss also includes net of tax actuarial gains or losses

prior service costs or credits and transition assets and

obligations that are not recognized as components of net

periodic pension cost
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Concentration of Credit Risk In the normal course of

business the Company is exposed to credit risk The

principal concentrations of credit risk are short-term

investments accounts receivable and derivative instru

ments The Company regularLy monitors credit risk

exposures and takes steps to mitigate the likelihood of

these exposures resulting in loss Historically credit

losses on accounts receivable have not been material

because of the large concentration of revenues with

small number of Large established companies The

Company does not require collateral or other security to

support accounts receivable The Company evaluates the

creditworthiness of its clients in conjunction with its

revenue recognition processes as discussed above as well

as through its ongoing collectability assessment processes

for accounts receivable The Company maintains an

allowance for doubtful accounts receivable based upon

factors surrounding the credit risk of specific clients

historical trends and other information The Company

limits its counterparty credit risk exposures by entering

into derivative contracts with significant financial

institutions that are rated or better by SP

Cash Equivalents Cash equivalents consist of short-

term highly liquid investments with original maturities of

three months or less

Receivables Trade receivables are comprised primarily

of amounts owed to the Company by clients and are

presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of

$10.2 and $11.0 at December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively Contracts with individual clients determine

when receivables are due generally within 30-60 days

and whether interest is accrued on late payments

The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Companys best

estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the

Companys existing accounts receivable The Company

regularly reviews the adequacy of its allowance for

doubtful accounts The Company determines the allowance

based on historical write-off experience and current

economic conditions and also considers factors such as

customer credit past transaction history with the

customer and changes in customer payment terms when

determining whether the collection of receivable is

reasonably assured Account balances are charged off

against the allowance after all means of collection have

been exhausted and the potential for recovery is consid

ered remote

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are

stated at cost Depreciation is based on the straight-line

method over the estimated useful lives of the assets

Buildings are depreciated over 30-year life software

over five- to eight-year life and equipment generally

over three- to five-year life Leasehold improvements are

depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful life

or the remaining term of the associated lease

The Company reviews property plant and equipment asset

groups for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset

may not be recoverable The Company monitors these

changes and events on at least quarterly basis Examples

of events or changes in circumstances could include but

are not limited to prolonged economic downturn

current period operating or cash flow losses combined

with history of losses or forecast of continuing losses

associated with the use of an asset group or current

expectation that an asset group will be sold or disposed of

before the end of its previously estimated useful

Life Recoverability is based upon projections of antici

pated future undiscounted cash flows associated with the

use and eventual disposal of the property plant and

equipment asset groups as well as specific appraisals in

certain instances Reviews occur at the lowest level for

which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of

cash flows associated with other property plant and

equipment asset groups If the future undiscounted cash

flows result in value that is less than the carrying value

then the long-lived asset is considered impaired and loss

is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying

amount exceeds the estimated fair value Various factors

that the Company uses in determining the impact of these

assessments include the expected useful Lives of long-
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lived assets and our ability to realize any undiscounted

cash flows in excess of the carrying amounts of such asset

groups and are affected primarily by changes in the

expected use of the assets changes in technology or

development of alternative assets changes in economic

conditions changes in operating performance and

changes in expected future cash flows Because judgment

is involved in determining the fair value of property plant

and equipment asset groups there is risk that the carrying

value of these assets may require adjustment in future

periods

Software Development Costs Research and develop

ment expenditures are charged to expense as incurred The

development costs of software to be marketed are charged

to expense until technological feasibility is established

and capitalized thereafter subject to assessment of

realizability Amortization of the capitalized amounts is

computed using the greater of the sales ratio method or

the straight-line method over life of five years or less

The Company did not capitalize any software development

costs during the periods reported

Internal Use Software The Company capitalizes certain

expenditures for software that is purchased or internally

developed for use in the business During 2011 2010 and

2009 internally developed software amounts capitalized

were $3.8 $5.6 and $3.7 respectively Amortization of

internal use software begins when the software is ready

for service and continues on the straight-line method

generally over life of three years

GoodwiLL and Other IntangibLes As discussed more

fully
in Note goodwill is reviewed at the reporting unit

level for impairment as of October and at other times if

events have occurred or circumstances exist that indicate

the carrying value of goodwill may no longer be recover

able

The impairment test for goodwill involves two-step

process The first step compares the fair value of

reporting unit with its carrying amount including the

goodwill allocated to each reporting unit Step If the

fair value of the reporting units is in excess of the

carrying value the related goodwill is considered not to

be impaired and no further analysis is necessary If the

carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the fair

value there is an indication of potential impairment and

second step of testing is performed to measure the

amount of the impairment if any for that reporting unit

When required the second step compares the implied fair

value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying

amount of the reporting unit goodwill The implied fair

value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the

amount of goodwill recognized in business combination

which is the excess of the fair value of the reporting unit

determined in step one over the fair value of the net

assets and identifiable intangibles as if the reporting unit

were being acquired Any excess of the carrying value of

the reporting unit goodwill over the implied fair value of

the reporting unit goodwill will be recorded as an impair

ment loss An impairment charge recognized cannot

exceed the amount of goodwill allocated to reporting

unit and cannot be reversed subsequently even if the fair

value of the reporting unit recovers

Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using

combination of the market approach and the income

approach Under the market approach fair value is based

on actual stock prices or transaction prices of comparable

companies The market approach requires significant

judgment regarding the selection of comparable compa

nies Under the income approach value is dependent on

the present value of net cash flows to be derived from the

ownership The income approach requires significant

judgment including estimates about future cash flows and

discount rates combination of methodologies is used

and weighted appropriately for reporting units with

significant adverse changes in business climate

Other intangibles primarily customer relationship assets

and trademarks are amortized over straight-line basis

with lives ranging from four to twelve years and are

evaluated periodically if events or circumstances indicate

possible inability to recover their carrying amounts
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return on plan assets rate of compensation increases
Equity-Method Investments In July 2011 the

Company completed the sale of its 33.8% limited partner

ship interest in the Cincinnati SMSA Limited Partnership

provider of wireless communications in central and

southwestern Ohio and northern Kentucky and its 45.0/a

limited partnership interest in the Cincinnati SMSA Tower

Holdings LLC an operator of cellular tower space

collectively referred to as the Cellular Partnerships to

ATT Cincinnati SMSA Limited Partnership conducts its

operations as part of ATT ATT is the general partner

and limited partner of both Cincinnati SMSA Limited

Partnership and Cincinnati SMSA Tower Holdings LLC with

partnership interest prior to Convergys sale of its inter

ests of approximately 66/o and 53/a respectively Prior to

the sate the Company accounted for its interest in the

Cellular Partnerships under the equity method of account

ing

PostempLoyment Benefits The funded status of the

Companys pension and other postretirement benefit plans

is recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets The

funded status is measured as the difference between the

fair value of plan assets and the benefit obligation at

December 31 the measurement date For defined benefit

pension plans the benefit obligation is the projected

benefit obligation PBO and for the other postretirement

benefit plans the benefit obligation is the accumulated

postretirement benefit obligation APBO The PBO repre

sents the actuarial present value of benefits expected to

be paid upon retirement based on estimated future

compensation levels The APBO represents the actuarial

present value of postretirement benefits attributed to

employee services already rendered The fair value of plan

assets represents the current market value of assets held

by an irrevocable trust fund for the sole benefit of partic

ipants The measurement of the benefit obligation is

based on the Companys estimates and actuarial valu

ations These valuations reflect the terms of the plans and

use participant-specific information such as compensa

tion age
and years of service as well as certain key

assumptions that require significant judgment including

but not limited to estimates of discount rates expected

interest crediting rates and mortality rates For additional

information regarding plan assumptions and the current

financial position of the pension and other postretirement

plans see Note

The Company provides severance benefits to certain

employees The Company accrues the benefits when it

becomes probable that such benefits will be paid and

when sufficient information exists to make reasonable

estimates of the amounts to be paid

Government Grants From time to time the Company

receives grants from local or state governments as an

incentive to locate or retain operations in their juris

dictions Depending on the arrangement the grants are

either received up-front or at the time the Company

achieves the milestones set forth in the grant The

Companys policy is to record the grant funds received as

deferred credit and to amortize the deferred credit as

reduction of cost of providing services and products sold

or selling general and administrative expense as the

milestones are met over the term of the grant The terms

of the grants range from one to fifteen years

Derivative Instruments The Companys risk manage

ment strategy includes the use of derivative instruments

to reduce the effects on its operating results and cash

flows from fluctuations caused by volatility in currency

exchange and interest rates The Company currently uses

cash flow and fair value hedges These instruments are

hedges of forecasted transactions or of the variability of

cash flows to be received or paid related to recognized

asset or liability The Company generally enters into

forward exchange contracts expiring within 36 months as

hedges of anticipated cash flows denominated in foreign

currencies These contracts are entered into to protect

against the risk that the eventual cash flows resulting

from such transactions will be adversely affected by

changes in exchange rates Additionally the Company

from time to time enters into interest rate swap agree

ments to effectively fix the interest rates of variable rate

borrowings In using derivative financial instruments to
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hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and

interest rates the Company exposes itself to counterparty

credit risk

All derivatives including foreign currency exchange

contracts are recognized in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets at fair value Fair values for the Companys

derivative financial instruments are based on quoted

market prices of comparable instruments or if none are

available on pricing models or formulas using current

assumptions On the date the derivative contract is

entered into the Company determines whether the

derivative contract should be designated as hedge For

derivatives that are designated as hedges the Company

further designates the hedge as either fair value or cash

flow hedge Changes in the fair value of derivatives that

are highly effective and designated as fair value hedges

are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations

and Comprehensive Income Loss along with the loss or

gain on the hedged asset or liability Changes in the fair

value of derivatives that are highly effective and

designated as cash flow hedges are reported as compo

nent of Other Comprehensive Income Loss and

reclassified into earnings in the same line-item associated

with the forecasted transaction and in the same periods

during which the hedged transaction impacts earnings

The Company formally documents all relationships

between hedging instruments and hedged items as well

as its risk management objective and strategy for under

taking various hedging activities This process includes

linking all derivatives that are designated as fair value or

cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the

balance sheet or to forecasted transactions The Company

also formally assesses both at the hedges inception and

on an ongoing basis whether the derivatives that are

used in hedging transactions are highly effective in

offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows of hedged

items When it is determined that derivative is not

highly effective as hedge or that it has ceased to be

highly effective hedge the Company discontinues hedge

accounting prospectively

The Company also periodically enters into forward

exchange contracts and options that are not designated as

hedges The purpose of the majority of these derivative

instruments is to protect the Company against foreign

currency exposure pertaining to receivables payables and

intercompany transactions that are denominated in

currencies different from the functional currencies of the

Company or the respective subsidiaries The Company

records changes in the fair value of these derivative

instruments in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

and Comprehensive Income Loss within other income

expense net

Investments Management determines the appropriate

classification of securities at the time of purchase and

re-evaluates such designation as of each balance sheet

date Currently we classify all investment securities

reported within other current assets in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets as trading Trading securities are carried

at fair value with gains and losses both realized and

unrealized reported in other income expense net in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive

Income loss The cost of securities sold is based upon

the specific identification method Interest and dividends

on securities classified as trading is included in other

income expense net

Fair Value Measurements The Company applies fair

value accounting for all financial assets and liabilities and

non-financial assets and liabilities that are recognized or

disclosed at fair value in the consolidated financial

statements on recurring basis The Company defines fair

value as the price that would be received from selling an

asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly trans

action between market participants at the measurement

date When determining the fair value measurements for

assets and liabilities the Company considers the principal

or most advantageous market in which the Company would

transact and the market-based risk measurements or

assumptions that market participants would use in pricing

the asset or liability such as inherent risk transfer

restrictions and credit risk
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASU 2009-13 Multiple-

Deliverable Revenue Arrangements amendments to FASB

ASC Topic 605 Revenue Recognition ASU 2009-13

and ASU 2009-14 Certain Arrangements That Include

Software Elements amendments to FASB ASC Topic 985

Software ASU 2009-14 ASLJ 2009-13 requires entities

to allocate revenue in an arrangement using estimated

selling prices of the delivered goods and services based on

selling price hierarchy The amendments eliminate the

residual method of revenue allocation and require revenue

to be allocated using the relative selling price

method ASU 2009-14 removes tangible products from the

scope of software revenue guidance and provides guidance

on determining whether software deliverables in an

arrangement that includes tangible product are covered

by the scope of the software revenue guidance ASU

2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 should be applied on

prospective basis for revenue arrangements entered into

or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after

June 15 2010 with early adoption permitted The

Company adopted ASU 2009-13 or ASU 2009-14 effective

January 2011 Adoption of these standards did not

have material impact to the Companys consolidated

results of operations and financial position

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-05

Presentation of Comprehensive Income ASU 2011-05

requiring entities to present net income and other

comprehensive income in either single continuous

statement or in two separate but consecutive statements

of net income and other comprehensive income The

option to present items of other comprehensive income in

the statement of changes in equity is eliminated

Reclassification adjustments between net income and

other comprehensive income must be shown on the face

of the statements the previous option to disclose

reclassification adjustments in the footnotes has been

eliminated The effective date for ASU 2011-05 was at the

start of the reporting entitys fiscal year beginning after

December 15 2011 and required retrospective application

However in December 2011 the FASB issued ASU

2011-12 Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments

to the Presentation of Reclassification of Items Out of

Accum ulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting

Standards Update No 2011-05 ASU 2011-12 All other

requirements of ASU 2011-05 were not affected by ASU

2011-12 including the requirement to report other

comprehensive income either in single continuous

financial statement or in two separate but consecutive

financial statements The Company will provide the

disclosures required by these Standards in the first quarter

of 2012

Divestitures

HR Management

In March 2010 the Company signed definitive agree

ment to sell its HR Management line of business and in

June 2010 the Company substantially completed the sale

of this business to NorthgateArinso the Human Resource

division of Northgate Information Solutions Limited for

approximately $100 The consideration received at closing

consisted of approximately $80 in cash and zero coupon

note issued by NorthgateArinso in the principal amount of

$15 The note is payable in increments of $5 on the

second anniversary of closing and $10 on the third

anniversary of closing The sale of foreign HR Management

operations was completed in the third and fourth quarters

of 2010 and resulted in an additional $5 in cash received

Final settlement of working capital adjustments resulted

in cash payments by Convergys of approximately $7 during

the fourth quarter of 2010 In connection with and at the

time of the completion of the sale in June 2010 the

Company made cash payments of $28.2 for certain obliga

tions of the HR Management business the impact of

which is included in cash flows from operating activities

of discontinued operations

The gain on the sale of HR Management recorded in 2010

was $35.2 pretax and $5.6 after tax The sale of HR

Management was taxable transaction that resulted in

$29.6 being recorded for the combined federal state and

foreign income taxes Subsequently in 2011 $6.5

reduction to the tax on the gain on this transaction was

Convergys Corporation 2011 AnnuaL Report 65



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts

recorded and has been reflected in Discontinued Oper

ations The gain on sale included the elimination of $67.1

of goodwill and intangible assets

As result of the sale of the HR Management line of

business the operating results and assets and liabilities

related to HR Management have been reflected as

discontinued operations for all periods presented For

prior periods certain costs that had previously been

allocated to the HR Management segment are now

included in continuing operations These costs were $9.1

and $32.1 for December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

and are reflected in Corporate and Other Beginning

June 2010 the Company began earning transition

services revenues for services provided to the buyer under

agreements lasting from three to eighteen months During

2011 and 2010 the Company earned $14.4 and $24.0

respectively in revenue under these transition services

agreements subsequent to the close of the sale These

revenues are reflected in Corporate and Other and largely

offset the related costs described above incurred

subsequent to June 2010 The Company has taken and

continues to take actions to reduce these costs

Summarized operating results of the HR Management

business are as follows

There were no remaining assets or liabilities related to the

HR Management business at December 31 2010 Cash

flows generated from the discontinued operations are

presented separately in the Companys consolidated

statements of cash flows

Finance and Accounting outsourcing line of

business FA
In January 2011 the Company completed the sale of FA

for approximately $10 The gain on the sale amounted to

$7 before tax recorded within Other income expense

net in the Consolidated Statements of Income and

Comprehensive Income Loss and $4.3 after tax in 2011

The gain on the sale included the elimination of $2.6 of

goodwill and other intangible assets The results of

operations of FA and the sale of FA are not material to

the Companys results of operations or financial condition

and therefore are not reflected as discontinued oper

ations for the periods presented

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Revenue $107.2 406.2

Income loss before tax 25.3 213.7

Gain loss on disposition 35.2

Income loss before income

taxes 60.5 213.7

Income tax benefit expense

Expense benefit related to

operations 9.4 51.9

Expense benefit related to

gain loss on disposition 6.5 29.6

Income Loss from

discontinued operations net of

tax 6.5 21.5 $161.8
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Earnings Loss Per Share and

Shareholders Equity

Earnings Loss per Share

The following is reconciliation of the numerator and

denominator of the basic and diluted earnings per share

EPS computations

Continuing Discontinued

Operations Operations TotaL

Net Per Net Per Per

Shares Income Share Income Share Share

in Millions Shares Loss Amount Loss Amount Amount

2011

Basic EPS 120.2 $328.3 2.73 6.5 0.06 2.79

Effect of dilutive

securities

Stock-based

compensation

arrangements 2.1 0.06 0.01 0.07

2029 Convertible

Debentures 0.6

Diluted EPS 122.9 $328.3 2.67 6.5 0.05 2.72

2010

Basic EPS 123.1 74.7 0.61 21.5 0.18 10.43

Effect of dilutive

securities

Stock-based

compensation

arrangements

2029 Convertible

Debentures

Diluted EPS 123.1 74.7 0.61 21.5 0.18 10.43

2009

Basic EPS 122.8 84.5 0.69 1161.8 1.32 10.63

Effect of dilutive

securities

Stock-based

compensation

arrangements
2.1 0.01 0.02 0.01

2029 Convertible

Debentures

Diluted EPS 124.9 84.5 0.68 1161.8 1.30 10.62

The diluted EPS calculation excludes the effect of 3.7 5.8

and 7.9 of outstanding stock options for the years
ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively because

they are anti-dilutive The calculation also excludes the

effect of 2.2 restricted stock units and 0.2 shares related

to the 2029 Convertible Debentures for the year ended

December 31 2010 because they are anti-dilutive

Shareholders Equity

The Company repurchased 7.7 shares during the year

ended December 31 2011 at an average price of $12.53

per share for total of $96.8 The timing and terms of any

future transactions will depend on number of consid

erations including market conditions and liquidity There

were 2.4 shares repurchased during the year ended

December 31 2010 Below is summary of the Companys

share repurchases for the years ended December 31 2011

2010 and 2009

2011 7.7 96.8

2010 2.4 24.9

2009

At December 31 2011 the Company has the authority to

repurchase an additional $162.7 of outstanding common

shares pursuant to current authorizations

As described in Note during 2009 the Company issued

approximately $125.0 aggregate principal amount of

5.750/0 Junior Subordinated Convertible Debentures due

2029 2029 Convertible Debentures The 2029 Convertible

Debentures are convertible subject to certain conditions

into shares of the Companys common stock at an initial

conversion price of approximately $12.07 per share or

82.82 shares per one thousand in principal amount of

debentures Upon conversion the Company will pay cash

up to the aggregate principal amount of the 2029

Convertible Debentures and settle the remainder of the

debentures in cash or stock at the Companys option

Preferred Shares

The Company is authorized to issue up to preferred

shares of which would have voting rights At

December 31 2011 and 2010 there were no preferred

shares outstanding
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Investment in Cellular Partnerships

On July 2011 the Company completed the sale of its

33.8/o limited partnership interest in the Cincinnati SMSA

Limited Partnership and its 45.OO/o limited partnership

interest in the Cincinnati SMSA Tower Holdings LLC

collectively referred to as the Cellular Partnerships to

ATT ATT is the general and limited partner of both

Cincinnati SMSA Limited Partnership and Cincinnati SMSA

Tower Holdings LLC with partnership interests prior to

Convergys sale of its interests of approximately 66/o and

53% respectively The Company received approximately

$320.0 in cash proceeds upon closing The Companys

interests in the Cellular Partnerships did not qualify as

discontinued operations therefore the gain has been

reported within income from continuing operations and no

reclassification of prior results is required The gain on

sale of its interests in the Cellular Partnerships was

$265.0 or $171.8 net of tax

Since the Cellular Partnerships were organized as limited

partnerships the partners are responsible for income taxes

applicable to their share of taxable income generated by

the Celular Partnerships The net income of the Cincinnati

SMSA Limited Partnership reflected in the following table

does not include any provision for income taxes incurred

by the partners

Year Ended

Year-to-Date u1y December 31

2011 2010 2009

Revenues $359.8 $653.5 $592.0

Income from

operations 61.2 124.1 128.9

Net income 60.8 120.9 126.5

At December 31

2010

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

The Companys equity in earnings of equity method

investees for the three years ended December 31 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively is as follows

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Convergys equity in earnings of

Cincinnati SMSA Limited

Partnership 20.5 $46.1 $40.1

Convergys equity in earnings of

Cincinnati SMSA Tower Holdings

LLC 0.9 1.1 0.9

Transaction costs related to the

sale of Convergys interests in

CelLular
Partnerships 1.2

Gain on sale of Convergys

interests in Cellular

Partnerships 265.0

Total earnings and gain from

Cellular Partnerships net $285.2 $47.2 $41.0

GoodwilL and Other Intangible and Long-

Lived Assets

Goodwill

The Company tests goodwill for impairment annually as of

October and at other times if events have occurred or

circumstances exist that indicate the carrying value of

goodwiLl may no longer be recoverable The impairment

test for goodwill involves two-step process The first

step compares the fair value of reporting unit with its

carrying amount including the goodwill allocated to each

reporting unit If the carrying amount is in excess of the

fair value the second step requires the comparison of the

implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the

carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill Any

excess of the carrying value of the reporting unit goodwill

over the impUed fair value of the reporting unit goodwill

will be recorded as an impairment loss Fair value of the

reporting unit is determined using combination of the

market approach and the income approach Under the

market approach fair value is based on actual stock price

or transaction prices of comparable companies Under the

income approach value is dependent on the present value

of net cash flows to be derived from the ownership The

implied fair value of the Companys reporting units is

determined based on significant unobservable inputs

accordingly these inputs fall within Level of the fair

value hierarchy under U.S GAAP

$66.9

246.5

22.7

30.1
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Below is progression of goodwill for the CompanysFor 2011 and 2010 the Company tested goodwill for the

following reporting units Customer ManagementLive

Agents Customer ManagementCIT CIT and

Information Management Based on the results of its first-

step impairment tests performed as of October 2011

the Company had no goodwill impairment related to its

reporting units The Company believes it makes every

reasonable effort to ensure that it accurately estimates

the fair value of the reporting units However future

changes in the assumptions used to make these estimates

could result in impairment losses

The results of the first step of the impairment testing

performed as of October 2010 indicated an impairment

in the CIT reporting unit Accordingly the second step of

the impairment model was performed on this reporting

unit The impairment charge for the Companys CIT

reporting unit was the result of change in the strategic

plan for the unit which was finalized in the fourth quarter

of 2010 reflecting the output of the Companys annual

strategic business planning process As result of

declining revenue during the preceding 12 months lower

future revenue projections and transaction valuation

multiples lower than those supported at the time of the

Intervoice acquisition in 2008 the fair value of the

reporting unit was determined to be less than carrying

value In the second step hypothetical purchase price

allocation of the reporting units net assets is performed

using the fair value calculated in Step Based on the

results of the second step the Company recorded $166.5

$160.8 after tax goodwill impairment charge recorded

within the asset impairment caption in the accompanying

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive

Income Loss The remaining goodwill balance allocated

to the CIT reporting unit that was not impaired as of

December 31 2010 was $45.8

segments for 2011 and 2010

Customer Information

Management Management Total

BaLance at

December 31
2009 785.8 $193.5 979.3

Acquisitions 3.3 3.3

Impairment 166.5 166.5

Foreign

currency and

other 4.8 0.4 4.4

Balance at

December 31

2010 624.1 $196.4 820.5

Acquisitions

Foreign

currency
and

other 2.6 0.6 2.0

Balance at

December 31

2011 621.5 $197.0 818.5

The goodwill addition to the Information Management

segment for the year ended 2010 resulted from additional

earn-out payments of $3.3 as certain performance targets

were met with respect to small acquisition in 2008

Accumulated goodwill impairment charges at

December 31 2011 and 2010 were $166.5 for both years

All accumulated goodwill impairment charges as of

December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 relate to the

Customer Management segment
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Other Intangible Assets

The Companys other intangible assets primarily acquired

through business combinations are evaluated periodically

if events or circumstances indicate possible inability to

recover their carrying amounts No impairment

were recognized in any period presented

December 31 2011 and 2010 the Companys

intangible assets consisted of the following

Gross

Carrying Accumulated

2011 Amount Amortization Net

Software classified with

Property Plant

Equipment ........ 88.8 66.2 $22.6

Trademarks 12.0 10.3 1.7

Customer
reLationships

and other intangibles 152.8 124.4 28.4

Total $253.6 $200.9 $52.7

2010

Software classified with

Property Plant

Equipment 88.6 59.6 29.0

Trademarks 12.0 7.8 4.2

Customer relationships

and other intangibles 154.6 118.7 35.9

Total 255.2 186.1 69.1

The intangible assets are being amortized using the

following amortizable lives five to eight years for soft

ware four years for trademarks and seven to twelve years

for customer relationships and other intangibles The

remaining weighted average amortization period for

intangible assets is 5.0 years

Customer relationships trademarks and other intangibles

amortization expense was $9.6 for the year ended

December 31 2011 and the related estimated expense for

the five subsequent fiscal years is as follows

For the
year

ended 12/31/12

For the
year

ended 12/31/13

For the year ended 12/31/14

For the year ended 12/31/15

For the year ended 12/31/16

Thereafter

Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates its property plant and equipment

when events or circumstances indicate possible inability

to recover their carrying amounts During 2010 the

Company committed to plan to sell two facilities At

December 31 2010 the property met the Held-for-Sale

criteria set forth in U.S GAAP resulting in classification of

$11.8 of property plant and equipment as Held-for-Sale

the book value was adjusted to its fair value less costs to

sell resulting in an impairment charge of $14.6 $9.3 after

tax recorded within the asset impairments caption in the

accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and

Comprehensive Income Loss Fair value was determined

based on discounted cash flow analysis which contains

significant unobservable inputs that fall within Level of

the fair value hierarchy under U.S GAAP

During 2011 the Company sold one of the two facilities at

its carrying value and therefore no gain or loss was recog

nized on the sale At December 31 2011 the Company had

not identified buyer for the second facility Because the

property no longer meets the Held-for-Sale criteria the

facility was reclassified to property and equipment net on

the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Debt

Debt consists of the following

At December 31

2011 2010

Revolving credit facility

2029 Convertible Debentures 57.5 56.6

Capital
Lease

Obligations 58.6 58.0

Accounts Receivable Securitization 85.0

Other 11.1 10.7

Total debt 127.2 210.3

Less current maturities 6.2 91.0

Long-term debt $121.0 $119.3

Weighted average effective interest rates

Revolving credit facility

Accounts Receivable Securitization

2029 Convertible Debentures

Other

charges

As of

other

$9

2.9

2.2

6.4

3.4

4.2 0/0

2.4 0/

6.0 0/

4.2 0/
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On March 11 2011 the Company entered into $300

Four-Year Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit

Facility Agreement the New Credit Facility The New

Credit Facility replaced the Companys $400 Five-Year

Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility the

Prior Credit Facility dated as of October 20 2006 and as

amended subsequently among Convergys and group of

financial institutions In connection with Convergys entry

into the New Credit Facility Convergys terminated the

Prior Credit Facility There were no balances outstanding

under the Prior Revolving Facility at December 31 2010

Convergys has two borrowing options available under the

New Credit Facility competitive advance option

which will be provided on an uncommitted competitive

advance basis through an auction mechanism and ii

revolving credit option which will be provided on

committed basis Under each option amounts borrowed

and repaid may be re-borrowed subject to availability

Borrowings under the New Credit Facility bear interest at

one of the rates described in the New Credit Facility The

New Credit Facility includes certain restrictive covenants

including maintenance of interest coverage and

debt-to-EBITDA ratios as defined in the New Credit

Facility The Companys interest coverage ratio cannot be

less than 4.00 to 1.00 as determined on rolling four

quarter basis The Companys debt-to-EBITDA ratio cannot

be greater than 3.00 to 1.00 until December 31 2012 and

2.75 to 1.00 after December 31 2012 The New Credit

Facility also contains customary representations and

warranties In the event of default the lenders may

terminate the commitments and declare the amounts

outstanding and all accrued interest immediately due

and payable The maturity date of the New Credit Facility

is March 11 2015 except that upon satisfaction of certain

conditions Convergys may extend the maturity date by

one year twice during the term Convergys will pay an

annual facility fee regardless of utilization At

December 31 2011 the
facility was undrawn The

Company was in compliance with all covenants at

December 31 2011

In December 2004 the Company issued $250.0 in 4.875/a

Unsecured Senior Notes 4.875/a Senior Notes due

December 15 2009 During 2009 the Company announced

an exchange offer Exchange Offer for up to $122.5

aggregate principal amount of its outstanding 4.875/o

Senior Notes Under the terms of the Exchange Offer the

Company offered to exchange one thousand twenty dollars

in principal amount of its new 5.75/a Junior Subordinated

Convertible Debentures due 2029 2029 Convertible

Debentures for each one thousand dollars in principal

amount of its 4.875/a Senior Notes Upon settlement of

the Exchange Offer on October 13 2009 the Company

issued total of $125.0 aggregate principal amount of the

2029 Convertible Debentures in exchange for $122.5 of

the 4.875/a Senior Notes This exchange transaction

resulted in loss on extinguishment of debt of $2.3 that

is reflected within other income expense net in the

accompanying Statements of Operations and Compre

hensive Income Loss for the year ended December 31

2009

The 2029 Convertible Debentures are convertible subject

to certain conditions into shares of the Companys

common stock at an initial conversion price of approx

imately $12.07 per share or 82.82 shares of the Compa

nys common stock per one thousand dollars in principal

amount of debentures Upon conversion the Company will

pay cash up to the aggregate principal amount of the

2029 Convertible Debentures and settle the remainder of

the debentures in cash or stock at the Companys option

The conversion rate will be subject to adjustment for

certain events outlined in the indenture governing the

debenture the Indenture The conversion rate will

increase for holder who elects to convert the debenture

in connection with certain share exchanges mergers or

consolidations involving the Company as described in the

indenture

The Company may not redeem the 2029 Convertible

Debentures prior to September 15 2019 except if certain

U.S federal tax legislation regulations or rules are

enacted or are issued On or after September 15 2019 the
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Company may redeem for cash all or part of the 2029

Convertible Debentures for the principal amount plus any

accrued and unpaid interest if the last closing price of

the Companys common shares has been at least 1500/0 of

the applicable conversion price for at least 20 trading

days immediately prior to the date on which the Company

provides notice of redemption Holders may convert their

2029 Convertible Debentures prior to the close of business

on the business day immediately preceding September 15

2028 if certain market conditions related to the trading

price of the Companys common shares and 2029

Convertible Debentures occur On or after September 15

2028 holders may convert their 2029 Convertible

Debentures at the option of the holder regardless of the

foregoing circumstances Holders may also convert if the

Company calls any or all of the 2029 Convertible

Debentures for redemption prior to the maturity date The

conversion rate will equal IOO/o of the principal amount

of the 2029 Convertible Debentures to be redeemed plus

accrued and unpaid interest and will be subject to

adjustment for certain events outlined in the Indenture If

certain events occur in the future the Indenture provides

that each holder of the debentures can for pre-defined

period of time require the Company to repurchase the

holders debentures for the principal amount plus any

accrued and unpaid interest The Company concluded that

the indentures are not conventional convertible debt

instruments and that the embedded stock conversion

option qualifies as derivative Under the appropriate

authoritative guidance the Company further concluded

that the option is indexed to the Companys stock and

does not require bifurcation from the host instrument

Therefore the embedded conversion option is not

accounted for separately as derivative

The 2029 Convertible Debentures which pay fixed rate

of interest semi-annually have contingent interest

component that will require the Company to pay interest

based on the trading price of the debentures exceeding

specified threshold at specified times commencing on

September 15 2019 as outlined in the Indenture The

maximum amount of contingent interest that will accrue is

O.75/o per annum of the average trading price of the

debentures during the periods specified in the Indenture

The fair value of this embedded derivative was not

significant at December 31 2011 and 2010

At the date of issuance the Company recognized the

liability component of the 2029 Convertible Debenture at

its fair value of $56.3 The
liability component was

recognized as the fair value of similar instrument that

did not have conversion feature at issuance The equity

component which was the value of the conversion feature

at issuance was recognized as the difference between the

proceeds from the issuance of the debentures and the fair

value of the liability component after adjusting for the

deferred tax impact of $32.7 The 2029 Convertible

Debentures were issued at coupon rate of 5.75/o which

was below that of similar instrument that does not have

conversion feature Therefore the valuation of the debt

component using the income approach resulted in debt

discount The debt discount is being amortized over the

life of similar debt instrument without conversion

feature which the Company determined to equal the

contractual maturity of the 2029 Convertible Debentures

Amortization is based upon the effective interest rate

method and will be included within the interest expense

caption in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of

Operations and Comprehensive Income Loss

As of December 31 2011 the 2029 Convertible

Debentures if-converted value was $132.2 Based on

quoted market prices at December 31 2011 the fair value

of the Companys 2029 Convertible Debentures is $162.5

The Company leased an office complex in Orlando Florida

under an agreement that expired in June 2010 the

Orlando lease At December 31 2011 and 2010 the

Orlando lease is accounted for as capital lease Pursuant

to the terms of the lease on October 2009 the

Company was required to provide notice to the Lessor of

its intention to either purchase the property for $65.0 or

arrange to have the office complex sold to third party

the terms of the lease provided the Lessor with residual

value guarantee from the Company of up to $55.0
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Although continuing to pursue refinancing of the

Orlando lease on October 2009 the Company legally

elected the purchase option under the required notifica

tion provision of the lease agreement In 2010 the

Company recorded capital lease obligation and property

of $55.0 related to this facility coincident with the

completion of the refinancing of the lease discussed

below

On June 30 2010 the Company refinanced this lease

arrangement As part of the refinancing the Company

paid approximately $10.0 to reduce the principal under

the prior facility related to the residual value guarantee

provision referenced above such amount having been

previously accrued The new facility provides for new

lease period of five years Upon termination or expiration

of the new facility the Company is required to either

purchase the property for $55.0 or arrange to have the

office complex sold to third party the terms of the lease

provide the Lessor with residual value guarantee from

the Company of up to $47.0 Total scheduled lease

payments during the term are currently estimated to be

approximately $10

Including the $55.0 obligation for the Orlando facility

total capital lease obligations were $58.6 and $58.0 at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

During 2009 the Company entered into $125.0 asset

securitization
facility

collateralized by accounts receiv

ables of certain of its subsidiaries of which $50.0 was

scheduled to expire in June 2010 and $75.0 expires in

June 2012 The $50.0 that was scheduled to expire in

June 2010 was extended through June 2011 During June

2011 the Company renegotiated the terms of the agree

ment increasing the purchase limited to $150.0 and

extending the terms to June 2014 The asset securitiza

tion program is conducted through Convergys Funding

Inc whoLly-owned bankruptcy remote subsidiary of the

Company As of December 31 2011 this facility was

undrawn As of December 31 2010 the Company had

borrowings of $85.0 under this facility

Other debt of $11.1 and $10.7 at December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively consisted of miscellaneous domestic

and international borrowings

At December 31 2011 future minimum payments of the

Companys debt and capital lease arrangements are as

follows

2012 6.2

2013 1.6

2014 6.7

2015 55.2

2016

Thereafter 125.0

TotaL $194.7

Restructuring

2011 Restructuring

During 2011 the Company initiated operational changes

that resulted in severance costs of $2.8 largely to reduce

headcount and align resources to future business needs

This charge was offset by $2.8 reduction to previously

established facility-related reserves as described below

The $2.8 of severance-related charges were comprised of

$1.6 at Information Management $1.0 at Customer

Management and $0.2 at Corporate Severance actions

impact approximately 100 professional employees world

wide and charges will largely be paid in cash pursuant to

the Companys existing severance policy and employment

agreements These actions were substantially completed

by the end of 2011

Restructuring liability activity for the 2011 severance

plan the balance of which is included within payables

deferred revenue and other current liabilities on the

Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the

following

2011

BaLance at January

Severance charge 2.8

Severance payments 2.6

Balance at December 31 2011 0.2

Convergys Corporation 2011 AnnuaL Report 73



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts

2010 Restructuring

During 2010 the Company initiated restructuring plan

and incurred total charge of $36.7 consisting of $22.4 of

severance-related charges and $14.3 of facility-related

charges The $22.4 of severance-related charges were

comprised of $13.3 at Customer Management and $3.0 at

Information Management largely to reduce headcount and

align resources to business needs and $6.1 at Corporate to

further simplify operations and to reflect the impact of

the sale of the HR Management line of business The

severance charge of $22.4 was largely be paid in cash

pursuant to the Companys existing severance policy and

employment agreements These actions affected approx

imately 1000 professional employees and approximately

1400 non-salaried employees worldwide and were

substantially completed by the end of 2011 The facility-

related charge of $14.3 relates to lease rent accruals and

penalties for properties that have closed as the result of

consolidating facilities and shifting capacity The charge

is equal to the future costs associated with the facility

net of proceeds from any probable future sublease

agreements The fair value measurement utilized internal

discounted cash flows which is Level input The

Company used estimates based on consultation with the

Companys real estate advisors to determine the proceeds

from any future sublease agreements The Company will

continue to evaluate these estimates in recording the

facilities abandonment charge Consequently there may

be additional reversals or charges relating to these facility

closures in the future Therefore facility-related reserves

are maintained on facility basis rather than

restructuring charge event basis At December 31 2011

the facility-related restructuring reserve had an

outstanding balance of $9.6 which will be paid over

several years until the leases expire

Below is summary of the 2010 net restructuring charge

of $36.7 by segment

Customer Information

Management Management Corporate Total

Severance costs $13.3 $3.0 $6.1 $22.4

Facility-related costs 9.3 5.0 14.3

Total restructuring $22.6 $8.0 $6.1 $36.7

Restructuring liability activity for the 2010 severance

plan the balance of which is included in payables

deferred revenue and other current liabilities on the

Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the

following

2011 2010

Balance at January 12.4

Severance charge 22.4

Severance payments 11.4 10.0

Balance at December 31 1.0 12.4

2009 Restructuring

During 2009 the Company initiated restructuring plan

to reduce headcount and align resources to future busi

ness needs The total charge recorded in 2009 was $43.3

and included $27.0 of severance-related charges and

$16.3 of facility-related charges Severance charges were

comprised of $15.3 at Information Management related to

shifting the geographic mix of certain resources and

further streamlining of operations $6.7 at Customer

Management resulting from reduction in one interna

tional program and efforts to streamline operations and

$5.0 at Corporate to reduce headcount The severance

actions were completed as of March 31 2011 AlL

severance charges were largely paid in cash pursuant to

the Companys existing severance policy and employment

agreements These actions affected approximately 1000

of the Companys worldwide salaried employees and

approximately 800 non-salaried employees

The $16.3 facility-related charge relates to lease rent

accruals for properties that have closed as the result of

consolidating facilities consistent with the methodology
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discussed in connection with the 2010 restructuring The

facility-related restructuring reserve related to this charge

is encompassed within the total outstanding facility

balance of $9.6 which will be paid over several years until

the leases expire

Facilities Restructuring

The Companys facilities restructuring reserves are equal to

the estimated future costs associated with the facilities

net of proceeds from any probable future sublease

agreements The Company uses estimates based on

consultation with the Companys real estate advisers to

determine the proceeds from any future sublease agree

ments The Company continues to evaluate these esti

mates in recording the facilities abandonment charge

Based upon early termination and settlement of lease for

previously abandoned facility during 2011 and review of

estimated future costs for other facilities the Company

recorded net benefit of $2.8 to reduce the remaining

reserves Restructuring liability for the facilities plans the

balance of which is included in payables deferred revenue

and other current liabilities on the Companys

Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following

2011 2010 2009

Balance at January $20.7 $16.0

Facility charge 14.3 16.3

Facility payment 8.3 9.6 0.3

Facility adjustment 2.8

Balance at December 31 9.6 $20.7 $16.0

Employee Benefit Plans

Pensions

The Company sponsors frozen defined benefit pension

plan which includes both qualified and non-qualified

portion for all eligible employees the cash balance plan

in North America and an unfunded defined benefit plan for

certain eligible employees in the Philippines the defined

benefit plans The Company also sponsors

non-qualified unfunded executive deferred compensation

plan and supplemental non-qualified unfunded plan for

certain senior executives the executive pension plans As

further describe in Note 12 Financial Instruments in

December 2011 the Company made investments in certain

securities which are held in grantor trust for the benefit

of participants of the executive deferred compensation

plan This investment was made in securities reflecting the

hypothetical investment balances of plan participants The

pension benefit formula for the cash balance plan is

determined by combination of compensation and

age-based credits and annual guaranteed interest credits

Benefits for the executive deferred compensation plan are

based on employee deferrals matching contributions and

investment earnings on participant accounts Benefits for

the supplemental plan are based on age years of service

and eligible pay Funding of the qualified portion of the

cash balance plan has been achieved through

contributions made to trust fund The contributions

have been determined using the prescribed methods in

accordance with the Pension Protection Act of 2006

Based on the funded status of the cash balance plan and

mandatory legislative requirements under the Pension

Protection Act beginning April 29 2009 lump sum

payments from the cash balance plan have been partially

restricted The Companys measurement date for all plans

is December 31 The projected unit credit cost method is

used for determining the unfunded executive pension cost

for financial reporting purposes The plan assumptions are

evaluated annually and are updated as necessary

Components of pension cost and other amounts recog

nized in other comprehensive income loss for the

defined benefit plans are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Service cost 2.8 2.6 0.9

Interest cost on projected

benefit obligation
12.0 12.1 12.2

Expected return on plan

assets 11.4 12.3 10.4

Amortization and

deferralsnet 87 6.6 7.4

Settlement loss 6.8

Total pension cost 12.1 15.8 10.1

Other comprehensive income

loss $29.5 1.3 9.6
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The settlement loss of $6.8 in 2010 resulted from the

benefit payments exceeding the sum of the service cost

and interest cost Pension cost for the defined benefit

plans related to discontinued operations included in the

table above for the years ended December 31 2010 and

2009 is $0.1 and $0.7 respectively

The reconciliation of the defined benefit plans projected

benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets for the

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 are as folLows

At December 31

2011 2010

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of

year 224.3 $213.5

Service costs 2.8 2.6

Interest cost 12.0 12.1

Actuarial loss 28.9 16.9

Benefits paid 14.5 20.8

Plan amendment 1.0

Benefit obligation at end of
year 252.5 $224.3

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of

year 134.1 $129.7

Actual return on plan assets 14.6

Employer contribution 20.8 10.6

Benefits paid 14.5 20.8

Fair value of
plan assets at end of

year 140.4 $134.1

Funded status $112.0 $90.2

Amounts recognized in the ConsoLidated

Balance Sheets consisted of

Non-current liability 112.0 90.2

Accumulated other comprehensive

income loss $114.1 $84.7

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at

December 31 2011 and 2010 includes unrecognized

actuarial losses of $114.1 $71.2 net of tax and $84.7

$55.0 net of tax respectively The actuarial loss

included in accumulated other comprehensive loss that is

expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost

during the fiscal year ended December 31 2012 is $10.7

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit

plans was $252.5 and $224.3 at December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively

Estimated future benefit payments from the defined

benefit plans are as follows

2012 9.0

2013 10.5

2014 27.0

2015 14.8

2016 16.1

2017 2021 86.8

Total $164.2

Components of pension cost and other amounts recog

nized in other comprehensive income loss for the

unfunded executive pension plans are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Service cost 0.7 0.9 1.5

Interest cost on projected benefit

obligation 1.3 2.0 2.1

Amortization and deferralsnet 0.1 0.1 0.8

Curtailment benefit Loss net 2.4 1.8

Settlement loss 1.4

Total pension benefit cost $0.5 6.0 2.8

Other comprehensive income

loss 1.3 $3.1 $3.9

In 2011 the Company froze the executive deferred

compensation plan and recognized $0.9 curtailment

benefit The Company also recognized $1.5 curtailment

benefit during 2011 related to the resignation of senior

executive The Company recognized $2.2 curtailment

loss during 2010 related to the termination of employ

ment of the President and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company The curtailment loss was partially offset by

$0.4 curtailment benefit related to the termination of

employment of senior executive The Company aLso

recognized settlement loss related to the CEO transition

of $1.4 upon payment of benefits under the unfunded

executive pension plan
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The reconciliation of the unfunded executive pension Estimated future benefit payments from the unfunded

plans projected benefit obligation for the years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 is as follows

At December 31

2011 2010

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of
year

33.2 37.1

Service cost 0.7 0.9

Interest cost 1.3 2.0

Change in plan provisions 0.5

Actuarial gain loss 1.9 3.8

Curtailment benefit loss 2.5 2.3

Benefits paid 6.2 12.4

Benefit obligation at end of
year

24.6 33.2

Funded status $24.6 $33.2

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets consisted of

Current liability 6.2 5.2

Non-current liability 18.4 28.0

Accumulated other comprehensive income

loss 4.1 2.8

Total benefits paid of $6.2 were made via employer

contributions

Included in accumulated other comprehensive loss at

December 31 2011 are the following amounts that have

not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost

unrecognized prior service credits of $0.3 $0.2 net of tax

and unrecognized actuarial gain of $3.8 $2.4 net of tax

Included in accumulated other comprehensive loss at

December 31 2010 are the following amounts that have

not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost

unrecognized prior service credits of $1.1 $0.7 net of tax

and unrecognized actuarial gain $1.7 $1.1 net of tax

The accumulated benefit obligation for the unfunded

executive pension plans was $24.6 and $32.1 at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The prior

service credit expected to be recognized in net periodic

pension cost during the year ending December 31 2012 is

$0.2

executive plans are as follows

2012 6.2

2013 3.1

2014 1.6

2015 1.5

2016 1.0

2017 2021 8.3

Total $21.7

The following weighted-average rates were used in

determining the benefit obligations at December 31

2011 2010

Discount rateprojected

benefit obligation 4.25 7.80 5.20 0/0 5.40 0/0

Future compensation growth

rate 4.00 5.50 4.00 0/ 5.00 0/0

Expected long-term rate of

return on plan assets 7.50 8.00 8/o

The following weighted-average rates were used in

determining the pension cost for all years ended

December 31

2011 2010 2009

The range of discount rates utilized in determining the

pension cost and projected benefit obligation of the

Companys defined benefit plans reflects lower prevalent

rate applicable to the frozen cash balance plan for eligible

employees in North America and higher applicable rate

for the unfunded defined benefit plan for certain eligible

employees in the Philippines

Discount

rateprojected

benefit

obligation 5.20 1.80% 5.50 6.00 0/ 6.25 O/ 6.50

Future

compensation

growth rate 4.00% 5.50% 4.00 0/_ 5.00 /o 4.00 0/ 5.00 0/0

Expected

long-term

rate of

return on

plan assets 7.5004 8.0004 8/a 8/s
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Notes to ConsoLidated FinanciaL Statements continued

Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 plan assets for the

cash balance plan consisted of Convergys common stock

an equity fund and common/collective trusts of which

approximately 700/o are invested in equity backed funds

and 3O0/e in funds invested in fixed income instruments

which is consistent with the Companys targeted alloca

tion Plan assets for the cash balance plan included $3.7

and $4.0 of the Companys common shares at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The invest

ment objectives for the plan assets are to generate returns

that will enable the plan to meet its future obligations

The Companys expected long-term rate of return was

determined based on the asset mix of the plan past

performance and other factors The Company contributed

$19.7 and $10.2 in 2011 and 2010 respectively to fund

its cash balance plan in order to satisfy its Employee

Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ERISA funding

requirements The Company currently expects to make

$11.2 in contributions in 2012 to fund its cash balance

plan No plan assets are expected to be returned to the

Company during 2012

The following table sets forth by level within the fair

value hierarchy the cash balance plans assets at fair

value as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Quoted Prices

In Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

December 31 Assets Inputs In
puts

Investments 2011 Level Level Level

Common
Collective

trusts .... $132.8 $132.8

Convergys

common

stock 3.7 3.7

Equity fund 3.9 3.9

Total

investments $140.4 $3.7 $132.8 $3.9

Quoted Prices

In Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

December 31 Assets Inputs Inputs

Investments 2010 Level Level Level

Common
Collective

trusts $126.7 $126.7

Convergys

common

stock 4.0 4.0

Equity fund 3.4 3.4

Total

investments $134.1 $4.0 $126.7 $3.4

For additional information on the fair value hierarchy see

Note 13

The Companys pension plan holds Level investments

within equity funds which primarily invests in domestic

early stage capital funds The fair value of these invest

ments is based on the net asset value per share of the

fund The pension plan has approximately $0.2 in future

funding requirements associated with this investment The

methods described above may produce fair value calcu

lation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or

reflective of future fair values Furthermore while the

Company believes its valuation methodologies are appro

priate and consistent with other market participants the

use of different methodologies or assumptions to

determine the fair value of certain financial instruments

could result in different fair value measurement The

following table provides reconciliation of the beginning

and ending balances for the Level assets

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010

Balance beginning of
year 3.4 3.3

Unrealized gains losses relating to

instruments still held at the reporting

date 0.4 0.1

Purchases 0.1 0.2

Balance end of
year $3.9 3.4
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Savings Plans

The Company sponsors defined contribution plan

covering substantially all U.S employees The Companys

contributions to the plan are based on matching portion

of the employee contributions In 2011 the Companys

matching contribution changed from 100/a of the first 5/a

to 100/o of the first 3/o of eligible employee

contributions As result total Company contributions to

the defined contribution plan were $9.5 in 2011 compared

to $15.1 and $17.6 for 2010 and 2009 respectively Plan

assets for these plans included 2.0 milLion $26.0 and

2.2 million $29.1 of Companys common shares at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Employee Postretirement Benefits Other Than

Pensions

The Company sponsors postretirement health and life

insurance plans for certain eligible employees The plan

provides eligible employees and retirees with the oppor

tunity to direct an amount of their compensation or

pension benefits to cover medical dental and life

insurance programs of their choice for their benefit and

the benefit of their dependents The plan covers both

active and retired eligible employees of the Company and

its subsidiaries Employees eligibility to participate in the

plan is based upon their date of hire During the second

quarter of 2011 the Company amended certain compo

nents of the postretirement health and life insurance

plans to reduce certain benefits The plan amendments

constitute negative amendments As result of the plan

amendments the accumulated postretirement benefit

obligation decreased approximately $20 from

December 31 2010 the impact of which will be recog

nized as reduction to net periodic benefit cost over the

remaining future service years of the active participants

over weighted-average period of approximately years

The Company funds life insurance benefits of certain

retirees through Voluntary Employee Benefit Association

VEBA trust Contributions to the plan consist of

compensation or pension benefit deductions that the

participant directs the Company which is also the Plan

Sponsor to deposit into the plan on their behalf based on

the coverage the participant has elected under the plan

and amounts the Company pays to the plan that are in

excess of the participant-directed deductions

Contributions to the VEBA are subject to IRS limitations

developed using the aggregate cost method At

December 31 2006 the Company eliminated the post-

retirement life insurance plan benefits for non-retirement

eligible employees The Companys postretirement benefit

plan benefit cost was $3.4 $0.5 and $0.6 for 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively The amounts included within

accumulated other comprehensive loss related to these

benefits were $14.9 and $0.8 at December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively

Components of other post-employment benefit plan cost

and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive

income loss for the postretirement health and life

insurance plans are as follows

2011 2010 2009

Service cost 0.2 0.4 0.5

Interest cost on projected benefit

obligation 0.9 1.4 1.5

Expected return on plan assets 0.5 0.6 0.6

Amortization and deferralsnet 4.0 0.7 0.8

Total other post-employment

benefit plan benefit cost 3.4 0.5 0.6

Other comprehensive income

loss $14.1 $2.0 $2.3
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Amounts in Millions
Except

Share and Per Share Amounts

The reconciliation of the postretirement health and life

insurance plans projected benefit obligation and the fair

value of plan assets for the years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 are as follows

At December 31

2011 2010

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 27.1 25.5

Service cost 0.2 0.4

Interest cost 0.9 1.4

Plan amendment 16.8

Actuarial gain loss 1.8 0.8

Part subsidy 0.1 0.1

Benefits paid 1.1 1.1

Benefit obligation at end of
year

8.6 27.1

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of

year 7.2 7.5

Actual return on plan assets 0.2 0.2

Employer contribution 0.7 0.6

Benefits paid 1.1 1.1

Fair value of plan assets at end of
year

7.0 7.2

Funded status 1.6 $19.9

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets consisted of

Non-current assets 3.3 1.6

Current liability 0.5 1.0

Non-current liability 4.4 20.5

Accumulated other comprehensive income

loss 14.9 0.8

Estimated future benefit payments from the postretire

ment health and life plan are as follows

Plan assets for the postretirement health and life plan of

$7.0 and $7.2 at December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively are comprised of money market accounts

Level asset The Company expects to make $0.5 in

contributions in 2012 to fund its post retirement health

and life plan No plan assets are expected to be returned

to the Company during 2012

Assumed health care costs trend rates were capped for all

participants following the plan amendments during the

second quarter of 2011

10 Stock-Based Compensation Plans

At December 31 2011 the Company had 38 common

shares that were authorized for issuance under the

Convergys Corporation 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Convergys LTIP as amended on April 22 2008 The

Convergys LTIP provides for the issuance of stock-based

awards to certain employees and Directors From time to

time the Company grants restricted stock awards that

generally vest over terms of three to five years pursuant

to the plan During the restriction period restricted stock

awards entitle the holder to all the rights of holder of

common shares other than the right to transfer the

shares Unvested shares are restricted as to disposition

and subject to forfeiture under certain circumstances The

Company granted stock options in 2011 with exercise

prices that are no less than market value of the stock at

the grant date and have ten-year term and vesting terms

of two to three years Stock options granted in 2010 were

fully vested at the time they were granted The Company

did not issue any stock options to employees or Directors

during 2009.The Company also grants certain employees

and Directors restricted stock units Unlike the restricted

stock awards discussed above the restricted stock units

do not possess dividend or voting rights The restricted

stock units consist of both time-related and performance-

related units The restrictions for the time-related

restricted stock units generally lapse three years after the

grant date The performance-related units vest upon the

Companys satisfaction of certain financial market

conditions relative shareholder return versus the SP 500

2012 0.7

2013 0.6

2014 0.5

2015 0.6

2016 0.6

2017 2021 3.4

6.4Total
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return Performance-related units that have not vested by

the end of three years from the grant date i.e the

performance conditions for vesting of those units have

not been met within that period are forfeited

The following table shows certain information as of

December 31 2011 with respect to compensation plans

under which common shares are authorized for issuance

Number of

Common Common

Shares to Weighted Shares

be Issued Average Available

upon Exercise for Future

Exercise Price Issuance

Equity compensation

plans approved by

shareholders

Stock options 3.9 $23.90

Restricted stock

units 3.9

7.8 $23.90 9.1

The Companys operating results reflect long-term

incentive plan expense of $17.0 $14.8 and $17.5 for the

years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively Long-term incentive plan expense related to

discontinued operations for these periods was $0.0 $0.9

and $2.5 respectively Long-term incentive plan expenses

include incentive plan expense that is paid in cash

based on reative shareholder return and stock

compensation expense Stock compensation expense for

the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was

$17.4 $15.3 and $19.1 respectively

Stock Options

Presented below is summary of Company stock option

activity

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Shares in Millions
Shares Price

Options outstanding at January 2009 9.3 $30.69

Forfeited 1.5 22.67

Options outstanding at December 31 2009 7.8 $32.21

Options exercisable at December 31 2009 7.8 $32.21

Granted 0.3 10.88

Exercised 11.74

Forfeited 2.4 31.14

Options outstanding at December 31 2010 5.7 $31.66

Options exercisable at December 31 2010 5.7 $31.66

Granted 0.7 13.79

Exercised 0.2 11.68

Forfeited 2.3 41.50

Options outstanding at December 31 2011 3.9 $23.90

Options exercisable at December 31 2011 3.2 $25.97

Approximately one-half of the stock options granted

during 2011 vest in two years and the remaining vest in

three years The Company uses the Black-Scholes option

pricing model to calculate the fair value of stock options

granted The weighted average fair value at grant date of

$4.06 per option granted included assumptions of strike

price of $13.79 31.11/o implied volatility an expected

term of 4.5 years risk-free rate of 2.12Io and divi

dend yield of O.00/o These Option grants resulted in stock

compensation expense of $1.0 in 2011 Stock options

were granted during 2010 that were fully
vested at the

time they were granted resulting in compensation cost of

approximately $1.1 Expected volatility is based on the

unbiased standard deviation of the Companys common

stock over the option term The expected life of the

options represents the period of time that the Company

expects the options granted to be outstanding The risk-
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Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts

free rate is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect

at the time of the grant of the option for the expected

term of the instrument The dividend yield reflects an

estimate of dividend payouts over the term of the award

The weighted average grant date fair value per share for

the outstanding and exercisable options at

December 31 2011 was $10.17 and $9.15 respectively

The following table summarizes the status of the Company

stock options outstanding and exercisable at

December 31 2011

Shares in

Millions Options Outstanding Options
Exercisable

Weighted Weighted

Average Weighted Average Weighted

Range of Remaining Average Remaining Average

Exercise Contractual Exercise Contractual Exercise

Prices Shares Life in years Price Shares Life in years Price

$0.0 to

$11.55 1.0 1.7 $11.35 1.0 1.7 $11.35

$11.56 to

$21.81 1.1 6.3 13.80 0.4 1.2 13.82

$21.82 to

$22.22.

$22.23 to

$29.32 0.1 0.3 28.25 0.1 0.3 28.25

$29.33 to

$29.53.

$29.54 to

$36.49 0.1 30.66 0.1 30.66

$36.50 to

$36.67 1.7 36.67 1.7 36.67

$36.68 to

$43.50.

$43.51

and

Over

Total 3.9 2.1 $23.90 3.2 0.7 $25.97

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exercised

was less than $0.7 in 2011 and $0.1 in 2010 and

2009 The actual tax benefit realized from the exercised

stock options was $0.1 in 2011 and less than $0.1 in 2010

and 2009 The total grant date fair value of stock options

that vested during 2011 2010 and 2009 was $0.0 $1.1

and $0.0 respectively As of December 31 2011 the

aggregate intrinsic value was $1.5 for both stock options

outstanding and exercisable Intrinsic value represents the

Companys closing price on the last trading day of the year

in excess of the weighted average exercise price for those

tranches of options with weighted average exercise price

less than the closing price multiplied by the number of

options outstanding or exercisable

Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock

Units

During 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company granted 1.5

2.3 and 2.8 shares respectively of restricted stock and

restricted stock units The weighted average fair values of

these grants were $13.67 $11.45 and $7.69 respectively

Included in the total grants were 0.5 1.0 and 1.8 of

performance-related restricted stock units for 2011 2010

and 2009 respectively

The 2011 performance-related grants provide for payout

based upon the extent to which the Company achieves

certain EBITDA targets as determined by the Compensa

tion and Benefits Committee of the Board of Directors for

this award over two-year period Payout levels range

from SO/o to 200/o of award shares earned No payout can

be earned if performance is below the minimum threshold

level Compensation cost related to these 2011 grants will

be adjusted based upon expected performance as

compared to defined targets

The 2010 and 2009 performance-related grants provide for

payout depending on the Companys relative total share

holder return in each respective year as compared to

companies in the SP 500 Index The Company used

Monte Carlo simulation model to determine the fair value

for performance-based restricted stock units granted

during 2010 and 2009 The assumptions used in this

model are set forth in the table below Expected vola

tilities for the 2010 performance awards were based on

historical volatility and daily returns for the three-year

period ended January 2010 of the Companys stock and

SP 500 companies For the 2010 performance awards the

total stock return for the Company over the performance

period is based on comparing Convergys average closing

price from the fourth quarter of 2009 with the average

expected closing price for the fourth quarter of 2012 For

these awards the total stock return of the SP 500

companies is computed by comparing the average closing
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Commitments

2010 2009

52.8 0/0

3.0

1.2

tions

2012

price of the SP 500 companies from the fourth quarter of

2009 with the average expected closing price for the

fourth quarter of 2012 The risk-free interest rate for the

expected term of the award granted is based on the U.S

Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant

At December 31 2011 the total minimum rental commit

ments under non-cancelable operating leases are as

follows

Expected volatility
56.0 0/0

Expected term in years 3.0

Risk-free interest rate 1.4 0/0

2012 26.8

2013 16.4

2014 11.8

2015 8.5

2016 6.7

Thereafter 11.3

Total 81.5

The total compensation cost related to non-vested

restricted stock and restricted stock units not yet recog

nized as of December 31 2011 was approximately $19.3

based on current estimates of the performance metrics

which is expected to be recognized over weighted

average of 0.8 years Changes to non-vested restricted

stock and restricted stock units for the years ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 were as follows

Weighted

Number Average Fair

of Value at Date

Shares in millions Shares of Grant

Non-vested at December 31 2009 4.9 $12.18

Granted 2.3 11.45

Vested 1.3 16.88

Forfeited 1.7 11.01

Non-vested at December 31 2010 4.2 10.64

Granted 1.5 13.67

Vested 0.6 11.70

Forfeited 1.2 11.22

Non-vested at December 31 2011 3.9 $11.08

At December 31 2011 the Company had outstanding

letters of credit of approximately $32 related to perform

ance and payment guarantees of which approximately $15

is set to expire by the end of 2012 approximately $4 is

set to expire within one to three years and approximately

$13 is set to expire after three years The Company also

had other bond obligations of approximately $2 related to

performance and payment guarantees

At December 31 2011 the Company had outstanding

performance bond obligations of approximately $35

related to performance and payment guarantees for the

Companys former HR Management line of business Upon

completion of the sale of the HR Management business

the Company accounts for these performance bond obliga

tions under the guidance of ASC 460-10 As part of the

gain on disposition the Company recognized liability

equal to the present value of probability weighted cash

flows of potential outcomes Level fair value

measurement Although NorthgateArinso is obligated to

indemnify the Company for any and all losses costs

liabilities and expenses incurred related to these perform

ance bonds as of December 31 2011 the Company

maintains liability of approximately $1 for these obliga

The Company also has purchase commitments with

telecommunication providers of approximately $17 in

The aggregate intrinsic value of non-vested restricted

stock units was $50.1 at December 31 2011

11 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment used

in its operations under operating leases Total rent

expense was $79.0 $81.9 and $88.7 in 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively
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Contingencies

The Company from time to time is involved in various loss

contingencies including legal contingencies that arise in

the ordinary course of business The Company accrues for

loss contingency when it is probable that liability has

been incurred and the amount of such loss can be reason

ably estimated At this time the Company believes that

the results of any such contingencies either individually

or in the aggregate will not have materially adverse

effect on the Companys results of operations or financial

condition However the outcome of any litigation cannot

be predicted with certainty An unfavorable resolution of

one or more pending matters could have materially

adverse impact on the Companys results of operations or

financial condition in the future

Several related class action lawsuits were filed in the

United States District Court for the Northern District of

Texas in 2001 on behalf of purchasers of common stock of

Intervoice Inc Intervoice during the period from

October 12 1999 through June 2000 the Class Period

Plaintiffs filed claims which were consolidated into one

proceeding under Sections 10b and 20a of the

Exchange Act and SEC Rule lOb-5 against Intervoice

subsidiary of the Company since 2008 as well as certain

named former officers and directors of Intervoice on

behalf of the alleged class members In the complaint

Plaintiffs claim that Intervoice and the named former

officers and directors issued false and misleading state

ments during the Class Period concerning the financial

condition of Intervoice the results of merger with

another company and the alleged future business projec

tions of Intervoice Plaintiffs have asserted that these

alleged statements resulted in artificially inflated stock

prices

The District Court dismissed the plaintiffs complaint

because it lacked the degree of specificity and factual

support to meet the pleading standards applicable to

federal securities litigation On appeal the United States

Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit affirmed the

dismissal in part and reversed in part The Fifth Circuit

remanded limited number of issues for further proceed

ings in the District Court In 2006 the District Court

granted the plaintiffs motion to certify class of

purchasers of Intervoice stock during the Class Period

Intervoice appealed and in 2008 the Fifth Circuit vacated

the District Courts class-certification order and remanded

the case to the District Court for further consideration In

October 2009 the District Court denied the plaintiffs

motion to certify class In January 2010 the Fifth

Circuit granted the plaintiffs petition for permission to

appeal the denial of class certification The District Court

stayed the case pending the Fifth Circuits decision on the

plaintiffs appeal The Company and the plaintiffs have

signed term sheet to settle and terminate the lawsuit

The District Court approved the parties joint stipulation of

settlement on September 27 2011 The joint stipulation

of settlement was not appealed and became final on

October 30 2011 The final settlement did not have

material adverse impact on the Companys results of

operations or financial condition

In November 2011 one of the Companys call center

clients tendered contractual indemnity claim to

Convergys Customer Management Group Inc subsidiary

of the Company relating to putative class action

captioned Brandon Wheelock individually and on behaf of

class and subclass of similarly situated individuals

Hyundai Motor America Orange County Superior

Court California Case No 30-2011-00522293-CU-BT-CJC

The lawsuit alleges that Hyundai Motor America violated

Californias telephone recording laws by recording tele

phone calls with customer service representatives without

providing disclosure that the calls might be recorded

Plaintiff is seeking among other things an order

certifying the suit as California class action statutory

damages payment of attorneys fees and pre- and post

judgment interest Convergys Customer Management

Group Inc is not named as defendant in the

lawsuit and is in the process of evaluating the indemnity

demand Given the early stage of this matter the fact that

Convergys Customer Management Group Inc is not named

as defendant in the lawsuit and the fact that there has
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been no determination as to whether Convergys Customer

Management Group Inc will be required to indemnify the

client the likelihood of losses that may become payable

to this call center client under claims related to this

matter the amount of potential losses associated with

such claims and whether such losses may be material

cannot be determined or estimated at this time The

Company has therefore not established reserve for them

The Company believes Convergys Customer Management

Group Inc has meritorious defenses to the clients

demand for indemnification and also believes there are

meritorious defenses to Plaintiffs claims in the lawsuit

12 Financial Instruments

Derivative Instruments

The Company is exposed to variety of market risks

including the effects of changes in foreign currency

exchange rates and interest rates Market risk is the

potential loss arising from adverse changes in market

rates and prices The Companys risk management strategy

includes the use of derivative instruments to reduce the

effects on its operating results and cash flows from

fluctuations caused by volatility in currency exchange and

interest rates

The Company serves many of its U.S.-based clients using

contact center capacity in the Philippines India Canada

and Colombia Although the contracts with these clients

are typically priced in U.S dollars substantial portion of

the costs incurred to render services under these contracts

are denominated in Philippine pesos PHP Indian rupees

INR Canadian dollars CAD or Colombian pesos COP

which represents foreign exchange exposure Beginning

in 2011 the Company entered into contract with

client priced in Australian dollars AUD The Company has

hedged portion of its exposure related to the anticipated

cash flow requirements denominated in these foreign

currencies by entering into forward exchange contracts

and options with several financial institutions to acquire

total of PHP 19399.7 at fixed price of $424.4 at various

dates through December 2014 INR 7588.7 at fixed

price of $152.9 at various dates through December 2014

CAD 12.0 at fixed price of $11.4 at various dates

through December 2012 and COP 31200.0 at fixed price

of $15.9 at various dates through December 2013 and to

sell total of AUD 14.6 at fixed price of $15.2 at various

dates through December 2012 These instruments mature

within the next 36 months and had notional value of

$619.8 at December 31 2011 and $571.6 at

December 31 2010 The derivative instruments discussed

above are designated and are effective as cash flow

hedges The following table reflects the fair values of

these derivative instruments

December 31

2011 2010

Forward exchange contracts and options

designated as hedging instruments

Included within other current assets $13.0 $19.5

Included within other non-current assets 3.9 19.2

Included within other current liabilities 11.2 7.2

Included within other long-term liabilities 8.1 0.8

The Company recorded deferred tax benefit of $1.0 and

deferred tax expense of $12.0 related to these derivatives

at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively total of

$1.5 of deferred losses and $18.7 of deferred gains net of

tax related to these cash flow hedges at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively were included

in accumulated other comprehensive loss OCL As of

December 31 2011 deferred gains of $1.8 $1.1 net of

tax on derivative instruments included in accumulated

OCL are expected to be reclassified into earnings during

the next 12 months The following tables provide the

effect of these derivative instruments on the Companys

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

2011

Gain Loss Location of

Recognized Gain Loss Gain Loss

in OCL on Reclassified Reclassified from

Derivatives in Derivative from Accumulated Accumulated OCL

Cash Flow Hedging Effective OCL into Income into Income

Relationships Portion Effective Portion Effective Portion

Foreign exchange

contracts $21.6

Cost of providing

$11.6 services and

products sold

and Selling

general and

administrative
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Gain Loss Location of

Recognized Gain Loss Gain Loss
in OCL on Reclassified Reclassified from

Derivatives in Derivative from Accumulated Accumulated OCL

Cash Flow Hedging Effective OCL into Income into Income

Relationships Portion Effective Portion Effective Portion

The gain recognized related to the ineffective portion of

the derivative instruments was immaterial for the years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010

During 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company recorded net

gain of $11.6 and net losses of $0.5 and $27.5

respectively related to the settlement of forward

contracts and options which were designated as cash flow

hedges

The Company also enters into derivative instruments

forwards to economically hedge the foreign currency

impact of assets and liabilities denominated in nonfunc

tional currencies During the year ended

December 31 2011 loss of $0.2 was recognized related

to changes in fair value of these derivative instruments

not designated as hedges compared to gain of $0.2 in

the same period in 2010 The gains and losses largely

offset the currency gains and losses that resulted from

changes in the assets and liabilities denominated in

nonfunctional currencies These gains and losses are

classified within other income net in the accompanying

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive

Income Loss The fair value of these derivative instru

ments not designated as hedges at December 31 2011

was immaterial to the Companys Consolidated Financial

Statements

few of the Companys counterparty agreements related

to derivative instruments contain provisions that require

that the Company maintain collateral on derivative

instruments in net liability positions The aggregate fair

value of all derivative instruments in
liability position at

December 31 2011 was $19.3 for which the Company has

no posted collateral Future downgrades in the Companys

credit ratings and/or changes in the foreign currency

markets could result in collateral to counterparties

Investments

In December 2011 the Company made investments in

certain securities included within other current assets in

the Consolidated Balance Sheets which are held in

grantor trust for the benefit of participants of the execu

tive deferred compensation plan which was frozen during

the fourth quarter of 2011 This investment was made in

securities reflecting the hypothetical investment balances

of plan participants As of December 31 2011 the

Company maintained investment securities with fair

value of $22.7 classified as trading securities The invest

ment securities include exchange-traded mutual funds

common stock of the Company and money market

accounts These securities are carried at fair value with

gains and losses both realized and unrealized reported in

other income expense net in the Consolidated State

ments of Operations and Comprehensive Income loss

The cost of securities sold is based upon the specific

identification method Interest and dividends on secu

rities classified as trading are included in other income

expense net

13 Fair Value Disclosures

U.S GAAP defines hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs

in measuring fair value The three levels of the fair value

hierarchy are as follows Level inputs are quoted prices

unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities Level inputs are quoted prices for similar

assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are

observable for the asset or liability either directly or

indirectly through market corroboration for substantially

the full term of the financial instrument and Level

inputs are unobservable inputs based on the Companys

assumptions used to measure assets and liabilities at fair

value financial assets or liabilitys classification within

the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement

2010

Foreign exchange

contracts $53.1

Cost of providing

$O.5 services and

products sold

and Selling

general and

administrative
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At December 31 2011 and 2010 the Company had foreign

currency forward contracts measured at fair value The fair

values of these instruments were measured using valu

ations based upon quoted prices for similar assets and

liabilities in active markets Level and are valued by

reference to similar financial instruments adjusted for

terms specific to the contracts The derivative assets and

liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 were as follows

Quoted Prices Significant

In Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable

December 31 Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

2011 Level Level Level

Derivatives

Foreign

currency

forward

contracts

asset

position $16.9 $16.9

Foreign

currency

forward

contracts

liability

position $19.3 $19.3

Quoted Prices Significant

In Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable

December 31 Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

2010 Level Level Level

Derivatives

Foreign

currency

forward

contracts

asset

position $38.8 $38.8

Foreign

currency

forward

contracts

liability

position 8.0 8.0

The Company also had investment securities measured at

fair value at December 31 2011 The fair value of these

instruments was measured using quoted prices in active

markets for identical assets Level The assets measured

at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2011

were as follows

Quoted Prices Significant

In Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable

December 31 Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level

Investment

securities

Mutual

funds $15.9 $15.9

Convergys

common
stock 5.1 5.1

Money

market

accounts 1.7 1.7

Total $22.7 $22.7

Fair values of cash equivalents and current accounts

receivable and payable approximate the carrying amounts

because of their short-term nature The fair value of short-

term debt approximates its recorded value because of its

short-term nature

14 Income Taxes

The Companys provision benefit for income taxes from

continuing operations consists of the following

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Current

United States federal 47.1 12.7 $34.5

Foreign 20.7 10.3 10.1

State and local 2.9 2.3 5.6

Total current 70.7 20.7 18.8

Deferred

United States federal 43.7 14.0 44.3

Foreign 1.9 1.2 13.6

State and local 6.4 8.8 0.3

Total deferred 48.2 4.0 30.4

TotaL $118.9 16.7 11.6

2011
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The Companys combined pre-tax earnings from continuing

operations relating to foreign subsidiaries or branches

were $84.8 $100.1 and $88.7 during 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively

The fotiowing is reconciliation of the statutory federal

income tax rate with the effective tax rate from

continuing operations for the tax expense in 2011 2010

and 2009

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

U.S federal statutory rate 35.0%

Permanent differences 12.7

State and local income taxes net of

federal income tax 1.2

International rate differential

including tax holidays 2.1

Foreign valuation allowances

Impairments

Adjustments for uncertain tax

positions 6.6

Tax credits and other 1.4

Effective rate 26.6% 29.4Io 12.0/o

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are

as follows

At December 31

2011 2010

Deferred tax assets

Loss and credit carryforwards $118.7 $148.4

Pension and employee benefits 76.8 73.0

Restructuring charges 1.0 6.9

Deferred revenue 16.1 9.0

Foreign currency hedge 1.0

Other 53.5 49.1

Valuation allowances 37.3 37.3

Total deferred tax assets 229.8 249.1

Deferred tax LiabiLities

Depreciation
and amortization 149.6 148.2

Deferred implementation costs 29.3 18.0

Contingent debt and accrued interest 44.0 37.7

Foreign currency hedge 12.0

Other 30.8 30.6

Total deferred tax liabilities 253.7 246.5

Net deferred tax LiabiLities assets 23.9 2.6

The 56.O/o increase in the income tax expense rate in

2011 is primarily due to the previous years impact of

non-deductibility of goodwill impairments internal

restructurings and the geographic mix of worldwide

income The Companys foreign taxes for 2011 2010 and

2009 included $2.6 $12.0 and $8.5 respectively of

benefit derived from tax holidays in the Philippines India

and Costa Rica This resulted in 0.6/o 21.0/n and

8.8/o impact to the effective tax rate in 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively The Companys foreign taxes for 2011

2010 and 2009 include $1.0 $9.9 and $7.5 respectively

related to tax holiday in India which expired March

2011 The tax holidays in the Philippines are scheduled to

expire by December 2012 The Company has applied for

one- or two-year extensions of the Philippine tax holidays

in accordance with local law

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 $14.3 and $15.3

respectively of the valuation allowances relate to the

Companys foreign operations

As of December 31 2011 the Company has federal state

and foreign operating loss carryforwards of $85.2 $809.7

and $104.7 respectively The federal operating loss

carryforwards and state operating ross carryforwards expire

between 2020 and 2031 The foreign operating loss

carryforwards include $57.1 with no expiration date the

remainder will expire between 2012 and 2026 The federal

and state operating loss carryforwards include losses of

$105.6 and $221.3 respectively that were acquired in

connection with business combinations Utilization of the

acquired federal and state tax loss carryforwards may be

Umited pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue

Code of 1986 At December 31 2011 the Company also

had $3.7 in state tax credits that expire from 2012 to

2014

35.0/o 35.0/o

2.6 0.1

7.5 3.5

33.9

0.2

91.7

13.4

2.0

0.3 13.8

3.6 1.2
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The Company has not provided for U.S federal income

taxes or foreign withholding taxes on $422.7 of undis

tributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries at

December 31 2011 because such earnings are intended

to be reinvested indefinitely It is not practicable to

determine the amount of applicable taxes that would be

due if such were distributed

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the liability for unrecog

nized tax benefits was $112.3 and $84.8 respectively

including $23.5 and $20.5 of accrued interest and penal

ties and is recorded within the other long-term liabilities in

the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets The total

amount of net unrecognized tax benefits that would affect

income tax expense if ever recognized in the Consolidated

Financial Statements is $98.7 This amount includes net

interest and penalties of $20.2 The Companys policy is to

recognize interest and penalties accrued on unrecognized

tax benefits as part of income tax expense During the years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 the Company recog

nized approximately $3.0 and $5.8 in interest and penalties

respectively

reconciliation of the beginning and ending total

amounts of unrecognized tax benefits exclusive of

interest and penalties is as follows

2011 2010

Balance at January $63.9 $64.7

Additions based on tax positions related to

the current year 26.7 0.1

Additions for tax positions of prior years 3.0

Reductions for tax positions of prior years 1.5 1.9

Settlements 2.4

Lapse of statutes 2.7 2.0

Balance at December 31 $88.8 $63.9

The increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits

was largely due to uncertainty related to the deductibility

of certain items partially offset by decreases for the

resolution of tax audits in the current year The Company

is currently attempting to resolve income tax audits

relating to prior years in various jurisdictions The

Company has received assessments from these juris

dictions related to transfer pricing and deductibility of

expenses The Company believes that it is appropriately

reserved with regard to these assessments as of

December 31 2011 Furthermore the Company believes

that it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of

unrecognized tax benefits will decrease between $5.0 and

$40.0 prior to December 31 2012 based upon resolution

of audits however actual developments could differ from

those currently expected

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S federal

jurisdiction and various states and foreign jurisdictions

With few exceptions the Company is no longer subject

to examinations by tax authorities for years before 2002

15 Additional Financial Information

At December 31

2011 2010

Property and equipment net

Land 18.4 16.9

Buildings
221.7 211.3

Leasehold improvements 185.8 187.5

Equipment 597.7 610.6

Software 492.6 467.4

Construction in
progress

and other 28.9 28.3

1545.1 1522.0

Less Accumulated depreciation 1179.7 1174.4

365.4 347.6

PayabLes and other current Liabilities

Accounts payable
46.1 53.6

Accrued taxes 44.2 19.7

Accrued payroll-related expenses
89.3 100.2

Derivative Liabilities 11.2 7.2

Accrued expenses other 115.7 103.6

Restructuring and exit costs 10.8 35.8

Deferred revenue and government

grants
58.7 601

376.0 380.2

AccumuLated other comprehensive loss
income

Foreign currency translation

adjustments
14.1 18.0

Pension liability net of tax benefit of

$35.7 and $29.0 59.3 52.0

Unrealized loss gain on hedging

activities net of tax benefit expense

$1.0 and $12.0 1.5 18.7

46.7 15.3
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16 Industry Segment and Geographic

Operations

Industry Segment Information

As discussed in Note after the sale of HR Management

the Company reorganized its reportable segments into the

following segments Customer Management which

provides agent-assisted services self-service and

intelligent technology care solutions and ii Information

Management which provides BSS solutions These

segments are consistent with the Companys management

of the business and reflect its internal financial reporting

structure and operating focus

The Company does not allocate activities below the

operating income level to its reported segments The

Companys business segment information is as follows

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Revenues

Customer Management $1918.8 $1839.3 $1986.7

Information

Management 328.8 340.1 434.3

Corporate and other 14.4 24.0

$2262.0 $2203.4 $2421.0

Depredation

Customer Management 60.3 65.7 66.9

Information

Management 13.9 14.3 22.6

Corporate
and other 12.7 17.3 20.8

86.9 97.3 110.3

Amortization

Customer Management 7.4 7.7 7.3

Information

Management 2.2 2.5 3.6

9.6 10.1 10.9

Restructuring Charges

Customer Management 1.0 22.6 7.9

Information

Management 1.2 8.0 30.4

Corporate and other 0.2 6.1 5.0

36.7 43.3

Asset Impairments

Customer Management 181.1

Information

Management 3.1

181.1 3.1

Operating Income Loss
Customer Management 149.9 78.5 133.9

Information

Management 37.2 33.2 21.9

Corporate
12 18.8 49.3 54.6

168.3 94.6 101.2

Capital Expenditures

Customer Management 51.8 42.7 44.5

Information

Management 15.4 10.1 10.8

Corporate 21.1 13.2 16.3

88.3 66.0 71.4

Includes shared services-related capital expenditures and depreciation

Includes costs incurred historically allocated to the HR Management segment

but not meeting the criteria for classification as discontinued operations of

$9.1 and $32.1 for 2010 and 2009 respectively
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At December 31 17 QuarterLy FinanciaL Information

Unaudited

2011

Revenues

Operating income 37.0

Net income from

continuing operations 34.9

Net income from

discontinued

operations

Net income 34.9

Basic earnings per
share

Continuing

operations 0.29

Discontinued

operations

Net basic earnings per

common share 0.29

Diluted earnings per

share

2011 2010

Total Assets

Customer Management $1380.2 $1370.5

Information Management 459.4 513.8

Corporate
486.3 229.2

Held-for-Sale 11.8

$2325.9 $2125.3

Geographic Operations

The following table presents certain geographic

information regarding the Companys operations

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

Revenues

North America $1845.4 $1810.5 $2037.6

Rest of World 416.6 392.9 383.4

$544.6 $551.6 $576.9 $588.9 $2262.0

38.1 43.5 49.7 168.3

31.7 213.7 48.0 328.3

6.5 6.5

31.7 213.7 54.5 334.8

0.26 1.78 0.41 2.73

0.06 0.06

0.26 1.78 0.47 2.79

0.26 1.75 0.40 2.67

0.05 0.05

0.26 1.75 0.45 2.72

$2262.0 $2203.4 $2421.0

At December 31

2011 2010

Long-lived Assets

North America $1164.9 $1292.5

Rest of World 209.9 127.3

$1374.8 $1419.8

Continuing

operations 0.28

Discontinued

operations

Net basic earnings per

common share 0.28

Concentrations

The Customer Management and Information Management

segments derive significant revenues from ATT Revenues

from ATT were 21.6/o 21.4/o and 23.1/o of the Companys

consolidated revenues from continuing operations for 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively Related accounts receivable

from ATT totaled $93.2 and $57.4 at December 31 2011

and 2010 respectively The Customer Management segment

also derives significant revenues from DIRECTV and Comcast

Revenues for DIRECTV were 1O.1/o 8.9/o and 8.4/o of the

Companys consolidated revenues from continuing oper

ations for 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Revenues for

Comcast were lO.2Io 7.3/o and 7.2/o of the Companys

consolidated revenues from continuing operations for 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively

1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

2010

Revenues $546.0 $528.2 $556.0 573.2 $2203.4

Operating income loss 22.1 7.8 34.7 159.2 94.6

Net income loss from

continuing operations 25.6 11.2 35.0 146.5 74.7

Net income loss from

discontinued operations 9.7 16.2 6.2 1.8 21.5

Net income loss 35.3 27.4 28.8 144.7 53.2

Basic earnings loss per

share

Continuing operations 0.21 0.09 0.28 1.20 0.61

Discontinued

operations 0.08 0.13 0.05 0.01 0.18

Net basic earnings loss

per common share 0.29 0.22 0.23 1.19 0.43

Diluted earnings loss per

share

Continuing operations 0.20 0.09 0.28 1.20 0.61

Discontinued

operations 0.08 0.13 0.05 0.01 0.18

Net basic earnings loss

per common share 0.28 0.22 0.23 1.19 0.43
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1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

Segment Data

Customer

Management

2011

Revenues $458.5 $469.6 $490.9 $499.8 $1918.8

Operating income 32.2 37.3 39.0 41.4 149.9

2010

Revenues 463.6 446.1 462.9 466.7 1839.3

Operating income

loss 33.8 8.0 31.3 $151.6 78.5

Information

Management

2011

Revenues 79.8 77.0 83.6 88.4 328.8

Operating income 7.2 6.5 9.7 13.8 37.2

2010

Revenues 82.4 78.0 81.9 97.8 340.1

Operating income 6.9 9.4 11.3 5.6 33.2

Includes asset impairment charge of $181.1

The sum of the quarterly earnings loss per common share

may not equal the annual amounts reported because per

share amounts are computed independently for each

quarter and for full year based on respective weighted

average common shares outstanding and other dilutive

potential common shares
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Item and 9A

Item Changes in and

Disagreements with Accountants on

Accounting and Financial DiscLosure

No disagreements with accountants on any accounting or

financial disclosure or auditing scope or procedure

occurred during 2011

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and

Procedures

The Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer evaluated together with General Counsel the Chief

Accounting Officer and other key members of manage

ment the effectiveness of design and operation of the

Companys discLosure controls and procedures as

defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Act as

of the year ended December 31 2011 Evaluation Date

Based on this evaluation the Companys Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the

Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effec

tive as of the Evaluation Date such that the information

required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports

that it files or submits under the Act is accumulated and

communicated to the Companys management including

its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as

appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required

disclosure and are effective to ensure that such

information is recorded processed summarized and

reported within the time periods specified in the Secu

rities and Exchange Commissions rules and forms

Changes in Internal Control

There have been no changes in the Companys internal

control over financial reporting that occurred during the

fourth quarter ended December 31 2011 that have

materially affected or are reasonably Likely to materially

affect the Companys internal control over financial

reporting
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Report of Management

Attestation Report on Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting

Managements Responsibilities for and Audit

Committee Oversight of the Financial

Reporting Process

The management of Convergys Corporation is responsible

for the preparation integrity and fair presentation of the

Consolidated Financial Statements and all related

information appearing in this Annual Report The

Consolidated Financial Statements and notes have been

prepared in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States and include

certain amounts which are estimates based upon

currently available information and managements

judgment of current conditions and circumstances

The Audit Committee consisting entirely of independent

directors meets regularly with management the

compliance officer internal auditors and the independent

registered pubLic accounting firm and reviews audit plans

and results as well as managements actions taken in

discharging responsibilities for accounting financial

reporting and internal control Ernst Young LLP

independent registered public accounting firm and the

internal auditors have direct and confidential access to

the Audit Committee at all times to discuss the results of

their examinations

Managements Report on Internal Control over

Financial Reporting

Convergys management is also responsible for

establishing and maintaining adequate internal control

over financial reporting that is designed to produce reli

able Financial Statements in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States The

system of internal control over financial reporting is

evaluated for effectiveness by management and tested for

reliability through program of internal audits Actions

are taken to correct potential deficiencies as they are

identified Any internal control system no matter how

well designed has inherent limitations including the

possibility that control can be circumvented or over

ridden and misstatements due to error or fraud may occur

and may not be detected Also because of changes in

conditions internal control effectiveness may vary over

time Accordingly even an effective system of internal

control will provide only reasonable assurance with

respect to Financial Statement preparation and

presentation

Convergys management assessed the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2011 In making this assessment it used

the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in

Internal ControlIntegrated Framework Based on its

assessment management has concluded that as of

December 31 2011 the Companys internal control over

financial reporting is effective based on those criteria

Convergys engaged Ernst Young LLP in 2011 to perform

an integrated audit of the Consolidated Financial State

ments in accordance with auditing standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Their report appears on page 52 Additionally Ernst

Young LLP has issued an audit report on the Companys

internal control over financial reporting That report

appears on page 88

Is/Jeffrey Fox

Jeffrey Fox

Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Earl Shanks

Earl Shanks

Chief Financial Officer

February 22 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Item 9B

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Convergys Corporation

We have audited Convergys Corporations internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based

on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orga

nizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria

Convergys Corporations management is responsible for

maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Report of Management Our responsibility

is to express an opinion on the companys internal control

over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting

was maintained in all material respects Our audit included

obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is

process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi

ples companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to

the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are

being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over

financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate

ments Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness

to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or proce

dures may deteriorate

In our opinion Convergys Corporation maintained in all

material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2011 based on the COSO

criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets of Convergys

Corporation as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the

related consolidated statements of operations and

comprehensive income loss shareholders equity and

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2011 and our report dated February 22

2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Ernst Young LLP

Cincinnati Ohio

February 22 2012

Item 9B Other Information

None
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Part III Item 10 through 14

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive

Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 with respect to

directors the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

Audit Committee financial experts Financial Code of

Ethics and Section 16 compliance is incorporated herein

by reference to the Companys proxy statement relating to

its annual meeting of shareholders to be held on

April 26 2012 See Corporate Governance Code of

Ethics and Governance Principals Board of Directors and

Committees and Election of Directors sections in the

Companys proxy statement

Certain information concerning the executive officers of

the Company is contained on page 16 of this Form 10-K

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated

herein by reference to the Companys proxy statement

relating to its annual meeting of shareholders to be held

on April 26 2012 See Compensation Discussion and

Analysis Summary Compensation Table Grants of

Plan-Based Awards Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal

Year End Option Exercises and Stock Vested Pension

Benefits Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

Payments Upon Termination or In Connection With

Change of Control and Director Compensation sections

of the Companys proxy statement

Item 12 Security Ownership of

Certain Beneficial Owners and

Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The Share Ownership of Directors and Officers section is

incorporated herein by reference to the Companys proxy

statement relating to its annual meeting of shareholders

to be held on April 26 2012 See Share Ownership

section of the Companys proxy statement

The remaining information called for by this Item relating

to securities authorized for issuance under equity

compensation plans is incorporated by reference to Note

10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Item 13 Certain Relationships and

Related Transactions and Director

Independence

Relationships and related transactions section and

director independence is incorporated herein by reference

to the Companys proxy statement relating to its annual

meeting of shareholders to be held on April 26 2012 See

Related Party Transactions section of the Companys

proxy statement

Item 14 PrincipaL Accounting Fees

and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by

reference to the Companys proxy statement relating to its

annual meeting of shareholders to be held on

April 26 2012 See Audit Fees section of the Companys

proxy statement

96 Convergys Corporation 2011 Annual Report



Part IV Items 15 15a1 and

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial

Statement Schedule

Item 15al and List of

Financial Statements and FinanciaL

Statement Schedule

The following consolidated financial statements of

Convergys are included in Item

Page

Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm 52

Consolidated Statements of Operations

and Comprehensive Income Loss 53

Consolidated Balance Sheets 54

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 55

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders

Equity
56

Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements

FinanciaL Statement Schedule

IlValuation and Qualifying Accounts 98

Financial statement schedules other than that listed above

have been omitted because the required information is not

required or applicable
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CONVERGYS CORPORATION
SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Millions of Dollars

Year 2010

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance

$11.8

3.8 $13.4

$13.9 $11.0

44 $373

COL COL COL COL COL

Additions

Balance at Charged Charged Balance

Beginning to to Other at End
Description of Period Expense Accounts Deductions of Period

Year 2011

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts $11.0 $13.3 0.2 $13.9 $10.2

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance $37.3 2.0 bI 0.1 cJ 1.9 $373

13.1

51.3

Year 2009

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 8.8 18.2 13.9 13.1

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance 93.2 6.6 $40.2 8.3 Id 51.3

Primarily includes amounts written-off as uncollectible

Amounts relate to valuation allowances recorded for state operating loss carnjforwards and capital loss carryforwards

Primarily includes
usage creation of and foreign currency translation adjustment for

foreign deferred tax assets

Primarily includes the release of foreign valuation allowances related to the atilization of foreign net operating losses in the current year and release of valuation
allowance related to state tax credits and against expiration of capital loss carryforward
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Exhibits

Exhibits identified in parenthesis below on file with the

Securities and Exchange Commission SEC are

incorporated herein by reference as exhibits hereto

Exhibit Number

3.1 Amended Articles of Incorporation of the

Company Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

3.1 to Form 1O-Q filed on May 2009

3.2 Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of

Convergys Corporation Incorporated by reference

from Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed on May 2011

4.1 Indenture dated October 13 2009 by and

between Convergys Corporation and U.S Bank

National Association as trustee relating to

Convergys Corporations 5.750/o Junior

Subordinated Convertible Debentures due 2029

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to

Form 8-K filed October 13 2009

4.2 Form of 5.75Io Junior Subordinated Convertible

Debenture due 2029 Incorporated by reference

from Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed October 13

2009

10.1 $300000000 Four-Year Competitive Advance and

Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated as of

March 11 2011 among Convergys Corporation

The Lenders Party Hereto JPMorgan Chase Bank

N.A as Administrative Agent Citibank N.A as

Syndication Agent and BNP Paribas The Bank of

Nova Scotia PNC Bank National Association and

Wells Fargo Bank N.A as Co-Documentation

Agents Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.1 to Form 8-K filed on March 16 2011

10.2 Guarantee and Contribution Agreement dated as

of March 11 2011 among Convergys Corporation

and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative

agent for the Lenders party to the $300000000

Four-Year Competitive Advance and Revolving

Credit Facility Agreement dated as of March 11

2011 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.2 to Form 8-K filed on March 16 2011

10.3 Amendment No to Certain Operative Agree

ments dated as of April 21 2011 by and among

Convergys Corporation the Guarantors Wachovia

Development Corporation the various banks and

other lending institutions party thereto as lend

ers and Wells Fargo Bank National Association

Incorporated by reference from exhibit 10.1 to

Form 8-K filed on April 27 2011

10.4 Form of Joinder Agreement dated as of April 21

2011 by and among Asset Ohio Fourth Street LLC

Brite Voice Systems Inc Convergys Cellular

Systems Company Convergys Customer Manage

ment Group Canada Holding Inc Convergys

Customer Management International Inc and

Convergys Finance Corp as Subsidiary Guarantors

Convergys Corporation as Lessee and Wells Fargo

Bank National Association as Agent Each of the

Subsidiary Guarantors executed Joinder Agree

ment identical in all material respects to the copy

filed herewith except as to the Subsidiary

Guarantor party thereto Incorporated by refer

ence from exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on

April 27 2011

10.5 Purchase Agreement dated June 2011 among

Convergys Cellular Systems Company New Cingular

Wireless PCS LLC and SBC Tower Holdings LLC

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to

Form 8-K filed on June 2011

10.6 Amendment No to Receivables Purchase

Agreement dated as of June 24 2011 among

Convergys Corporation as initial Servicer and

Performance Guarantor Convergys Funding Inc

as Seller Liberty Street Funding LLC The Bank of

Nova Scotia as Purchaser and Scotiabank Group

Agent and Wells Fargo Bank N.A successor by

merger to Wachovia Bank National Association

as Purchaser and Administrative Agent

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to

Form 8-K filed on June 29 2011
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10.7 Convergys Corporation Deferred Compensation and

Long-Term Incentive Plan Award Deferral Plan for

Non-Employee Directors as amended and restated

effective February 24 2004 Incorporated by

reference from Exhibit 10.24 to Form 10-0 filed

on August 2004

10.8 Convergys Corporation Deferred Com pensation

Plan for Non-Employee Directors dated August 26

2008 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.2 to Form 10-0 filed on November 2008

10.9 Convergys Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan

as amended and restated effective as of April 22

2008 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.4 to Form 10-0 filed on May 2008

10.10 Convergys Corporation Supplemental Executive

Retirement Plan amended effective February 20

2007 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.1 to Form 10-0 filed on August 2007

10.11 Convergys Corporation Supplemental Executive

Retirement Plan as amended dated August 26

2008 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.3 to Form 10-0 filed on November 2008

10.12 Amendment to Convergys Corporation Supple

mental Executive Retirement Plan dated December

22 2011

10.13 Convergys Corporation Executive Deferred

Compensation Plan as amended October 29 2001

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.9 to

Form 10-K filed on February 28 2008

10.14 Convergys Corporation Executive Deferred

Compensation Plan as amended effective

February 24 2004 Incorporated by reference

from Exhibit 10.25 to Form 10-0 filed on

August 2004

10.15 Convergys Corporation Executive Deferred

Compensation Plan as amended dated December

21 2005 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.14 to Form 10-K filed on February 27 2009

10.16 Convergys Corporation Executive Deferred

Compensation Plan as amended dated October 21

2008 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.15 to Form 10-K filed on February 27 2009

10.17 Amendment to Convergys Corporation Executive

Deferred Compensation Plan dated December 22

2011

10.18 Convergys Corporation Employee Stock Purchase

Plan Incorporated by reference from Appendix IV

of Convergys Corporations Definitive Schedule

14A filed on March 12 2004

10.19 Convergys Corporation Retirement and Savings

Plan as amended and restated dated January 28

2008 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.17 to Form 10-K filed on February 27 2009

10.20 Amendment to Convergys Corporation Retirement

and Savings Plan dated March 31 2008

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.18 to

Form 10-K filed on February 27 2009

10.21 Amendment to Convergys Corporation Retirement

and Savings Plan dated December 23 2008

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.19 to

Form 10-K filed on February 27 2009

10.22 Convergys Corporation Canadian Employee Share

Plan Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

4.2.1 to Form S-8 Registration Statement File No

333-86137 filed on December 29 1999

10.23 Annual Executive Incentive Plan dated February 20

2007 Incorporated by reference from Appendix IV

of the Convergys Corporations Definitive

Schedule 14A filed on March 13 2007

10.24 Convergys Corporation Qualified and Non-Qualified

Pension Plan as amended and restated dated

January 28 2008 Incorporated by reference

from Exhibit 10.22 to Form 10-K filed on

February 27 2009

100 Convergys Corporation 2011 Annual Report



10.25 Amended Convergys Corporation Qualified and

Non-Qualified Pension Plan dated March 31 2008

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.23 to

Form 10-K filed on February 27 2009

10.26 Amended Convergys Corporation Qualified and

Non-Qualified Pension Plan dated December 17

2008 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.24 to Form 10-K filed on February 27 2009

10.27 Convergys Corporation Severance Pay Plan dated

December 2008 Incorporated by reference

from Exhibit 10.25 to Form 10-K filed on

February 27 2009

10.28 Convergys Corporation Severance Pay Plan dated

January 2011 Incorporate by reference from

Exhibit 10.23 to Form 10-K filed on February 25

2011

10.29 2008 Form of Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit

Award for Directors Incorporated by reference

from Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q filed on May

2008

10.30 2008 Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock

Unit Award Incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q filed on May 2008

10.31 2008 Form of Performance Unit Award

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to

Form 10-0 filed on May 2008

10.32 2009 Form of Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit

Award Agreement for Employees Incorporated by

reference from exhibit 10.45 to Form 10-K filed

on February 26 2010

10.33 2009 Form of Performance-Based Stock Unit

Award Agreement Incorporated by reference

from exhibit 10.46 to Form 10-K filed on

February 26 2010

10.34 2009 Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock

Unit Award Agreement Incorporated by reference

from exhibit 10.47 to Form 10-K filed on

February 26 2010

10.35 2011 Form of Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit

Award Agreement for Employees Incorporated by

reference from Exhibit 10.41 to Form 10-K filed on

February 25 2011

10.36 2011 Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock

Unit Award Agreement for Employees

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.42 to

Form 10-K filed on February 25 2011

10.37 2011 Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for

Employees Incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 10.43 to Form 10-K filed on February 25

2011

10.38 Employment letter between Convergys Corporation

and Andrea Ayers dated June 1994

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to

Form 10-K filed on February 26 2010

10.39 Change-in-control Agreement between Convergys

Corporation and Andrea Ayers dated June

2008 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2

to Form 10-K filed on February 26 2010

10.40 Employment Agreement between Convergys

Corporation and Robert Lento dated

September 2002 Incorporated by reference

from Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-K filed on

February 26 2010

10.41 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated

September 2002 between Convergys Corpo

ration and Robert Lento dated December 29

2008 Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6

to Form 10-K filed on February 26 2010

10.42 Trust Agreement dated as of December 23 2011

between Convergys Corporate and Fidelity

Management Trust Company for the Convergys

Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

and Convergys Corporate Deferred Compensation

Plan for Non-Employee Directors Trust

10.43 Amended and Restated Participation Agreement

dated as of June 30 2010 between Convergys

Corporation Various Guarantors Wachovia
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Development Corporation as the Borrower and

Lessor Various Credit Lenders Various Mortgage

Lenders and Wells Fargo Bank National Associa

tion as Agent Incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 1O-Q filed on August 2010

10.44 Second Amended and Restated Lease Agreement

dated as of June 30 2010 between Wachovia

Development Corporation and Convergys Corpo

ration Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.3 to Form 10-Q filed on August 2010

10.45 Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated as

of June 30 2010 between Wachovia Development

Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank National Associa

tion and accepted and agreed to by Convergys

Corporation Incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.4 to Form 10-Q filed on August 2010

10.46 Assignment and Recharacterization Agreement

dated as of June 30 2010 between Convergys

Corporation Existing Guarantors Wachovia

Development Corporation Existing Credit Note

Purchasers Existing Debt Providers Wells Fargo

Bank National Association Wachovia Develop

ment Corporation and the Lenders Incorporated

by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-Q filed

on August 2010

10.47 Letter Agreement dated November 2010

between the Company and Jeffrey Fox

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 to

Form 8-K filed on November 2010

10.48 Receivables Sales Agreement dated as of June 30

2009 between Convergys Corporation as Origi

nator and Convergys Funding Inc as Buyer

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to

Form 10-a filed on August 2009

10.49 Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of

June 30 2009 among Convergys Funding Inc as

Seller Convergys Corporation as Services

Wachovia Bank National Association Liberty

Street Funding LLC the Bank of Nova Scotia The

Bank of Nova Scotia as Scotiabank Group Agent and

Wachovia Bank National Association as Admin

istrative Agent Incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 1O-Q filed on August 2009

10.50 Amendment to Convergys Corporation Executive

Deferred Compensation Plan dated April 13 2O11

10.51 Amendment to Convergys Corporation Qualified and

Non-Qualified Pension Plan dated June 29 2011

10.52 Amendment to Convergys Corporation Long-Term

Incentive Plan dated as of January 28 2011

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined

Fixed Charges and Preferred Dividends

21 Subsidiaries of Convergys Corporation

23.1 Consent of Ernst Young LLP Independent

Registered Public accounting for the Company

24 Powers of Attorney

31.1 Rule 13a 14a Certification by Chief Executive

Officer

31.2 Rule 13a 14a Certification by Chief Financial

Officer

32 Section 1350 Certifications

101 The following financial statements from the Compa

nys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2011 filed on February 22 2012

formatted in XBRL Consolidated Statements of

Operations and Comprehensive Income Loss

ii Consolidated Balance Sheets iii Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows iv the Notes to

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

tagged as blocks of text

Management contract or compensatory plan or

arrangement

Item 15b and Exhibits and

Financial Statement Schedule

The responses to these portions of Item 15 are submitted

as separate section of this report
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

CONVERGYS CORPORATION

February 22 2012
By /5/ Earl Shanks

Earl Shanks

Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

Signature Title Date

/s/JEFFREY FOX

Jeffrey Fox

/s EARL SHANKS

Earl Shanks

/5/ TAYLOR GREENWALD

Taylor Greenwald

JOHN BARRETF

John Barrett

WILLARD BRITTAIN JR
Willard Bdttain Jr

RICHARD DEVENUTI

Richard Devenuti

JOSEPH GIBBS

Joseph Gibbs

JOAN HERMAN

Joan Herman

THOMAS MONAHAN 111

Thomas Monahan III

RONALD NELSON

Ronald Nelson

PHILIP ODEEN

Philip Odeen

RICHARD WALLMAN

Richard Wallman

By /s/ Earl Shanks

Principal Executive Officer Chief

Executive Officer and Director

Principal Financial Officer Chief

Financial Officer

Chief Accounting Officer Vice

President and Controller

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

February 22 2012

February 22 2012

February 22 2012

February 22 2012

Eart Shanks

as attorney-in-fact
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Certification

Jeffrey Fox certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of

Convergys Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain

any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made

in light of the circumstances under which such state

ments were made not misleading with respect to the

period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and

other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial

condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this

report

The registrants other certifying officers and are

responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or

caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that

material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made

known to us by others within those entities partic

ularly during the period in which this report is being

prepared

Designed such internal control over financial report

ing or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reli

ability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants

disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the

end of the period covered by this report based on

such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the regis

trants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal

quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely
to materially affect

the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have

disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the regis

trants auditors and the audit committee of the regis

trants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses

in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to

adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information

and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves

management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control

over financial reporting

Date February 22 2012 /s/Jeffrey Fox

Jeffrey Fox

Chief Executive Officer

104 Convergys Corporation 2011 Annual Report



Ce rti fication

Earl Shanks certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of

Convergys Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain

any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made

in Light of the circumstances under which such state

ments were made not misleading with respect to the

period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and

other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial

condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this

report

The registrants other certifying officers and are

responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15e and lSd-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or

caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that

material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made

known to us by others within those entities partic

ularly during the period in which this report is being

prepared

Designed such internal control over financial report

ing or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reli

ability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants

disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the

end of the period covered by this report based on

such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the regis

trants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal

quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely
to materially affect

the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have

disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the regis

trants auditors and the audit committee of the regis

trants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses

in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to

adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information

and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves

management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control

over financial reporting

Date February 22 2012 /s Earl Shanks

EarL Shanks

Chief Financial Officer
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Annual CEO Certification

Section 303A.12a

As the Chief Executive Officer of Convergys Corporation

and as required by Section 303A.12a of the New York

Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual hereby certify

that as of the date hereof am not aware of any violation

by the Company of NYSEs Corporate Governance listing

standards other than has been notified to the Exchange

pursuant to Section 3O3A.12b and disclosed as an

attachment hereto

By /s/Jeffrey Fox

Jeffrey Fox

Chief Executive Officer

February 22 2012
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Shareholder Services

Inquiries regarding stock transfers lost

certificates or address changes should be

directed to Computershare Investor

Services LLC

Investor Relations

Inquiries from institutional investors
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U.S Securities and Exchange Commission

please visit the Investor Relations section of

our Web site

www.convergys.com/company/investor-relations/

Stock Price Information

Convergys Corporation NYSE CVG common shares are listed on the

New York Stock Exchange As of December 31 2011 there were 9406

shareholders The high low and closing share prices each quarter are

listed below

1st 2nd 3rd 4th

zqii

High $15.00 $14.63 $14.09 $13.02

Low $13.17 $12.27 9.01 8.49

Close $14.36 $13.64 9.38 $12.77

2010

High $13.09

Low $10.57

Close $12.26

Annual Meeting

$13.78 $11.31 $13.50

$9.76 $9.50 $10.53

9.81 $10.45 $13.17

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at

1130 a.m EDT on Thursday April 26 2012

at the Atrium One Building Fifth Floor 201 East Fourth Street

Cincinnati OH 45202

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare Investor Services LLC

250 Royall Street

Canton MA 02021

18772948217

Shareholder Information

Convergys the Convergys logo Intervoice and

Outthinking Outdoing are registered trademarks of

Convergys Corporation All other trademarks are the

property of their respective owners

www.computershare.com/investor



Corporate Headquarters
North America

Cincinnati Ohio USA

US ToIl-Free 888 284 9900

International 1513 458 1300

marketing4convergys.com

www.convergys.com

Regional Headquarters

Europe Middle East Africa

Cambridge UK

Phone 44 1223 705000

Fax 44 1223 705001

Latin America

Sªo Paulo Brazil

Phone 55 1155046800

Fax 55 1155046730

Asia Pacific

Singapore

Phone 65 6557 2277

Fax 65 6557 2727


